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GROUP STRUCTURE
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Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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TURNOVER & PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| am pleased to present to our shareholders the results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group” or “Hanison”) for the year ended 31 March
2017.

RESULTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group recorded
turnover of HK$3,216.1 million, up 22.6% from
HK$2,623.0 million recorded in the previous financial
year. Consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company for the year amounted to HK$516.9 million
(2016: HK$635.7 million). The decline was mainly
due to the exceptionally large gain on disposal of a
development project (pieces of agricultural land at
D.D. 129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen Long) through disposal
of a subsidiary in the preceding year which net off an
increase of gain on change in fair value of the investment
properties of the Group and increase in share of profit of
joint ventures for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share for the year were HK51.0 cents and HK50.7 cents,
representing decreases of 36.3% and 35.8% respectively
when compared with HK80.0 cents and HK79.0 cents
respectively last year.

As at 31 March 2017, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$3,066.6 million (2016: HK$2,697.2
million), representing an increase of 13.7% over last
year. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2017 was
HK$2.95 (2016: HK$2.60).
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DIVIDEND

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK5.0
cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK5.0 cents per share) to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
31 August 2017. This, together with an interim dividend
of HK2.2 cents per share (2016: HK2.5 cents per share)
distributed during the year, gives a total dividend of
HK7.2 cents per share for the year (2016: HK7.5 cents
per share). The proposed final dividend will be paid on
13 September 2017 following approval at the annual
general meeting scheduled to be held on 22 August
2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year 2016, the global economy ended up with
a real GDP growth of 3.1%, slightly less than the GDP
growth of 3.4% in the preceding year. 2016 was well
remembered with several stunning incidents, such as the
UK’s surprising vote for Brexit, Donald Trump’s election
as president of the USA and the commencement of
benchmark rate increase by the US Federal Reserve.

Although the economic consequences of the UK leaving
the European Union have yet to be seen, it is generally
expected that the UK’s trade exports will be adversely
affected due to the delineation with European Union
countries. UK's annual GDP growth for 2016 declined
to 1.8% from last year’s 2.2%. Growth for the year was
mainly driven by strong consumer spending. However,
the declines in business investment and exports have
made negative contribution to the year on year growth
figures.
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US investors have factored rising inflation and higher
interest rates in exchange for stronger economic growth,
improvement in unemployment rate and tax rates cuts in
their forecast following Trump’s election, and with the
hopes that these will be the themes in 2017 and 2018.
The GDP grew by 1.6% in 2016, its worst performance
since 2011, after expanding 2.6% in 2015. During 2016,
consumer spending has increased but it was offset by
the downward revisions to business and government
investments.

In China, investment in manufacturing and infrastructure,
which has once been a successful growth model, is
slowing as the government shifts from an investment
driven growth model to one more focused on consumer
demand. The government’s aim to rebalance the
economy towards domestic consumption has led to the
slow-down in the manufacturing and infrastructure
activities. In 2016, China’s GDP grew by 6.7%, the slowest
in 26 years — but within the government’s target range of
6.5% to 7%.

In the year under review, Hong Kong remained one of
the most expensive cities to own a home, with developers
continuing to build small units to make it affordable
for the younger, first-time buyers. The demand for
residential properties in Hong Kong continued to be
strong due to the low interest rate environment and
insufficient supply of residential properties in the short-
term. In 2016, Hong Kong's real GDP grew moderately by
1.9%, slower than the 2.4% growth in 2015. Wholesale
and retail trades fell distinctly amid the slowdown in
inbound tourism.
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HIGHLIGHTS OF CORPORATE ACTIVITIES

The Construction Division continued to perform
favourably, underpinned by projects awarded from both
the public and private sectors, thus continuing to account
for a significant proportion of the Group’s turnover.
During the year, the division was awarded with a number
of contracts, with total contract sum as at 31 March 2017
amounting to HK$5,679.9 million.

In respect of our Property Development Division, the
units at The Austine Place and The Bedford have largely
been sold. With regards to the former, which is located
at Kwun Chung Street, Kowloon, only two units of
the boutique residential building and four retail units
located on the podium level remained unsold as at 31
March 2017. As for The Bedford, located at Bedford
Road, Kowloon, one unit of the boutique industrial high-
rise remained unsold as at the close of the financial
year. Construction of the development project, Mount
Vienna, a quality low-density residential project in Fo
Tan, Sha Tin, New Territories, in which the Group has
25% interest, continues and is expected to be completed
by the third quarter of 2017. To replenish the Group’s
property development portfolio, a piece of land together
with messuage erections and buildings situated at No.
57A Nga Tsin Wai Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon was
acquired in April 2017.

As for the Property Investment Division, the past year
has been a fruitful period as we made several key
acquisitions, including West Castle in October 2016,
Queen Central in which the Group has 40% interest
in October 2016, West Park in February 2017 and Wall
Street Tower in which the Group has 50% interest in
March 2017. While we have prudently augmented our
property investment portfolio, we will seek opportunities
to sell those properties which will bring promising
returns to the Group after property upgradings and
improvement of property management.
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PROSPECTS

According to the International Monetary Fund, global
economic activity is picking up owing to a cyclical
recovery in investment, manufacturing and trade. World
growth is forecasted to rise from 3.1% in 2016 to 3.5% in
2017 and 3.6% in 2018. Upside developments will include
the expectation of increased global demand, reduced
deflationary pressures and optimistic financial markets.

In China, domestic demand and an expanding service
sector are expected to continue playing growing roles in
driving the mainland economy. With economic growth
remaining at a stable level, China will remain a key player
in supporting global economic expansion.

Here in Hong Kong, the continual low unemployment
rate and interest rate will support consumer confidence.
Such confidence will be among the catalysts that will help
spur GDP growth, which the SAR Government forecasts
will reach between 2% and 3% in 2017. Economic activity
will also be driven partly by the hot property market,
with demand continuing to outstrip supply.

Following the Hong Kong Government’'s sustained
efforts to increase land supply and public housing
estates to rectify the imbalance of supply and demand
of housing, the Group will seek to fully capitalise on the
opportunities that will be created in the construction and
construction related industry.

Property developers continue to be active in residential
and office land sites acquisitions. For residential
properties, end-users’ demand will remain strong. Small
units will become the market focus but there will still
be strong supports for luxury residential properties.
The Group will look into future property development
and property investment opportunities to enhance
shareholders values.
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Public rental housing development at

Shek Mun Estate Phase 2, Shatin
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CONSTRUCTION DIVISION

The turnover for the Construction Division was
HK$2,037.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: HK$1,575.1 million). During the year, the
Construction Division continued to work on the projects
on hand and secured several new building construction
contracts.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2017 for the Construction Division amounted to
HK$5,679.9 million.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Construction of the residential development at
N.K.I.L. No. 6493 Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong

(2) Construction of the residential and commercial
development at No. 5 Tung Yuen Street, Yau Tong,
Kowloon

(3) Construction of the residential development at No.
11 Grampian Road, Kowloon

Residential and commercial
development at No.5 Tung Yuen

Street, Yau Tong
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Residential development at Inverness Road, Kowloon Tong
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Major Projects in Progress

(1

)

3)

(4)

Construction of low-density residential development
at Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603, Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan,
New Territories

Construction of public rental housing development
at Shek Mun Estate Phase 2, Shatin

Construction of the residential development at
1 Sheung Foo Street, K.l.L. No.11228, Homantin,
Kowloon

Construction of public rental housing development
at Choi Yuen Road Sites 3 and 4, Sheung Shui, New
Territories

Major Projects Awarded

(1

)

Residential development at Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan

KRR 2 X EHRIEE

Construction of Sports Centre, Community Hall and
Football Pitches in Area 1, Tai Po

Construction of a 30-classroom Secondary School at
Site 1A-2, Kai Tak Development, Kowloon
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Residential development at 1 Sheung Foo Street,
Homantin
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Outlook

In recent years, the construction industry in Hong Kong
has benefitted from strong demand stemming from
the Government's pledge to stabilise property prices
by increasing housing supply. According to the 2017
Policy Address, the Government targets to produce
94,500 public housing units over the next five years, a
further increase from 2016. In the medium to long term,
various new development areas (“NDAs"”) and new town
extensions, including Kwu Tung North and Fanling North
NDAs, Tung Chung New Town Extension, Hung Shui
Kiu NDA and Yuen Long South Development, as well as
potential railway property development projects under
planning such as Siu Ho Wan Depot and Pat Heung
Depot, can potentially provide over 220,000 residential
units and over 8.6 million square metres of commercial
and industrial floor area.

The developers in the private sector are also active in
acquisition of land and development of their project sites
on hand. It is expected that there will be around 94,000
units of private housing available in the coming three to
four years. With such a large supply of residential and
commercial properties, the Company and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) believe that there will continue to be
strong demand for the services of the construction
industry.

The next few years will see the work peak period of
most construction projects, both from the government
and the private sector. The construction industry must
be proactive to recruit and train sufficient young labor
to replenish the aging labor that will retire as well as to
bridge the existing gap between the labor demand and
actual labor supply in the industry.

The labor shortage and the aging labor issue in the
construction industry are translating into soaring
construction costs. Despite the encouraging business
potential, the construction industry is facing a bottleneck
scenario in which the labor shortage is increasingly
unable to cope with the existing and incoming
construction work, both from the government and the
private sector.
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To attract and retain young labor in the construction
industry, it is not simply by increasing the pays and
benefits, it is necessary to transform the construction
industry’s cultures and practices from an industry with
“3Ds” (difficulty, dirtiness and danger) to become a
professional industry with the distinct advantages of clear
career advancement roadmap, stable income prospect
and stringent industrial safety standards to attract the
new joiners.

Hanison has been proactively investing in the training
and development of its employees over the years.
Furthermore, to motivate a new generation of
workers to join the industry, the Group has introduced
apprenticeship programmes in collaboration with such
parties as the Hong Kong Construction Association
and the Vocational Training Council, including offering
adequate professional development opportunities to
assist their future development. These measures have
enabled the Group to develop a loyal and professional
workforce, which the Group considers as one of its most
valuable assets.

Looking ahead, the Group will strive to capture the
immense market opportunities presented by the
construction sector in Hong Kong by focusing on projects
from both the government and the private sector. Apart
from cost control measures to improve overall efficiency
and profitability, the Group will also enhance safety
standards in the workplace so as to maintain a healthy
working environment for its staff, which will in turn
contribute to the Group's sustainable growth.
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INTERIOR AND RENOVATION DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Interior and
Renovation Division recorded a turnover of HK$170.9
million, as compared with HK$405.5 million last year.

The total amount of contracts on hand as at 31 March
2017 for the Interior and Renovation Division amounted
to HK$300.9 million.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Renovation work of Flora Garden at No. 7 Chun Fai
Road, Hong Kong

(2) Refurbishment works for Regal Court and Wing

Fung Building at Wing Fung Street, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong

Exterior renovation of Flora Garden

EREZIMEERE
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Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Alternations and additions works for Takan Lodge
at 199 Johnston Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

(2) Renovation work of industrial building at No. 22 Yip
Shing Street, Kwai Chung, New Territories

Major Project Awarded

(1) Building renovation works of Cavendish Heights
(Block 1-7) at 33 Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout,
Hong Kong

Outlook

The demand for building maintenance and renovation
contracting services in Hong Kong is significantly
increased by the Government policies, such as the
Mandatory Building Inspection Scheme and Mandatory
Window Inspection Scheme.

According to the Development Bureau, there were about
39,000 private buildings in Hong Kong in 2013, among
which about 13,000 are over 30 years old, the number is
estimated to reach 22,000 within the next 10 years. The
growing number of aging buildings will further facilitate
the demand for building maintenance and renovation
contracting service in Hong Kong.

Another important growth driver for building
maintenance and renovation contracting service in
Hong Kong derives from property owners’ increasing
willingness to renovate and upkeep their properties for
enhancing their property values.

The major threats affecting the building maintenance
and renovation business continue to be the increasing
labor, material and operating costs. Insufficient
experienced and skilled labor is continuing problems to
the industry.
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Our tender successful rate has been dragged down by
keen competition over tender prices for interior and
renovation projects coupled with our prudent approach
toward assessing the tender requirements and calculating
tender prices.

The mast-climbing tower platform accident in an estate
occurred at the beginning of 2014 was so stunning and
had led the market questioned about the application
and safety issues of this equipment after the accident.
However, in view of the stable performance, stringent
safety measures and sound track records of the Interior
and Renovation Division, we had successfully bidded
the refurbishment works of Cavendish Heights, 33
Perkins Road, Jardine’s Lookout at the beginning of
2017, deploying the mast-climbing tower platform for
the project in light of the various benefits it brought to
the occupiers in terms of construction safety and works
quality. The benefits include ventilation, environmental
hygiene and living quality improvement during the
project period.

The persistent pursuit of quality and the client-centered
principle have helped the Interior and Renovation
Division gain wide recognition from its clients over the
years. In light of the people-oriented spirit, the Interior
and Renovation Division strived to do its best in terms
of workers security on work sites, third parties and
environmental protection. Hanison Interior & Renovation
Limited was awarded the 2016-2017 Joyful@Healthy
Workplace Best Practices Award for its alternations and
additions works for Takan Lodge at Johnston Road,
Wanchai, an event organised by Occupational Safety
and Health Council. The award is the ultimate award
in recognising the efforts of the working teams of the
project among numerous participating units under
stringent review and inspection by the reviewing unit.
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In 2016, the Interior and Renovation Division successfully
completed the refurbishment and renovation works
of the two buildings under the Taikoo Group that are
located at Wing Fung Street, Wan Chai and received high
recognition from the landlords. Such recognition had
strongly boosted up the confidence of the Interior and
Renovation Division in the already fiercely competitive
high-end market.

Despite constant increase in labor and construction
material costs, as well as anticipated intensifying
competition in the operating environment, the Interior
and Renovation Division has, by leveraging on its
persistent pursuit of quality, the client-centered principle,
an experienced team and advanced equipments over the
years, gained wide recognition from its clients and also
the industry. We are confident that we will be able to
conform to the current situation, obtain more projects
and sustain steady performance by maintaining our
professionalism in handling different types of works and
enhancing works quality.
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Aluminium curtain wall, window and -
Suspended ceiling system for

louvre for residential redevelopment at . .
100 Caine Road Ifwun Tong \LII’]G Extension
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BUILDING MATERIALS DIVISION

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the turnover of
the Building Materials Division was HK$592.6 million
compared with that of HK$414.0 million last year.

Trigon Building Materials Limited (“Trigon HK")
and Trigon Interior Fitting-Out Works (Macau)
Limited (“Trigon Macau”) (collectively “Trigon®)

Trigon HK and Trigon Macau are two of the subsidiaries
of the Group under the Building Materials Division,
specialising in the supply and installation of interior
products such as different types of suspended ceiling
system, metal cladding system, demountable partition
system, fire related protection system, decorative
moulding, raised flooring and wood flooring.

Major Projects Completed

(1) Proposed residential development at S.T.T.L.
No. 502, Lok Wo Sha, Ma On Shan - Supply and
installation of suspended ceiling system

(2) West Island Line - Sai Ying Pun Station and tunnels —
Design, supply and installation of suspended ceiling
system

Major Projects Undertaken

(1) Proposed development at Yuen Long Town Lot No.
518 — Design, supply and installation of suspended
ceiling system

(2) Kwun Tong Line Extension - Yau Mai Tei to
Whampoa Tunnels and Ho Man Tin Station — Supply
and installation of suspended ceiling system

(3) Kwun Tong Line Extension — Whampoa Station
and Overrun Tunnel — Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling system
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(4) MTR XRL Project 810B — West Kowloon Terminus
Station South — Supply and installation of acoustic
ceiling panel and fire rated ceiling system

(5) Tin Shui Wai Hospital — Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling

(6) South Island Line (East) — Lei Tung Station, South
Horizons Station and Tunnels — Design, supply and
installation of suspended ceiling system

(7) TW5 Bayside property development at West Rail
Tsuen Wan West Station — Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling system

Major Projects Awarded

(1) Proposed commercial development at NKIL No.
6311, Kowloon Bay - Supply and installation of
suspended ceiling system

(2) Proposed residential development at Tseung Kwan
O Town Lot No. 95 — Design, supply and installation
of suspended ceiling system

(3) Museum Plus (M+) at West Kowloon Cultural District
— Supply and installation of metal ceiling

The total amount of contracts on hand of Trigon as at 31
March 2017 amounted to HK$110.2 million.

Million Hope Industries Limited (“Million Hope
HK"”) and X EEZEMB (BEMN)BRLAT ("%
#") (collectively “Million Hope")

Million Hope HK and its factory, &, specialise in the
design, supply and installation of aluminium windows
and curtain walls in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Million Hope is one of the authorised manufacturers of
the renowned German brand product “Schiico”.
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Major Projects Completed

(1

()

®3)

(4)

Residential development at No.18 Tong Chun
Street, Tseung Kwan O, TKOTL 119, New Territories
— Design, supply and installation of aluminium
window, sliding door, aluminium cladding and
curtain wall

Residential development at No. 8 Mount Nicholson
Road, The Peak, Hong Kong - Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window, sliding door and
folding door

Residential redevelopment at No.11 Grampian Road,
Kowloon - Design, supply and installation of curtain
wall and external cladding

Residential redevelopment at No.31 Conduit Road,
Mid-levels, Hong Kong - Installation of curtain wall
system and aluminium window

Aluminium window, sliding door, aluminium cladding
and curtain wall for residential development at No. 18

Tong Chun Street, Tseung Kwan O
HEREAMISRZEERRIER A P 63
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Curtain wall system and aluminium window for
residential redevelopment at No.31 Conduit
Road, Mid-levels
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Major Projects Undertaken

(1

()

3)

(4)

Residential redevelopment at 100 Caine Road, Hong
Kong - Design, supply and installation of aluminium
curtain wall, window and louvre

Residential and commercial development at 33
Tong Yin Street, TKOTL 125, Area 125, Area 68A1,
Tseung Kwan O, New Territories — Design, supply
and installation of tower curtain wall and podium
facade

Residential and commercial development -
TKOTL112, Area 65C1, Tseung Kwan O, New
Territories — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium cladding, canopy, skylight and curtain
wall

Residential development at S.T.T.L. 566 in Area
56A, Kau To Shan, Shatin, New Territories — Design,
supply and installation of aluminium window, door
and aluminium works to towers

Tower curtain wall and podium
fagade for residential and
commercial development at 33 Tong

Yin Street, Tseung Kwan O
BEREBHBR2AEEREGERRE
HE 2 KEEEREEIME
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Aluminium window, door and aluminium works to towers for residential
development, Kau To Shan, Shatin
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(5)

(6)

Residential development at TMTL 423, Area 48,
Castle Peak Road, So Kwun Wat, Tuen Mun,
New Territories — Design, supply and installation
of aluminium window, louvre, grille and metal
balustrade

Residential development at S.T.T.L. 567, Lai Ping
Road in Area 56A, Kau To Shan, Shatin, New
Territories — Design, supply and installation of
aluminium window, curtain wall, louver, metal
cladding and glass balustrade

Major Projects Awarded

(1

()

®3)

(4)

Proposed residential development at NKIL6532 No.
6532, Lung Cheung Road, Beacon Hill, Kowloon
— Design, supply and installation at aluminium
windows, louver, railing, glass balustrade and
curtain wall

Proposed residential development at TKOTL 70
RP Lohas Park Package 6 - Design, supply and
installation of aluminium window and door

Proposed residential development at TPTL225, Pak
Shek Kok, Tai Po, New Territories — Design, supply
and installation of curtain wall system to residential
tower

Proposed residential development at Antuo Hill,
Shenzhen - Supply of aluminium window and door

The total amount of contracts on hand of Million Hope as
at 31 March 2017 amounted to HK$584.3 million.
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Outlook

The Building Materials Division has recorded significant
growth in recent years on the back of its burgeoning
aluminium window and curtain walls supply and
installation business. Demand has been driven primarily
by the steady stream of infrastructure and residential
projects launched by the Government and private
developers in Hong Kong. Their increasing willingness to
use premium, superior-quality building materials has led
to the sustainable growth of the Division.

Curtain wall systems are widely used for offices,
hotels, shopping centers and residential buildings. The
popularity of curtain wall system stems from its elegant
appearance and its function in lowering costs of air-
conditioning and heating resulting in energy savings.

In Hong Kong, under regulation 42 of the Building
(Construction) Regulations, where a curtain wall
system forms the external face of a building, there
will be discretionary gross floor area and site coverage
concession of curtain wall system by not more than
200mm for a domestic building and 250mm for a non-
domestic building. It explains why curtain wall system is
so popular not just in office, but also in luxury high-rise
residential developments.

For Million Hope, the curtain wall business is expanding
rapidly over the recent few years. It represents around
60% of our total turnover. With the increasing usage of
this product in the property market, it is expected that
this business will continue to grow in future.

With progress made over the past several years, the
Group’s aluminium window and curtain walls supply
and installation business have gained recognition for its
quality products. The Group is confident in the business’
ability to seize growth opportunities resulting from the
rise in residential housing supply in the coming years.

Also contributing to its development are activities
involving the supply and installation of suspended
ceiling systems, principally for the new stations of MTR
Corporation.
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PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

The Property Development Division recorded a turnover
of HK$331.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2017
(2016: HK$272.3 million).

During the year, the Group has sold 4 units and 4 car
parking spaces of The Bedford and 13 residential units of
The Austine Place.

In February 2014, the Group acquired 25% interest in
a piece of land located at Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603,
Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan, New Territories which will be
developed into a low-density residential development,
namely Mount Vienna. Superstructure work is underway
and construction is expected to be completed in the third
quarter of 2017.

The Bedford - chic lobby of Roppongi Hills style

The Bedford — 7NN 7K (L B &) K &
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LUXEAST, the Group's 49% interests in the parcel of
land situated at FEI#I &8 E ™ & 50K A Al -
% E =8 (West of Wenyuan Road and South of
Houfutinggang, Haining, Zhejiang Province, the PRC) for
the development of office, retail, car parking spaces and
other development pertaining to the land. The respective
FEEFiE#% (Building Ownership Certificates) have been
issued in March 2015. A total of 98 BREBESE (Sale
and Purchase Agreement for Commodity Flat) and a total
of 17 REEE (Purchaser Letter) have been signed up to
the end of the reporting year.

The Group has subsequently acquired a parcel of land
together with messuage erections and buildings situated
at No. 57A Nga Tsin Wai Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon
in April 2017 with the objective of developing the
property into a premium residential project.

Outlook

Hong Kong has been regarded as one of the least
affordable cities in the world in terms of home prices
relative to household income, and yet property prices
have continued to increase even in the wake of rate hikes
in the USA, usually a precursor to rate hikes at Hong
Kong. According to data from the Rating and Valuation
Department, private home prices in Hong Kong have hit
record highs for five consecutive months up to March
2017, extending a year-long price surge. The Group
believes that despite the Government’s efforts to increase
housing supply, it will still take a considerable period of
time to correct the demand-supply imbalance situation.
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The Group will continue to seek opportunities to
strengthen its Property Development Division. The
remaining few units of The Austine Place and The
Bedford will soon be sold. The Group will launch its
joint-venture development project, Mount Vienna, in Fo
Tan for sales by the end of 2017. Besides such activities,
the Group will explore opportunities to develop new
property projects by prudently acquiring land parcels.
Already, the Group has acquired a parcel of land together
with messuage erections and buildings situated at No.
57A Nga Tsin Wai Road, Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, in April
2017 with the objective of developing the property into a
premium residential project.

In China, the Group will continue to rent out units of

LUXEAST in Haining, Zhejiang with the objective of
ultimately selling the units at the most favourable prices.

The Austine Place - interior of a unit

The Austine Place — BE{y E R # (&
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT DIVISION

The Property Investment Division recorded a turnover of
HK$49.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016:
HK$33.7 million).

On 8 February 2017, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement for the disposal of various land lots
in D.D. 128 Deep Bay Road in Yuen Long. The Property
Investment Division had therefore ceased to receive
rental income from these land lots upon completion of
the disposal in March 2017.

To diversify its investment portfolio, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement on 8 August 2016
and 28 December 2016 for acquisition of the property
located at No. 22 Yip Shing Street, Kwai Chung, New
Territories, Hong Kong (a 4-storey industrial building now
known as “West Castle”) and the residential property
located at Nos. 256 to 258 Tung Chau Street, Sham Shui
Po, Kowloon (New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 329) (now
known as “West Park”) respectively. Both West Castle
and West Park are conveniently located in close proximity
to MTR Stations and will be renovated to improve the
respective rental income and to enhance the property
value. The revitalisation for commercial uses for West
Castle has been approved by the Government. It is now
under renovation.

OPERATIONS REVIEW 2£ #% [5] J§H

MRIREB

BE-ES—tE=-A=+t—-RALEE YERK
B I i% 15 ¥R E149,100,0007T (= F— N
£ : 7#%533,700,0007T ) °

NZ_ZE-—tFZANB AEEFTYL—HHEE
1hak > LA S T BIRE R LB A0 5512858 49
ZEBER -l REZB-—LF=ZAERHE
BUMEREDIFIBRBZZ R ZESW
Ao

AFREHGZ L AEBR-Z—XREN
ANBRZZE—ARE+ZAZ+NHDHIF
VBB URBURE B R ERERE
2BEME(—BEIBS 2T RE REA
[West Castle |) Ry 7 L EE &R K 45 18 M 41256
ZE2585% 2 X EWHF (G NBER R E3I295)
(B A [West Park ]) o West Castle & West
Park3g #B3 B 8k SBER - WASESTEIH
URSHEHZENHESWARDEEREEL
West Castle AERI 3£ AR B B BT L& - HIR
B ETEETER

Wall Street Tower

West Park

(formerly known as “Success Centre")

(RURE (R R0 ])

B A A R A R 2016/2017 4F it

Qo
&3¢



OPERATIONS REVIEW 2£ %% [5] JiH

36

In October 2016 and March 2017, the Group acquired
40% interest in a serviced apartment located at No.
338 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong, now known
as “Queen Central”, and 50% interest in an industrial
building located at Nos. 26 to 38 Ta Chuen Ping Street,
Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong, now known
as “Wall Street Tower"”. The revitalisation for office and
retails uses for Wall Street Tower has been approved by
the Government.

Other investment properties of the Group including
PeakCastle in Cheung Sha Wan, One Eleven in Sai Ying
Pun, Shatin Industrial Centre, No. 31 Wing Wo Street in
Sheung Wan, some units at Kin Wing Industrial Building
in Tuen Mun, various land lots in D.D. 76 Ping Che in
Fanling and Hoi Bun Godown in Tuen Mun in which
the Group has 50% interest, all contributed satisfactory
rental income to the Group during the year.

Queen Central

(formerly known as “338 Apartment”)
(7% [338 Apartment ])
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Outlook

With limited new supply and strong demand for
residential and office properties, rentals in Hong
Kong continue to grow steadily. In the first quarter
of 2017, with both the international and local trading
environment showing promising signs of recovery, as
compared with that of the last quarter, the demands for
residential and office rental properties remained strong.
According to the data from the Rating and Valuation
Department, residential rentals recorded a 1.4% increase
while office rentals rose by 2.2% in 2016. However, the
current uncertain retail situation has put some retailers’
expansion plans for their shops and warehouse space
on hold. The cosmetics suppliers, luxury and clothing
retailers are especially cautious with their leasing plans.

Under the 2017-18 Land Sale Programme, the HKSAR
Government will launch 28 residential sites with the
potential for providing 18,900 units; three commercial
or business sites that can supply about 172,000 square
meters of space; and a hotel site that can accommodate
approximately 550 rooms. Such efforts highlight the
HKSAR Government’s determination to increase the
supply of residential and commercial spaces in Hong
Kong to ensure healthier market development.

Recently the Group has been active in the property
market, and has invested in several properties, including
the acquisition of West Castle and Queen Central in
October 2016, West Park in February 2017 and Wall
Street Tower in March 2017. The Group will undertake
some necessary refurbishments and upgrading works
to these properties, and will improve the property
management services to enhance the values of these
properties. We will continue to be cautiously optimistic
about Hong Kong's property investment market and will
further explore suitable investment opportunities that
are consistent with our investment objectives.

OPERATIONS REVIEW 2£ %% [5] JiH

R

HREERPAENEZHHEEERRS
R FEESHERIHER - N-F—C
FEEE BEEBREAHEZREEL—F
ZEMEHERTEERTR  FERRLE
HEME 2B RMAREBY - RIEBEZMYHEME
ECHE RIB—AF EEHEEHEE1.4%
BR MPLEESIER2.2% AT BATT
PR ZERBSETEERHARRER
EZEzBERIIRE LR EED BE
mEkRETEFEHELAAEFEASTEALE
EfH-

BE-Z—tZ—- /\FESEHE FBEE
DR A5 4 H AT $244£18,900 /5 B8 132 >~ 281B X & B
#h; =i ATIR 4 49172,000F FK =R 2 i %
N E Aty k18 B4 L5508 E R 28
JERAthe Ll E R HREEBBEBTIEMNES
FERBECEHEUBREE2TSEE
R o

EH AEERYENTSRRER URE
ZIEYE BER-Z—<F1 A B West
Castle® Queen Central - R=—ZTE—+F A
W B West Parkk R — & —t &= B EEWall
Street Tower - REBFHZEYEETHD
PDEBEZBFRARIRE WS WEEER
BURSZEVMECZEBE KMBEEHEE
MEREMSISTEELBERE  WEE—TH
MEEMANREESHEFAZEERERE

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;

37



Property management services for Golf

Rental collection and leasing agency Parkuiew, Eight College and One Lasalle
. ASFXEE  Eight College} One LaSalle
3 Tt ¥ i »

Property Agency and
Management DlVlSlOIl

%%ﬁfiﬁ B




PROPERTY AGENCY AND MANAGEMENT
DIVISION

The turnover of the Property Agency and Management
Division for the year ended 31 March 2017 was HK$20.5
million (2016: HK$26.1 million).

Our Property Agency and Management Division acted as
the marketing and project manager for The Grampian
at No. 11 Grampian Road, a residential project at Sha
Tin Town Lot No. 603, Lok Lam Road and two of the
Group's redevelopment projects, The Bedford at Nos. 91-
93 Bedford Road and The Austine Place at No. 38 Kwun
Chung Street.

This Division also provided property management services
to The Austine Place, The Bedford, CentreHollywood in
Sheung Wan (service ended in July 2016), Eight College
and One LaSalle in Kowloon Tong, Golf Parkview in
Sheung Shui, One Eleven and PeakCastle.

Other services of this Division include rental collection
and leasing agency services to 8 Hart Avenue and The
Cameron in Tsim Sha Tsui, One Eleven and PeakCastle.

Outlook

Providing one-stop solutions to clients with relevant
needs, the Property Agency and Management Division
complements the Group’s property development and
property investment businesses. The Group will continue
to optimise its service platform, with the aim of offering
property management, rental collection and leasing
agency services of even higher efficiency and calibre to
satisfy our customers’ needs.
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HEALTH PRODUCTS DIVISION

The Health Products Division has two subsidiaries: Care &
Health Limited (“Care & Health”) and Retailcorp Limited
("Retailcorp”). The Division is engaged in the wholesale
of Chinese and Western nutritional supplements and the
management of relevant retail chain stores.

For the year ended 31 March 2017, the Health Products
Division recorded a turnover of HK$55.1 million,
compared with HK$52.7 million last year.

Retailcorp manages its chain stores business under the
HealthPlus trade name. As at 31 March 2017, there
were 11 retail outlets (including a HealthPlus shop at
St. Teresa’s Hospital in Kowloon) and 1 service centre in
operation.

During the year under review, one shop has been closed
and conversely, one new shop has been opened to
address the needs of the Group’s customers. The new
shop is located in Metro City Plaza, Tseung Kwan O.

The “Lingzhi Master” series, including Ganoderma
Bioactive Essence, Ganoderma Spore Bioactive Lipid and
Ganoderma Spores, have been awarded the “STC tested
Mark” since June 2014. “Buyickfong 28 Chinese Herbal
Soup for Postnatal Women” has also been awarded the
"STC tested Mark"” since November 2012.

In respect of the e-Commerce business, the Group has
capitalised on its social media platform to conduct
marketing activities and customer services, as well as to
improve customer relationships and disseminate product
information. The platform also provides a convenient
means by which customers can make purchases,
unrestricted by time or location.
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Outlook

There are several market drivers for our health product
business, such as growing aging population, rising wealth
of Hong Kong citizens, increasing health consciousness,
developing brand awareness of our products over the
years, and establishment of e-commercial channel to
promote sales. On the other hand, it also faces many risk
factors such as fierce competition, high rental charges
and operating costs for shops, and decrease in inbound
tourism causing decrease in customers.

The Group, in its commitment to developing the Health
Products Division, will leverage both traditional and
modern channels to engage customers. In respect of the
latter, it will strengthen and upgrade its e-commerce
platform for attracting health-conscious customers
of all ages. The Group will also continue its focus
on distributing Chinese and Western supplements
via different retail chains and online platforms to
maximise market penetration as well as to enhance
brand visibility. Underpinning such activities will be the
sourcing of premium health products, bolstering ties with
longstanding customers and forging relationships with
new customers.
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SUMMARY OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017, Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recorded turnover of
HK$3,216.1 million, up 22.6% from HK$2,623.0 million
recorded in the previous financial year. Consolidated
profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year amounted to HK$516.9 million (2016: HK$635.7
million). The decline was mainly due to the exceptionally
large gain on disposal of a development project (pieces
of agricultural land at D.D. 129, Lau Fau Shan in Yuen
Long) through disposal of a subsidiary in the preceding
year which net off an increase of gain on change in fair
value of the investment properties of the Group and
increase in share of profit of joint ventures for the year
ended 31 March 2017.

The basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share for the year were HK51.0 cents and HK50.7 cents,
representing decreases of 36.3% and 35.8% respectively
when compared with HK80.0 cents and HK79.0 cents
respectively last year.

As at 31 March 2017, the net asset value of the Group
amounted to HK$3,066.6 million (2016: HK$2,697.2
million), representing an increase of 13.7% over last
year. Net asset value per share as at 31 March 2017 was
HK$2.95 (2016: HK$2.60).

GROUP LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The Group’'s liquidity and financing requirements are
regularly reviewed.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

$ 25 el

RiRE=E

BE-_Z—tHF=Z=A=Z=+—-—HLEE"
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited ( &
BRIZBEZERAERAR) (RAA7F])REKH
BAR (RBAIAEE] ) BELEXEERY
3,216,100,0007T 8 E — B BUEF E 2 B ¥
2,623,000,0007T £ F22.6% ° AN B HEHE ALE
I FERERE R BB %516,900,000T (= F
— 7N 1 78 %635,700,0007T) B TIEE
HRE—FEEBHE—RBNBATREE
A TERZILLE2HME1295 2 & TiRE
¥+ HBEEEEFNERRRE B
BRLENBREZE_Z—tF=A=+—8H
LFEREBRENECATEHESH 2 W
MR e EREERIEM

AEEESREABIALREREBERNEBE
51.01l & B ¥650.740 - B L F 2 5l & 7E#80.0
il K2 75 #579.01L % B8, 236.3% 2 35.8% ©

R-ZZB—tHF=A=+—-H0 FrEEZEEF
B 58 %3,066,600,0007T (ZF—/NF B8
2,697,200,0007T) * B A F I MN13.7% - R =
T—+tHF=A=+-—H EREEFEHBYE
2,957 (=& — /R F : BH2.607T) °

KERBEREMEREF

AEEEHFEERBESRBMEFER-

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4F

43



FINANCIAL REVIEW % [a] JgA

44

For day-to-day liquidity management and to maintain
flexibility in funding, the Group has access to facilities
from banks and an insurance company with an aggregate
amount of HK$3,212.3 million (HK$1,412.3 million was
secured by first charges over certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties, assets classified as
held for sale and bank deposits of the Group), of which
HK$815.1 million bank loans have been drawn down and
approximately HK$615.3 million has been utilised mainly
for the issuance of letters of credit and performance
bonds as at 31 March 2017. The bank loans under these
banking facilities bear interests at prevailing market
interest rates.

The Group follows a prudent policy in managing its cash
balance, and endeavours to maintain its sound cash flow
generating capability, its ability to take on investments
and acquisition projects, in order to enhance shareholder
wealth. The total cash and bank balances of the Group
amounted to HK$840.1 million as at 31 March 2017
(2016: HK$1,221.3 million), and accounted for 44.0% of
the current assets (2016: 60.1%).

During the year, the Group has a net cash inflow of
HK$166.4 million in its operating activities (mainly due
to the decrease in properties held for sale and increase
in trade and other payables), a net cash outflow of
HK$460.0 million in its investing activities (mainly due
to net cash outflows on acquisitions of subsidiaries and
loans to joint ventures, netting off net cash inflows
on disposal of subsidiaries), and a net cash outflow of
HK$86.3 million in its financing activities (mainly due to
the dividends paid to shareholders, repayment of bank
loans and purchase of shares for the purpose of share
award scheme netting off new bank and other loans
raised). As at 31 March 2017, the Group was in a net
cash position, calculated on the basis of total cash and
bank balances less total bank and other loans. As at year-
end date, the Group was with a net current liabilities
of HK$7.9 million (2016: net current assets of HK$257.0
million) and the current ratio (current assets divided by
current liabilities) was 1.00 time (2016: 1.14 times).
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With its cash holdings and available facilities from banks
and an insurance company, the Group’s liquidity position
will remain healthy in the coming year, with sufficient
financial resources to meet its obligations, operation and
future development requirements.

TREASURY POLICY

The aim of the Group’s treasury policy is to minimise its
exposure to fluctuations in the exchange rate and not to
engage in any highly leveraged or speculative derivative
products. Treasury transactions unrelated to underlying
financial exposure are not undertaken. Foreign currency
exposures of the Group arise mainly from the purchase
of goods. The Group will determine if any hedging is
required, on an individual basis, depending upon the size
and nature of the exposure, and the prevailing market
circumstances.

In order to enhance the deployment of internal funds
with maximum benefit, to achieve better risk control, and
to minimise cost of funds, the Group's treasury activities
are centralised and scrutinised by the top management.

The surplus cash which is generally placed with reputable
financial institutions is mostly denominated in Hong
Kong dollar. Most of the income, expenses, assets
and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. The Group therefore does not have any
significant exposure to gains or losses arising from the
movement of foreign currency exchange rate against the
Hong Kong dollar.

SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS

At the year-end date, shareholders’ funds of the Group
were HK$3,066.6 million including reserves of HK$2,962.8
million, an increase of HK$369.1 million from HK$2,593.7
million at 31 March 2016. On that basis, the consolidated
net asset value of the Group as at 31 March 2017 was
HK$2.95 per share, compared to the consolidated net
asset value of HK$2.60 per share as at 31 March 2016. The
increase in shareholders’ funds was mainly attributable
to profits retained after the payments of dividends and
exercise of share options netting off shares purchased for
share award scheme during the year.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group intends to keep an appropriate mix of equity
and debt to ensure an efficient capital structure over
time. As at 31 March 2017, the Group borrowed Hong
Kong dollar loans amounting to HK$815.1 million from
the banks (at 31 March 2016: HK$764.8 million). The
borrowings have been used as general working capital
for financing the properties for development and
investment purposes over the years. The maturity profile
of the loans spread over a period of five years with
HK$428.0 million repayable within the first year, HK$40.0
million repayable within the second year, HK$347.1
million repayable within the third to fifth years. Bank
loans that are repayable more than one year after the
end of the reporting period but contain a repayment on
demand clause with carrying amount of HK$387.1 million
have been classified as current liabilities. Interest is based
on Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate plus a competitive
margin. Other loan of Renminbi 6.3 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$7.0 million) (at 31 March 2016: nil) was
repayable within one year and interest bearing at a fixed
interest rate of 4.9% per annum.

MAJOR ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On 8 August 2016, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Esteemed Virtue Limited, entered into
a sale and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Befit Limited together with the shareholder’s loan, at
a cash consideration of approximately HK$150,129,000.
The acquisition was completed on 7 October 2016. The
major asset of Befit Limited is an investment property
representing an en-bloc industrial property (now known
as “"West Castle”) situated in Kwai Chung, Hong Kong.
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On 28 December 2016, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Great Practice Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
independent third parties to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Honour Tower Holdings Limited
("Honour Tower"”) together with its wholly owned
subsidiary, Westpac Limited, (collectively referred to as
“Honour Tower Group”) and Reliable Worldwide Limited
(“Reliable Worldwide"”) together with its wholly owned
subsidiary, Golden Years Limited (collectively referred to
as “Reliable Worldwide Group”) at a cash consideration
of approximately HK$341,609,000, representing
HK$341,920,000 adjusted by the net current asset values
of Honour Tower Group and Reliable Worldwide Group
on the completion date. The acquisition was completed
on 27 February 2017. The major asset of Honour Tower
Group and Reliable Worldwide Group is an investment
property representing an en-bloc residential property
(how known as “West Park”) situated in Sham Shui Po,
Hong Kong.

On 8 February 2017, a direct wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to dispose of the entire
issued share capital of Senior Rich Development Limited
(“Senior Rich”). Senior Rich is engaged in property
investment. The major assets of Senior Rich represented
various lots situated at D.D.128, Deep Bay Road in Yuen
Long, Hong Kong. The cash consideration for the disposal
is HK$249,829,000. The disposal was completed on 31
March 2017.

COLLATERAL

As at 31 March 2017, certain leasehold land and
buildings, investment properties, assets classified as
held for sale of the Group, at the carrying value of
approximately HK$1,908.8 million (at 31 March 2016:
HK$1,785.4 million), were pledged to the banks to secure
the Hong Kong dollar loans of HK$605.1 million (at 31
March 2016: HK$634.8 million). In addition, bank deposits
of HK$139.3 million (at 31 March 2016: HK$200.9 million)
were pledged for the banking facility granted to a joint
venture.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal actions in
respect of allegations of copyright infringement and
defamation have been taken against certain subsidiaries
of the Company carrying on health products business.
No further steps have been taken against the Group
in respect of such actions after the court hearing for
directions to appoint experts and exchange witness
statements since 2004. At 31 March 2017, the directors
are of the opinion that in view of the uncertainty of
the outcome, it is not practicable to assess the financial
effect.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had an outstanding
corporate guarantee issued to a bank in respect of
the banking facilities granted to a joint venture of
approximately HK$53,181,000 (2016: HK$34,312,000),
which represents the Group’s proportionate share of
the banking facilities utilised as at 31 March 2017. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values
of these financial guarantee contracts are insignificant
at initial recognition and no provision for financial
guarantee contracts has been made at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had an outstanding
counter indemnity in favour of the partners of a joint
venture of HK$62,000,000 (2016: nil) which represents
the Group’s maximum liability. This maximum liability
was determined between the parties to the counter
indemnity with reference to the Group’s proportionate
share of estimated amount of interest payment under
the banking facilities granted to the joint venture
and the cost overrun in respect of the renovation,
management and marketing and leasing of the property
held by the joint venture. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the fair value of the counter indemnity
is insignificant at initial recognition and no provision
for counter indemnity has been made at the end of the
reporting period.
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As at 31 March 2017, the Group had outstanding
performance bonds in respect of construction contracts
amounting to approximately HK$501,210,000 (2016:
HK$576,413,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following commitment:
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As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had also
committed with other joint venturers to contribute
the joint ventures by means of shareholder’s loans
proportioned to its equity interest in the joint ventures to
finance the working capital of the joint ventures.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

The Group is implementing a manpower policy that
aims to maximise the output of existing staff resources
in order to achieve productivity gains. We believe that
through improving our staff’s job-related competencies,
our overall operational efficiency can be improved
without the need for substantial increase in headcount.
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The number of full time monthly employees of the
Group, excluding its joint ventures, was 982 (of which 169
employees were in Mainland China) as at 31 March 2017.
In addition to salary payment, other benefits include
provident fund schemes, discretionary bonuses, on-the-
job training, education sponsorship subsidies, a medical
insurance scheme, a group life and personal accident
insurance scheme.

Employees and directors are remunerated according
to individual and the Group’s performance, industry
trends, prevailing market conditions, the nature of the
job and value creation. The Group recruits and promotes
individuals based on their development potential, merits
and competencies, and ensures that their remuneration
packages are at a reasonable market level. The directors,
full time employees and consultants of the Group are
entitled to participate in the share option scheme and
share award scheme of the Company. The principal terms
of the share option scheme and share award scheme are
summarised in the Report of the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Good corporate governance practices are crucial to
enhancing shareholder value. With this in mind, the
directors of the Company are keen on maintaining high
standards of corporate governance. This is reflected in
terms of a quality board of directors (the “Board”) and
the emphasis on transparency and accountability.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2017, the
Company has complied with all the Code Provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”), except for
the following deviations in respect of which remedial
steps for compliance have been taken or considered
reasons are given below:

(@) Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates
that non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The
non-executive directors (including the independent
non-executive directors) of the Company are not
appointed for a specific term. However, pursuant to
the Articles of Association of the Company, at each
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third
of the directors, including executive, non-executive
and independent non-executive directors shall
retire from office by rotation, and every director
shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the corporate governance practices of the Company
are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.
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(b)

(@

Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code stipulates that
independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding
of the views of shareholders. Mr. Cha Mou Sing,
Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, both
being the non-executive directors of the Company,
as well as Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, were
unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 23 August 2016 (the “2016 AGM")
as they had other important engagements. Details
of the directors’ attendance record of meetings
are set out in the “Attendance Record of Directors
and Committee Members” section of this report. To
ensure compliance with the CG Code, the Company
has taken and will continue to take all reasonable
measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious
way that all directors can attend the general
meeting(s).

Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates
that the Chairman of the Board should attend
the annual general meeting. The Chairman of the
Board, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, was unable to
attend the 2016 AGM as he had other important
engagement. However, the Managing Director,
present at the 2016 AGM, took the chair of that
meeting in accordance with Article 78 of the Articles
of Association of the Company.

(b)

(9
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Company and oversees the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), and assumes
responsibility for strategy formulation, corporate
governance and performance monitoring. It develops and
reviews the Group's strategies and policies, formulates
business plans and evaluates performance of the
operating divisions against agreed budgets and targets
through regular discussion on key and appropriate issues
in a timely manner. It also exercises a number of reserved
powers, including (i) approval of annual and interim
results and significant changes in accounting policy or
capital structure, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (in particular those which
may involve conflict of interests), major capital projects;
(ii) setting the Group’s remuneration policy, dividend
policy; (iii) appointment of directors; and (iv) supervision
of management and other significant financial and
operational matters.

The day-to-day management, administration and
operation of the Company are delegated to the
Managing Director and the senior management, who
fulfill their duties within their scope of authority and
responsibility. Divisional heads are responsible for
different aspects of the businesses. Major functions
delegated to management include preparation of annual
and interim results; execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board; implementation of
adequate risk management and internal control systems;
and compliance with the relevant statutory requirements.

All directors are kept informed of major changes that
may affect the Group’s businesses on a timely basis, and
can avail themselves of the advice and services of the
Company Secretary so that the Board procedures and
all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
director can have recourse to independent professional
advice in performing his duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making request to the Board.

EEE
EEgREEE

EXS8FFERERAQNT UREEEALD
AREMBLR ([AEBEDHNEK . FEE
FER CEEARERXRR BRRBR
AEBHORBMBR REAXBRRTE B
BEKKEMTREARSESERAZE
EHFIEREIRENEERBER -EEET
STEEETED BREOIERFERPHE
BENBERREREBNEREE ARE
BRAMEZRZG EARZ (LERI KA
HEHRNRZ)REZELRNEE; (VREXSE
B35 B BOR  IR B BUR S (IEEES S R (iv)
EEEEENHEMEZENKENEESH

ARANMAEEE - THREESEERES
SREERSHEEEEE MMESA 2R
WERERHERNH TR BHETEREERE
BREE FEERZANIETIFEESE
2ERPHER BITESSRMBEBRRK
RRZ ETZRNEREERANMPEEZER
B REBITERES-

FEESHSERANETRYELAEEXY
MEREE MATESIAAWENZERER
R EEEERFRABEEENRIERIRA
YESET SNESTRENTERBERG
ESERRBVER BEEBIEENZR

—ERYPHAR BT

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4

53



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1> 2% 1A it &

54

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover
for directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal
actions against its directors and senior management
arising out of corporate activities.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary
balance of skills and experience desirable for effective
leadership of the Company and independence in decision
making. The biographies of the directors (and their
relationships, if any) are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual
report, which demonstrate a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors, representing at least one-third
of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
directors, namely Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications and accounting or
related financial management expertise.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report,
the Board of the Company comprises the following
directors:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun
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The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in
all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time.

Coming from diverse business and professional
backgrounds, the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors bring a wealth of
expertise and experience to the Board, which contributes
to the success of the Group. Through active participation
in Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues
involving potential conflict of interests and serving
on Board committees, all of them make various
contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

All independent non-executive directors are free from
any business or other relationships with the Company.
The Company has received written annual confirmation
of independence from each independent non-executive
director in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has assessed their independence and
concluded that all independent non-executive directors
are independent within the meaning of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson (Chairman of the Company)
indirectly owns as to 50% interest and Mr. Wong Sue Toa,
Stewart (Managing Director of the Company) together
with Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai (spouse of Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart) indirectly own as to an aggregate of the
remaining 50% interest in Queentex Industries Limited
and its subsidiaries. If in case a conflict of interest arises,
those directors or any of their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) who have a material interest will
abstain from voting on the relevant resolution(s).

Save for the information (including the relationships,
if any, among the directors) as disclosed in the
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section under the “Report of the
Directors” of this annual report and the business
relationship between the Chairman and the Managing
Director as disclosed above, there is no other financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship
among the directors and between the Chairman and the
Managing Director.
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Board Diversity

A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
was adopted on 26 March 2013 by the Board and the
Nomination Committee will review at least annually
whether board diversity can be achieved. A summary of
the Board Diversity Policy is set out below:

When reviewing board diversity, the Nomination
Committee will consider board diversity from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service, which form the measureable objectives of the
Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will
also monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity
Policy and review and recommend revisions of the Board
Diversity Policy (where appropriate) to the Board to
ensure its effectiveness.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
20 March 2012 to deal with matters in relation to the
appointment and re-election of directors.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Nomination
Committee will identify suitable individuals by making
reference to criteria including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge, length
of service and time commitments of the proposed
candidates, the Company’s needs and other relevant
statutory requirements and regulations. New directors
are sought mainly through referrals or internal
promotion.

The Company's circular sent together with this annual
report contains detailed information of the directors
standing for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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Chairman and Managing Director

The positions of the Chairman and Managing Director
are held by Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Wong Sue
Toa, Stewart respectively. The Board has adopted a set
of written terms setting out the roles and duties of the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

The Chairman provides leadership for the effective
functioning of the Board in the overall strategic planning
and development of the Group. With the support of
the Managing Director and senior management, the
Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
directors receive adequate, complete and reliable
information in a timely manner and appropriate briefing
on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved by the
Board. He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day
management and operations. The Managing Director
is also responsible for formulating the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

Directors’ Induction and Development

Every newly appointed director is provided with
necessary induction and information to ensure that
he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and businesses as well as his responsibilities
under relevant statutes, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company Secretary from time to time provides
the directors with updates on latest development and
changes to the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements.
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During the year ended 31 March 2017, all directors have
participated in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A
summary of training received by the directors is as

follows:

REBEZZ-—tHF=ZA=+—-HLEFER 2
EESEAZUESBEEXRURUBREREHN
PRI R e pE - EE BN HRHE
mE

Training Areas

B EE
Accounting/
Corporate Financial/
Governance/ Management

Updates on Laws, or Other
Rules & Regulations Professional Skills

EER SRR

3 B B 38 451 B9 et Big BEER
REEAR HihHEH g
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FHEEE v v
(Managing Director) (BEFHLE)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager) Bt Z5t4 (H4EHE) v/ v
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson EMBEE (£F) v v
(Chairman)
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ERMELE v/ v/
Independent Non-executive BYEHTES
Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe BRAA{E T4 v v
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2| FEfE+ v v
Dr. Sun Tai Lun BAmEL v v/
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Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the guideline for securities transactions by directors and
employees who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2017. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the employees was noted by the Company.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, namely Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, is
also the Financial Controller of the Company. He has the
day-to-day knowledge of the affairs of the Company.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policies
and procedures are duly followed. He also acts as the
secretary of the Board committees to ensure that all
records of meeting proceedings, discussion and decision
of such Board committees are properly kept. The
Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Company
Secretary has completed at least 15 hours’ professional
training by attending the continuing professional
development programmes as well as seminars covering
regulatory updates and professional knowledge about
company secretary duties organised by professional
bodies.

All directors could have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure that the Board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations,
are followed.

HEXZNEESTA
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BOARD AND COMMITTEES
Board Proceedings

The Board held four regular meetings and five
non-regular meetings during the year ended 31 March
2017 and the principal businesses transacted include:

o Assessing business performance and planning future
business directions;

e Approving interim and final results and reports;

° Approving business acquisition and property
transactions;

e Adopting the risk management policy;

o Approving the adjustment on the remuneration of
independent non-executive directors;

o Determining payment of dividend; and

e  Adopting the share award scheme and approving
the grant of award shares.

Meeting schedules are normally made available to the
directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings
are given to all the directors at least 14 days before the
meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all the directors at
least 3 days before each Board meeting or committee
meeting to keep the directors apprised of the latest
developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board
and each director also have separate and independent
access to the senior management whenever necessary.
The directors receive a regular supply of information
about the business activities, financial highlights and
operations review so that they are well informed prior to
participation in Board meetings.

EEEREAE

EETENZE
BE-SE—tE=-A=+—RHALEFE B2
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R YRBESERZESTRETHED
BSREZERESR USESHNEB R AGEHAE
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The Financial Controller attended all regular Board
meetings and when necessary, other Board and
committee meetings to advise on business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance,
corporate governance and other major aspects of the
Company.

According to current Board practice, any transaction with
a material amount will be considered and dealt with
by the Board at a duly convened Board meeting. The
Company'’s Articles of Association also contain provisions
requiring directors to abstain from voting and not to
be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
transactions in which such directors or any of their close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have a material
interest.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been
established since December 2001. The Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive directors
and Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit
Committee is a partner or former partner of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s existing external
auditor. Members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter (Chairman of the committee)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*
Dr. Sun Tai Lun?*

# Independent Non-executive Director

In March 2016, the Board approved and adopted a
revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee to
include review duties on risk management and internal
control systems, details of which are set out in the “Risk
Management and Internal Control” section of this report.
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The major duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

o Reviewing the financial statements and reports and
considering any significant or unusual items raised
by the qualified accountant or external auditor
before submission to the Board;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor, approving their remuneration
and terms of engagement and reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor’s independence and
objectivity;

o Reviewing and reporting to the Board on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, with the
assistance of the Risk Management Committee and
the outsourced internal audit function;

o Reviewing the Group’s operating, financial and
accounting policies and practices; and

o Reporting to the Board on the matters in the CG
Code.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
year and the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing and recommending for the Board’s
approval the financial results and reports for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and for the six months
ended 30 September 2016;

o Reviewing the continuing connected transactions of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2016;

o Recommending to the Board of the re-appointment
of external auditor for the year ended 31 March
2017;

EREEENETERENT
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o Reviewing certain aspects of the internal control
systems of the Group;

o Recommending for the Board’s approval the
adoption of risk management policy; and

o Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
evaluating, establishing and maintaining effective
risk management and internal control systems of
the Group.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended
31 March 2017 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was
established on 20 March 2012. Members of the
Nomination Committee are as follows:

Mr. Chan Pak Joe (Chairman of the committee)*
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Dr. Sun Tai Lun#

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

* Independent Non-executive Director

The major duties of the Nomination Committee include
the following:

° Reviewing the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually and making recommendations on any
proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company'’s corporate strategy;

o Identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and selecting or making
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship;

e Assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors of the Company;
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Making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors of the
Company and succession planning for directors of
the Company in particular the Chairman and the
Managing Director; and

Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year and the major works performed are as follows:

Reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

Assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive directors of the Company;

Reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the re-appointment of directors who are
subject to retirement from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company; and

Reviewing the Board Diversity Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Company set up the Remuneration Committee in
December 2004 which replaced the Bonus Committee
established in December 2001. Members of the

Remuneration Committee are as follows:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun (Chairman of the committee)*
Mr. Chan Pak Joe*

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter*

Mr. Tai Sai Ho

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart

* Independent Non-executive Director
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The major duties of the Remuneration Committee
include the following:

o Formulating remuneration policy and practices and
determining the remuneration packages of the
executive directors and the senior management; and

o Ensuring that no director or any of his associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) will participate in
deciding his own remuneration.

In determining the remuneration, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed background information such as key
economic indicators, market/sector trend, headcount and
staff costs.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during
the year and the major works performed are as follows:

o Reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of independent
non-executive directors with reference to the time
and efforts involved in discharging their duties and
the prevailing market conditions;

o Making recommendations to the Board on the share
award scheme and the grant of award shares to
directors and other eligible employees of the Group;

o Reviewing and determining the change of
remuneration packages for the executive directors,
senior management and other employees of the
Group for the year commencing 1 April 2017; and

o Approving the maximum bonus pool and the actual
bonus amount to be distributed to the executive
directors, senior management and other employees
of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

FHEESENETERENT:

. ﬁiﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁﬁ&#iﬁ?%%ﬁ
BREEAENHME

s BEULRBEESIHMEMHEA(EE
REmRA) SREEENSFHMN -

%’r@}ﬂiﬁﬁ’fﬁﬁ ¢: S RER 0 E TR
I WS TREY RETHERETH
mu%ﬁmo

RER FMEESSHBTTHREE BT
WEBITHEWT:

e RERMNESSEZBUFYPITESZ
¥ KSZRTHBERIFEZEFER
BHURBRITHR

e FBRUORBFERKRHRBROTAE
BESRAMSERES AESFSRN
e

o MENNEEAEEANTES SREEA
Eﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁii—tiﬂﬁ—ﬁﬁ

o HERSHNEARBREZE=-Z—tHF
ZA=+—-HLEFE B2 KEAEEH
TES SREEAENEMESNER
TEALFRER

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4F

65



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1> 24 1R it &

Other Board Committees

In addition to delegating specific responsibilities to the
Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

HtWESZ8S

ESERTHRTELZES REZEENRH
MEESREREN FTRLTUTESES

Remuneration Committee, the Board also established the g:

following Board committees:

Name of Committee Composition of Committee Role and Function of Committee

EZESEB EZEEZHEM ZEECvABRBE

General Business Committee All the executive directors of To handle the Company’s
(established in April 2002) the Company general business within a

—REKEES KRR EBHITES designated threshold
(R-ZBEZEZFIAKT) BEAREECHEAN 2 —RSEH

Property Acquisition/Disposal All the executive directors of To handle the Company’s
Committee (established in the Company acquisition/disposal of
April 2002) RAARZEBHITES property within a designated

Wi, HEVEEES threshold
(R=ZBEZEZFHAKT) REARKE HEREE

SBER 2P

Board Committee for the Share  All the executive directors and To handle operational and
Award Scheme (the “SAS Company Secretary of the administrative matters of the
Committee”) (established in Company share award scheme
November 2016) ARABEZRBHTESRLAINE EREROCEBRTIZBRER

RORBFE<EEEES
(TRHRBFIEES])
(R=F—-—ANFt+—FAHKL)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the General
Business Committee held one meeting for approving a
land exchange, while a meeting of the SAS Committee
was held to deal with the establishment of a trust for the
share award scheme.

THEE

BE_Z-tHF=-RA=1T—-HLFE —R=E
BEESRTT —REBUAELHRIR
BRORBHEEETRTT —RERNEE
LR REET B2 EFEEE -
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Attendance Record of Directors and Committee

Members

The attendance record of each director at annual general
meeting, Board and committee meetings held during the

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1> 24 1R &

EERZEEHEHERLE

BEBHEBE-_Z-—tF=ZA=+—HL
FERETHNRRBFAE EBENREEET

year ended 31 March 2017 is set out below: ENEHETHEIRIOT :
Annual Audit Nomination  Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting' Meetings" Meetings" Meeting" Meetings'
ENZEE REZEE FHzEe
Name of Directors EEnR RRBEFAE EZg83 ga" =t =
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, ERBE L 0N 719 N/AL N/A N/AL
Payson* (Chairman) (%) AEA ~ER ~ER
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, FHEEE 11 %9 N/A® 11 4/4
Stewart (Managing (EZHLTE) FER
Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General ~ Bt Z%4 17 99 N/A® 17 4/4
Manager) (48457 ) FER
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, ERBRE 01 2/9 N/A® N/A® N/A®
Johnson* TE R TE A TER
Mr. Chan Pak Joe* BRAEE S n 8/9 33 17 4/4
Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter* 2 7EEL 0/1 719 33 n 4/4
Dr. Sun Tai Lun* BAfmEL 11 8/9 33 11 4/4
Notes: Fff

The annual general meeting was held on 23 August 2016. .

The auditor of the Company, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
attended such meeting.

During the year, 4 regular Board meetings were held.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter was the Chairman of the Audit
Committee.

Mr. Chan Pak Joe was the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun was the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Non-executive Director
Independent Non-executive Director

The director was not a member of the relevant committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board oversees the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviews their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. During the year,
the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee, has conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The Group’s risk management
and internal control systems are designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss; to manage rather than completely
eliminate the risk of system failure; and to assist in the
achievement of the Group’s agreed objectives and goals.
The risk management and internal control systems of the
Group are considered effective and adequate.

During the year and subsequent to the year end, the
Board engaged external consultants and professionals
to assist the Company in developing an enterprise risk
management framework and performing risk assessment
and to conduct an agreed review over the Group's
internal control systems for evaluating the effectiveness
of the systems. No significant risk issues were identified
and appropriate measures have been taken to address
the identified areas for improvement. The Company
has adopted a risk management policy and formed the
Risk Management Committee chaired by the Managing
Director and with members comprising the General
Manager and various divisions’ senior staff members.
Systems and procedures are put in place to identify,
evaluate, manage and monitor the risks of different
businesses and activities. Regular monitoring of the
risk management and internal control systems is mainly
performed by each of the key divisions/business units
who are required to conduct risk self-assessment and to
submit risk assessment results and action plans to the
Risk Management Committee. The Audit Committee and
the Risk Management Committee monitor and assess
the risk management systems and the risk management
issues, support and advice from external consultants and
professionals (internal audit function as outsourced) to
perform independent reviews on the risk management
systems are sought as and when required. Review on the
risk management and internal control systems has to be
performed at least annually to assess the effectiveness of
the systems in monitoring and managing risks.
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The Company has also maintained a tailored governance
structure with clear lines of responsibility and
appropriate delegation of responsibility and authority
to the senior management, who are accountable for
the conduct and performance of the respective business
divisions under their supervision.

The directors review monthly management reports on
the financial results, statistics and project progress of
each business division. Monthly management meetings
are held to review business performance against budgets,
forecasts and risk management strategies. Any major
variances are highlighted for investigation and control
purposes.

A centralised cash management system is maintained to
oversee the Group's investment and borrowing activities.
There are established guidelines and procedures for the
approval and control of expenditures. The aim is to keep
the expenditure level in line with the annual budget
and within the cost budget of an approved project.
Expenditures are subject to overall budget control with
various approval levels set by reference to the level of
responsibility of each manager and officer. Depending
on the nature and value, procurement of certain goods
and services are required to go through the tendering
process. No individual in the Group, irrespective of their
rank and position, are allowed to dominate the entire
expenditure process from commitment to payment.

The Group also regulates the handling and the
dissemination of inside information to the public in an
equal and timely manner in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations. Senior management executives
of the financial control functions of the Group are
delegated with responsibilities to control and monitor
the proper procedures to be observed on the disclosure
of inside information.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements, Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted, appropriate
accounting policies have been applied, and reasonable
and prudent judgments and estimates have been made.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor on
the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section of
this annual report.

AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 is set out
below:

HEaMBERRZRE

ESELERUGEUBRR -EREGSH
BHEREF EETCRATBUHERELEL
FR&E 2SR LEHSEMEENH
i 2 A 5t e

IBEREMRADAGEMBRRZBEE
FHIRAFR [ BURBEARS ] — R

1 B B % B

BE_ZE—tE=A=1t—HLEE KAT
TATINEZEEN 2 F BN T

HK$'000
BEFTT
Audit Services EZRB 3,150
Non-audit Services: FEERTS -
Corporate finance, risk management and internal tERE REBEER
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum
for exchange of views between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen
of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee, or in their absence, other
members of the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are
available to answer questions at the shareholders’
meetings.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’
meetings on each substantial issue, including the election
of individual directors.

To ensure compliance with the CG Code, the notice of
meeting, the annual report and the circular containing
information on the proposed resolutions will be sent to
shareholders at least twenty clear business days before
the meeting. Voting at annual general meeting or other
general meeting will be conducted by way of a poll.
The results of the poll will be published on the day of
shareholders’ meeting by posting on both the Stock
Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

General meetings shall be convened:

(@) on the written requisition of any two members of
the Company deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin
Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin,
Hong Kong), specifying the objects of the meeting
and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company; or
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(b) on the written requisition of any one member of
the Company which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee) deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block
B, Shatin Industrial Centre, 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Shatin, Hong Kong), specifying the objects of the
meeting and signed by the requisitionist, provided
that such requisitionist held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene the
meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
the meeting may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the date of deposit of
the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for Nomination of Director

Any shareholder who wishes to nominate a person to
stand for election as a director at general meeting, the
following documents must be validly served on the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal office in
Hong Kong (Unit 1, 4/F, Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, Hong Kong) within the
period commencing on the day after despatch of the
notice of a general meeting appointed for election of
director and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date
of such meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the shareholder of his/
her intention to propose such person for election
(the “Nominated Candidate”);

(ii) notice in writing signed by the Nominated
Candidate of his/her willingness to be elected; and
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(iii) the biographical details of the Nominated
Candidate as required under Rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules for publication by the Company.

Constitutional Documents

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2017.

Shareholders’ and Other Stakeholders’ Enquiries

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may communicate
with the Board by addressing their enquiries and
concerns to the Company Secretary through the
following channels:

By mail: Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
Attention: Company Secretary

Unit 1, 4/F, Block B,

Shatin Industrial Centre,

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit,

Shatin, Hong Kong

By email: info@hanison.com

By telephone: (852) 2414 3889

By fax: (852) 2490 3341

In addition, if shareholders have any enquiries about
their shareholdings and entitlement to dividend, they
can contact the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company using the details below:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8628

Fax: (852) 2865 0990

To promote effective communication, the Company
also maintains a website at www.hanison.com, where
extensive information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial
information and other information are posted.
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The directors present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures are set out in notes 49, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities
of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
including the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development
in the Group’s business are set out in the Chairman’s
Statement (on pages 6 to 11), Operations Review (on
pages 12 to 42), Financial Review (on pages 43 to 50) and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Financial Highlights (on page 5) and Operations
Review (on page 12) of this annual report.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management and
particulars of the Group’s material events occurred
after the year end date are disclosed in notes 48 and 50
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2017 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on page 124.

An interim dividend of HK2.2 cents per share amounting
to HK$21,966,000 were paid to the shareholders during
the year.

The Board has recommended the declaration of a final
dividend of HK5.0 cents per share for the year ended 31
March 2017 amounting to not less than HK$51,900,000
to the shareholders whose names appear on the branch
register of members in Hong Kong and the principal
register of members in the Cayman Islands on 31 August
2017. Excluding the dividends payable for shares held in
trust under the Share Award Scheme as described below
amounting to HK$2,585,000, the net dividends payable
will be not less than HK$49,315,000. The proposed final
dividend will be paid on 13 September 2017 following
approval at the annual general meeting.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the investment properties of
the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 128.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders as at 31 March 2017 comprised the
aggregate of share premium and retained profits of
HK$644,496,000 (2016: HK$665,875,000).

Under the Articles of Association of the Company,
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserves
set aside from profits which the directors of the Company
determine is no longer needed. With the sanction of an
ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account subject to a solvency
test as set out in section 34 of the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (the “CSR
Committee”), comprising the senior management of
the Group and the representatives of different divisions,
is delegated by the Company with responsibilities to
review, monitor and make recommendations where
appropriate to improve the Group’s environmental
and social policies and performance, and to ensure
compliance with the relevant environmental and social
policies, laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group’s business operations. In addition
to those information about the CSR Committee as well
as the Group's environmental and social policies and
performance during the year ended 31 March 2017 as
disclosed herein, further details can be found in the
Company'’s annual Corporate Social Responsibility Report,
which will be available on the respective websites of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the Company in September 2017.
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Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group has implemented Integrated (Quality and
Environmental) Management System Policy (1ISO14001)
certified by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency and
Energy Management System Policy (ISO50001) certified
by Hong Kong Certification Services International Limited
since 2002 and 2013 respectively. These policies set the
direction and guidelines for corresponding subsidiaries of
the Company to follow on gradual basis.

Apart from complying with the laws and regulations
about environmental issues, we implement Integrated
(Quality and Environmental) Management System Policy
to ensure the environmental consideration is an integral
part of our daily activities, and to take measures to
minimise any adverse impact on the environment and
to our community. We commit to protect the natural
environment and resources by combating climate change
and preserving the biodiversity and ecosystem functions.
In terms of energy management, the Group aims at
achieving higher level of environmental and energy
efficiency performance through establishing a framework
and committing to continual improvement of our
performance in relation to pollution, hazard prevention
and energy consumption.

During the year, our environmental performances
are recognised by some external organisations. For
instances, we have received the Hong Kong Construction
Environmental Award issued by Hong Kong Construction
Association; the Indoor Air Quality Certificate (Excellence
Class) issued by Environmental Protection Department of
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “HKSAR Government”); and the Outstanding
Environmental Management and Performance Award in
22nd Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme from
Development Bureau of the HKSAR Government.
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Social Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to complying with the relevant
social policies related to its business operations as set by
the government in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC"). Corporate Social Responsibility
Statement established in 2012 has outlined the Group’s
determination, direction and means on carrying out the
Group’s missions and values. We have been developing
in a sustainable manner and growing our businesses in
partnership with various stakeholders.

During the year, we have increased community
investment activities targeting underprivileged, elderly,
children, youth and schools. There were elderly visits,
home maintenance services to underprivileged, children
outdoor activity, school-site art activities, and financial
sponsorship to a few identified non-governmental
organisations. Our corporate volunteer team has also
been formed and grows gradually with the support from
the Group’s staff and their family members.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To cope with the increasing complexity of business and
regulatory landscape, the Group has dedicated greater
effort towards meeting new or revised regulatory
requirements and rising stakeholder expectations. The
Group has conducted on-going review of the newly
enacted or revised laws and regulations affecting the
operations of the Group and provides relevant trainings
and guidance to the staff to ensure compliance.

The Group rigorously complies with the applicable laws
of Hong Kong with reference to business processes,
such as buying lawful licenses for software and gears
for intellectual property rights security, and adopting
measures to review and improve employment practices
continually. Since integrity is one of our business values,
we have established internal code of conduct (the “CoC")
stating regulations and guidelines, and education to
prevent corruption in the Group. We also straightly
demand our business partners to follow the CoC as an
usual operating practice.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

To walk out one of our mission “grow our people with
commitment”, we “put our people first” and emphasise
the top priority of our human capital, being the most
valuable assets, in line with other missions in order to
sustain the development of the Group in long run. We
review regularly and provide competitive remuneration
packages, training programmes, and staff engagement
activities to attract and retain employees. During the
year, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
“Share Award Scheme”) under which share awards
were granted to certain employees and directors of the
Group to recognise their contributions. More details
of the Share Award Scheme are set out in the section
headed “Share Award Scheme” below and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group values mutually beneficial long-standing
relationships with business partners. The Group maintains
a good relationship with suppliers and customers via
establishing cooperation strategy with suppliers, and
providing quality services and consumption experiences
to our customers respectively. In addition, we engage our
business partners to collaborate for a better performance
in business operation, environment and community
investment.

We care about community as we are part of community.
The Group encourages staff volunteering and
sponsorship and engages staff in community. We expect
to utilise our Group resources including staff competence
and strengths to make a better Hong Kong. We have had
significant impact on community investment for the year
ended 31 March 2017, which we have larger volunteer
team size and increased number of services.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Share Award Scheme was adopted by the Board
on 28 July 2016 (the “"Adoption Date”) to recognise the
contributions of certain employees and directors of the
Group and help retain them for the continuing operation
and further development of the Group. The Share Award
Scheme shall be valid until 28 July 2019 and is subject
to the administration of the Board and the trustee in
accordance with the rules relating to the Share Award
Scheme and the trust deed.

The Company would contribute a maximum of
HK$74,000,000 to the trust for the purchase of shares
under the Share Award Scheme. The maximum number
of shares which can be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme (the “Award Shares”) is 5% of the number of the
Company'’s shares in issue as at the Adoption Date.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the trustee
purchased an aggregate of 51,700,000 shares of the
Company from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$71,995,000 (including directly
attributable incremental costs) and a total of 51,542,000
shares were granted to 88 eligible participants on 10
March 2017 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
representing approximately 4.97% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2017.

Details of the interests of the directors and chief
executive of the Company in the Award Shares (which
remain unvested) are set out below.
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Name of director BEEHR ERFRBRAOEE
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart ETJEL);%; 12,274,000
Tai Sai Ho Hit= 6,136,000
Cha Mou Sing, Payson EHE 5,178,000
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson ERE 5,178,000
Sun Tai Lun B K fm 1,035,000
Chan Pak Joe (=R 1,035,000
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 2712 828,000

31,664,000

Further details of the Share Award Scheme are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and was terminated on 21
September 2011. Pursuant to the Company’s existing
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was adopted
and became effective on 21 September 2011, all directors
(including independent non-executive directors),
full-time employees and consultants of the Company, its
subsidiaries and/or its associated companies/associates are
eligible to participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the participants
who have been granted options under the Scheme
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interest in the
Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for
the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

(a) Maximum number of shares available for
issuance

The maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the number of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
approval of the Scheme. A total of 48,755,967 shares
of the Company is available for issue under the
Scheme which represents 10% of the number of the
Company’s shares in issue as at the date of adoption
of the Scheme.
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(b)

Upon the refreshment of the Scheme mandate limit
at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 August 2016, the maximum number of new
share options that can be granted under the Scheme
is 103,654,057 (the “Refreshed Share Option Limit"),
representing approximately 9.99% of the number of
the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the number of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.
Taking into account the Refreshed Share Option
Limit to subscribe for 103,654,057 shares and the
14,876,450 shares that may be issued upon exercise
of the outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Scheme, the cumulative
total number of shares that may be issued under
the Scheme will then be 118,530,507 shares,
representing approximately 11.42% of the number
of the Company’s shares in issue as at the date of
this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

(1) The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each participant (including both exercised
and unexercised options) under the Scheme or
any other share option schemes adopted by
the Company in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue unless otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company.

(b)
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14,876,4508% 2 171% > [ERFEZ5T BIIE T A
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(9]

(d)
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(2) Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the "Listing Rules”)), would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to
be granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of the
grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of
the number of the Company’s shares in
issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant in excess of
HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company
who are not connected persons of the
Company as defined in the Listing Rules.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an option
is granted or such shorter period as the Board of
Directors or the relevant committee thereof may
specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an option
must be held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board
of Directors or the relevant committee thereof
must specify the minimum period(s) (if any) and
achievement of performance target(s) (if any), for
which an option must be held before it can be
exercised in whole or in part.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Period open for acceptance of an option

The offer of grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days after
the date of grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

Basis of determining exercise price of the
option

The exercise price of the option shall be no less than
the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day;

(ii) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

(iii)

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will expire on
20 September 2021 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)
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No share option was granted or cancelled in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme during the year. At 31
March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 14,876,450, representing

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS # 37 i 5 &

approximately 1.43% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue at that date.

Details of the movement of share options during the year
and the outstanding share options as at 31 March 2017

under the Scheme were as follows:

FFEIRHREARITEZE
14,876,4508% » (h:Z B BA AR D A C B ITIRD &
B #1.43% o

FABEBRERBZTEH ZHARER
HAE-R-ZT-—tH=A

=t+—H REZ
REZRODEE R

FR ZTEETERECEFHRN=-ZF—+
FZA=1+—HERITEZBEREFBOT

Exercise Balance Exercised Lapsed Balance
price as at during during as at
per share  Exercise period 1.4.2016 the year the year 31.3.2017
Category or name (Note 1) (Note 2) RZB-X% (Note 3) (Noted) R-B—tF
of participants Date of grant SROTEE HEHE mA-H RERTE RERXH =ZA=t+-H
SRERAANE REAH (M) (Wi2) i (Hz23) (Hizt4) &
Directors of the Company
ARRZES
Cha Mou Sing, Payson 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 to 25.11.2019 7,571,000 - - 7,571,000
siE —E-MF BH0%T —E-MET-BZtAHE
T-A=txH ZE-NE+-A=tEH
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 to 25.11.2019 3,785,500 - - 3,785,500
BiE —Z-mE BT —F-NET-AZtARE
T-A=+5xH “B-hEt-AZTER
Chan Pak Joe 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 to 25.11.2019 757,100 (757,100) - -
BRiak —2-ME B0 —EF-MET-A-t+5<AZ
T-A=tXH ZE-nE+-AZTEA
Lau Tze Yiu, Peter 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 to 25.11.2019 581,950 - - 581,950
TR —Z-mF BH0%6T —T-NET-AZtAHE
T-A=+7xH ZE-AE+t-AZTEH
12,695,550 (757,100) - 11,938,450
Employees of the Group 26.11.2014 HK$0.96  26.11.2014 to 25.11.2019 4,486,100 (1,522,675) (25,425) 2,938,000
rEEZESR —2-mF BE0%6T —B-NET-AZtREE
+-B=+x8 “Z-AE+-AZTEA
17,181,650 (2,279,775) (25,425) 14,876,450
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Notes:

1.  The exercise price of outstanding share options has been
adjusted for the effect of the bonus issue and the rights
issue. Details of such adjustment were disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 16 September 2015 and
22 February 2016 respectively.

2. The share options have no vesting period.

3.  The weighted average closing price of the Company’s
shares immediately before the exercise dates of the share
options was HK$1.33 per share.

4, Such share options lapsed in August 2016 pursuant to the
terms of the Scheme as a result of one grantee ceased as
employee of the Group.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, WARRANTS
OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Save as disclosed above, the Company had no
outstanding convertible securities, warrants or similar
rights as at 31 March 2017 and there has been no issue or
exercise of any convertible securities, warrants or similar
rights during the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, save for an aggregate of 51,700,000
shares of the Company purchased on the market by
the trustee of the Share Award Scheme pursuant to
the trust deed and the Share Award Scheme, at a total
consideration of approximately HK$71,995,000 (including
directly attributable incremental costs), neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

By &E
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson

Executive Directors
Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (Managing Director)
Mr. Tai Sai Ho (General Manager)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Pak Joe

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter

Dr. Sun Tai Lun

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, Dr. Sun
Tai Lun and Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election. All remaining directors of the Company
continue in office.

The term of office of each independent non-executive
director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

There is an employment contract entered into between
the Company and Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart for a term
of three years expiring on 11 March 2018. The contract
provides that the Company or Mr. Wong may terminate
the contract for reasons connected with the health of Mr.
Wong which make it impossible for him to work, and in
such event Mr. Wong is entitled to receive a lump sum
payment that equals to his last monthly basic salary plus
last bonus for the remaining term of his employment.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31
March 2017 are set out in note 12(i) to the consolidated
financial statements. For the year ended 31 March 2017,
the emoluments of the senior management, whose
biographical details are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section
below and include three of the five highest paid
individuals analysis presented in note 12(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements, fell within the
following bands:

ESRATIMS

BE-_Z—tH5=ZA=+—HLFE EBZ
EME 2 FHBERINGE BB RRMEE12() ©
BE-Z—+tH5=ZHA=+—-BLFE 54T
BE-F M (HERFRENTXEERS
REEEBER] ETFERERGSMHHRRKM
HRNEENEEBRSFALTINAN=A
AL) B AL TR

Number of Individuals

AE

Emoluments of 2017 2016
Senior Management by Bands EREERE ZF A5 —E—tF —E-REF
HK$500,000 — HK$1,000,000 7 %5500,0007T — 7&#1,000,0007T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 711,000,001t — & #£1,500,0007T 1 4
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7% 1,500,001t — 7 %2,000,0007T 4 1
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 7T — 7 %2,500,0007T - 1
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 712,500,001t — & #£3,000,0007T 4 2
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 7 %53,500,001 7T — 7 %4,000,0007T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 754,000,001 7T — 7 %4,500,0007T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 7 %54,500,001 7T — % %5,000,0007T - 1
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 7 %55,500,001 7T — & %6,000,0007T - 1
UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION RELHHRAE13.51B(1)EHE

PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF
LISTING RULES

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Munsun Capital Group Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, with effect from
23 December 2016.

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson is a director of C.M. Capital
Advisors (HK) Limited.

EEHRAZEHER

ERERAEEBE - E-—R"F+ZA=+=H
EREEREAEREBR AT (—BRBEFT
w28 2BIFRITES-

EWMEHRAEH CM. Capital Advisors (HK)
Limitedz EE °
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Directors

Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson, aged 74, is the Chairman
and non-executive director of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1989 and has extensive experience in
property development. He is the chairman and executive
director of HKR International Limited (“HKRI”). Mr. Cha
is an independent non-executive director of New World
Development Company Limited (“NWDCL"), Eagle Asset
Management (CP) Limited (the Manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust (“CREIT")) and Hongkong
International Theme Parks Limited (owner and operator
of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort), and a director of a
number of public and private companies in Hong Kong
and overseas. During the period from 3 October 2016
to 22 December 2016, Mr. Cha was an independent
non-executive director of Munsun Capital Group Limited
("MCGL"). The securities of HKRI, NWDCL, CREIT and
MCGL are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Cha holds
an honorary doctorate degree of Social Science from
City University of Hong Kong. He is a Justice of the
Peace. He is a member of One Country Two Systems
Research Institute Limited, a governing board member
of China-United States Exchange Foundation, a board
member of the Real Estate Developers Association
of Hong Kong, the chairman of Qiu Shi Science &
Technologies Foundation, a trustee of Sang Ma Trust
Fund and an honorary trustee of Oregon State University
Foundation. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou Daid,
Johnson who is a non-executive director of the Company.
Mr. Cha is also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
(“CCM Trust”), LBJ Regents Limited (“LBJ”) and CCM
Capital Corporation (“CCM Capital”), and the executive
chairman of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”). Each of
CCM Trust, LBJ, CCM Capital and Mingly is a substantial
shareholder of the Company under Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO").
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Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart, aged 71, joined the Group in
1989 and is the Managing Director of the Company. Mr.
Wong also serves as the chairman of the General Business
Committee and the Property Acquisition/Disposal
Committee; and a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Before he joined the Group, he was a director for several
listed companies and a director of HKRI (the securities
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange) until his
resignation in December 2001. Mr. Wong is also a director
of all the subsidiaries of the Group. He has extensive
experience in the construction and real estate fields.
Mr. Wong holds a bachelor degree in science from San
Diego State University and a master degree of science in
civil engineering from Carnegie-Mellon University in the
United States of America. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, aged 65, was appointed as
a non-executive director of the Company in November
2001. Mr. Cha has nearly 40 years of experience in
venture capital and investment management and
is currently a director of C.M. Capital Advisors (HK)
Limited. He is a non-executive director of HKRI and China
International Capital Corporation Limited (the securities
of these companies are listed on the Stock Exchange) and
a director of LBJ and a non-executive director of Mingly.
Each of LBJ and Mingly is a substantial shareholder of
the Company under Part XV of the SFO. Mr. Cha is also
an independent non-executive director of Shanghai
Commercial Bank Limited and a director of a number of
other companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is active
in many non-profit making organizations including Qiu
Shi Science & Technologies Foundation, Moral Education
Concern Group, a member of the Finance Committee
and of the Council of The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. He is a brother of Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson who is the non-executive Chairman of the
Company.

FTHBEE 715 M198IF MALEE 1R
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Mr. Chan Pak Joe, aged 64, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
November 2001. Mr. Chan also serves as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Chan has been an executive director
of The Luk Hoi Tong Company Limited since 1973. Mr.
Chan is the founder of the “Li Zhi Bursary” of Tsinghua
University in the PRC. He is also the Vice-Chairman of
“Love Relay Grant-in-Aid” of Fudan University in the PRC
since September 2005. His community services include
having served as a director of YMCA and as a member of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee
of the Hong Kong Housing Society.

Dr. Lau Tze Yiu, Peter, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
September 2004. Dr. Lau also serves as the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the
Company. Dr. Lau is an Associate Professor of the
Department of Accountancy and Law of the Hong
Kong Baptist University and an Associate Dean and BBA
(Hons) Program Director of the School of Business of
the Hong Kong Baptist University. He holds a bachelor
degree in commerce from Saint Mary’s University in
Canada, a master degree in business administration from
Dalhousie University in Canada and a doctorate degree
of philosophy in accounting from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong. Dr. Lau is a member of The Chartered
Professional Accountants of Ontario (CPA, CA) in Canada,
a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants
of British Columbia (CPA, CMA) in Canada, a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA), and an associate member of The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong (ATIHK). He was also
a president (1992-1993) of the City Lions Club of Hong
Kong.
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Dr. Sun Tai Lun, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
in November 2001. Dr. Sun also serves as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company. Dr. Sun is the chairman of China-Hongkong
Photo Products Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. Dr. Sun has extensive experience
in the photographic products industry. He holds a
bachelor degree in pharmacy from the University of
Oklahoma, the United States of America, and a doctorate
degree of philosophy in business administration from
Southern California University for Professional Studies,
the United States of America. He is the Vice Patron of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong since 1999, the Honorary
Fellow of City University of Hong Kong and Chapter
Honoree of City University of Hong Kong Chapter of
Beta Gamma Sigma. Dr. Sun has served as the chairman
(November 2009 - October 2015) of the Advisory
Committee on Travel Agents and the Court member
(2010 — December 2015) of City University of Hong Kong.
Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999
and appointed as The Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Mr. Tai Sai Ho, aged 65, is an executive director and the
General Manager of the Group. Mr. Tai also serves as a
member/the acting chairman of the General Business
Committee and the Property Acquisition/Disposal
Committee; and a member of the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Tai joined the Group in 1989 and has extensive
experience in public and private sectors of the building
and civil engineering industries in Hong Kong. He is also
a director of all the subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Tai
holds a master degree in business administration from
Asia International Open University in Macau, a master
degree in construction management from University of
New South Wales in Australia and a bachelor degree in
civil engineering from National Cheng Kung University
in Taiwan. Mr. Tai is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors (FHKIoD) and the Hong Kong Institute of
Construction Managers (FHKICM).

BAMmEL 665 M2001FNMAEZERES
AARBLFHATES - HZBRLITEEERL
A MNEZEEECETREREXRZEBRRRESR
ZEEZRE-BRETADEBRESEMER
ERAR (ERORBEIMLEN) Z2EFE-
BRETHNBEEREREEEELR KIS
ZERRAUTEMREER BB L E(y
& = ESouthern California University for
Professional Studiesz TRIEETEE L
L HBE199FRABTBAREZRIBHMA
TRAEBBETAREBRERLIREBH M AE
Beta Gamma Sigman SR EZE - HiE LY
BERITREBZAZESERE (2009F118
Z2015F 108 ) REBH T AEBEREZESK
& (20105 £20155F128) - R 1E £ W 1999F
EEREEZAZE  WH2002FEZEAKTF
Fih

BZ%L4% 655 AEBHTESRAL
B -BALTRERLNA - REBZEE RN
B HENXEEECHE BEERE UR
REZESERFMEZEES 2RE-BRER
1989F MAREKE  EEBLERMERTR
IARTIREZBEEER -RIARAEEHET
FBEWBAR ES -BALEFARMDMNER
BMARMAZIHEESET 24 RMNHER
A AZERERBETEUREGBEK
WRELTAIREBLEU -BELERBTBES

EEREBLEMBECEREE-
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Senior Management

Mr. Au Yiu Man, aged 56, joined the Group in 1990. He
is a director of the Interior and Renovation Division of
the Group and has extensive experience in the building
industry in Hong Kong. He holds a higher diploma in civil
engineering (municipal) and endorsement certificate in
design of reinforced concrete & steel structures from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Mr. Chan Yiu Kei, Charles, aged 51, joined the Group
in 2010. He is a director of the Construction Division
of the Group. He has over 23 years of experience in
human resources management, employee training
and development, organization development and
consultation in Hong Kong. He holds a Master of Social
Science from The Chinese University of Hong Kong, a
Master of Science in Human Resource Management and
Training from University of Leicester in United Kingdom
and a Postgraduate Diploma in Management Consulting
and Change from The University of Hong Kong. He is
a graduate of Corporate Coaching Program (CCP) of
Corporate Coach U Canada, a Certified Administrator
of The Myers-Briggs Type Indicator (MBTI), a Certified
Behavioral Consultant (DISC) of the Institute for
Motivational Living, a Certified Management Consultant
(CMCQ) of Institute of Management Consultants, and a
professional member (MIHRM) of Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resource Management.

Mr. Cheung Hok Chuen, aged 47, joined the Group in
1999. He was appointed as a director of the Building
Materials Division of the Group on 1 October 2010 and
is currently a director of the Construction Division of
the Group. Mr. Cheung has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. He holds a BSc in
surveying from The University of Hong Kong.

SREER

ERR%LE 5655 M1990F I ARER < 17
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BER2HRE 475 M1999FE A REE - 1§
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Mr. Chow Ka Fung, aged 48, joined the Group in 1998.
He is a director of certain divisions of the Group and
oversees the Property Development Division, Property
Investment Division as well as Property Agency and
Management Division. Mr. Chow specialises in property
development, investment, marketing, management
and project management in Hong Kong and the PRC.
He holds a bachelor degree in land management from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chow is
a Registered Professional Surveyor (General Practice)
(Property and Facility Management) under the Surveyor
Registration Board (RPS). He is also a member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), a
member of China Institute of Real Estate Appraisers and
Agents (MCIREA), a member of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators (MCIArb) and a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS).

Mr. Chow Kit, aged 41, joined the Group in 1999. He
is a director of the Building Materials Division of the
Group. He has over 17 years of experience in the design,
supply and installation of building materials. He holds a
Bachelor of Art in Economics and Mathematics from York
University, Canada.

Mr. Chuk Kin Lun, aged 66, joined the Group in 1989.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. Mr. Chuk has extensive experience in
planning, estimating, tendering and quantity surveying
in the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a bachelor
degree in civil engineering and is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).

Mr. Ho Chi Tong, aged 52, joined the Group in 1998.
He is a director of the Construction Division, Building
Materials Division and Interior and Renovation Division
of the Group. He has extensive experience in quantity
surveying consultancy and construction contracting. He
holds a professional diploma in quantity surveying from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a Registered
Professional Surveyor (QS) under Surveyor Registration
Board (RPS) and a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors (MRICS) and Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors (MHKIS).

BEELLE 485  M1998F MAREE - 1§
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Mr. Lee Cheuk Hung, aged 51, joined the Group in 2007.
He is a director of the Building Materials Division of
the Group and is the general manager of Million Hope
Industries Limited. He has comprehensive experience
in the building industry in Hong Kong. Mr. Lee holds a
higher diploma in mechanical engineering.

Mr. Lo Kai Cheong, aged 66, joined the Group in
1996 and is the Company Secretary and the Financial
Controller of the Group. He is also a director of the
Building Materials Division, Interior and Renovation
Division and Property Agency and Management Division
of the Group. He has extensive finance and accounting
experience in various industries. He holds a bachelor of
business degree in accounting and a master degree in
business administration from Edith Cowan University
in Australia. Mr. Lo is a member of CPA Australia (CPA
(Aust.)) and a fellowship member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (FCPA) and Association of
International Accountants (FAIA).

Mr. Lun Tim Ho, aged 58, joined the Group in 1990 and
is a director of the Construction Division and Interior and
Renovation Division of the Group. Mr. Lun has extensive
experience in the construction field in Hong Kong and
the PRC. He holds an associateship and a higher diploma
in the building technology and management from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building (MCIOB), Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM), Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (MRICS), The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors (MHKIS), and The Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers — Building (MHKIE).

Mr. Yuen Cheuk Kong, aged 57, joined the Group in
1989. He is a director of the Construction Division,
Building Materials Division and Interior and Renovation
Division of the Group. He has 35 years of experience in
the public and private sectors of the building and civil
engineering industries in Hong Kong. He holds a diploma
in management studies, a post-experience certificate
in building studies and a higher certificate in structural
engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
and a bachelor degree in construction management
and economics. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Construction Managers (MHKICM).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2017, the interests of the directors and
chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
were as follows:

(i) Long position in the shares of the Company

EEREKG HRKROHRE#HEZ

HaRRe

R-E—tF=A=1+—H EERBESTH
AEREQBzBRHAREERD T BEETH
RARD BIRIEE 5 R B E R BB XV 535215
BREZERMA SRE £ TR AIKER108T
B LtmBTAESETRSR G ZZEST
Al (MEESFAI ) BANSERQATARBERT2E

WA

() REQXARGZHFR

Approximate
percentage of

Total issued share
Number of number of capital
ordinary ordinary (Note e)
shares held sharesheld  HEBTRAE
Name Capacity FsEER FsEER BREDL
®E EL) 8 H a2y (Hiite)
Cha Mou Sing, Payson (1) Beneficial owner 3,403,925
ERE EREEA
(2) Interest of controlled corporation 15,689,502
ZEEE R (Note a)
(Krita)
(3) Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 531,981,820 551,075,247 53.08%
REETEzZRA (Note b)
(BEth)
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson Beneficiary of discretionary trusts 539,500,961 539,500,961 51.97%
EE MEEE2ZRA (Note b)
(Bizb)
Wong Sue Toa, Stewart (1) Beneficial owner 15,136,157
TiE ERBEEA
(2) Interest of controlled corporation 4,270,975
ZEEE R (Note ¢)
(Britc)
(3) Interest of spouse 5,485,487 24,892,619 2.39%
fE R (Note d)
(Fritd)
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Approximate
percentage of

Total issued share
Number of number of capital
ordinary ordinary (Note e)

shares held shares held  {HEETRA

Name Capacity PR EBR P ER L E =R
ek EL) = ay (Hizte)
Tai Sai Ho Beneficial owner 6,057,721 6,057,721 0.58%
Hitx EXHEBA

Chan Pak Joe Beneficial owner 757,100 757,100 0.07%
(3[R EEHEAA

Sun Tai Lun Beneficial owner 1,005,000 1,005,000 0.09%
YN EREEA

Notes: MEEE

(@) These shares are held by Accomplished Investments (a) SR 17HE Accomplished Investments

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

Limited and Kola Heights Limited, in which the
relevant director is deemed to be interested by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.

These shares are held under certain but not
identical discretionary trusts, of which Mr. Cha Mou
Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson are
among the members of the class of discretionary
beneficiaries.

Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart’s corporate interests in
the Company arise from the fact that he owns 50%
of the share capital of Executive Plaza Limited, which
holds 4,270,975 shares of the Company.

These shares are held by Ms. Wong Lui Kwok Wai,
the wife of Mr. Wong Sue Toa, Stewart.

The percentage is calculated based on the total
number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
March 2017 (i.e. 1,038,003,926 shares).

Limited & Kola Heights Limited#&#
RIEH SR BERAIEXVE EEES
WREABREEPRER

(b) ZEROBETIRREETAESE:
ERBTERERBLEGRE T TE
BiEEE2HBEIEAANER 2K
éo

(0 FHBAEEEADAZDAELER]
BAERES0%RAWEZREBR AT
R RLREEAATF4270,975R K
e

(d) ZEROVHITREELEZEBIZEE
ZtHH-

() AIEINREARIAR-ZT-—tHF

ZA=+t-—HEERTRMAAZH (A
1,038,003,926 /% B2 17 ) T & -
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(ii) Share awards and share options

Certain directors’ interests in share awards and
share options are set out in the respective sections
headed “Share Award Scheme” and “Share Option
Scheme” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of
the directors and chief executive of the Company or
their associates held any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 352 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Award
Scheme” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
directors of the Company to acquire benefits (including
debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate
and none of the directors or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such
rights during the year.

(i) ROEREKERE

ETESRERORBRBREZERZD
BIEN EX [ EEEET &8 & [RBRAE
FHEIBE-

BREXFIIEEEN RZE—tF=A=1+—
B AAAEERBRETHRAESHESH 2
BATRAQRAREEMBEEZE (EERE
F R G HRGIEXVED) B 17 HER MO KRE
EES BERESRBEEESIANERAT
REZXMRDHERAQAREZSRBEMR
BISEXVEREE352{5 B 17 B 2 B MR 2 R
EERAE o

MERONKREREZZH

Br EXX TIR1D SR BT &) & [ BB Rt &1 | mEn
FriRBEE S RAFEREMEE AR T
HEMME QAL EERETMLH TN
USARBESHEARAHEMEMAT 2
Mz (BHRERE) MIABESHESF 2EB
BRAWTN\Bm2FZERARBARRFS
ZAEAEFRRFRBITEEMZEER -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 March
2017, in addition to those interests of the directors and
chief executive of the Company as disclosed above, the
interests of the substantial shareholders in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

FERRZHER

BAQRRA R-ZFE-—tHF=R=+—8H"
BREXFRBEESERARARSTRAEZ
ZERBIN TERRNADERG RAEER
D EERERNA R RARERZRBE KRG
EEXVEPE336IRAFE 2B BHNT

Long position in the shares of the Company RAEQTRBZHE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of issued share capital
ordinary (Note iv)
shares held HEBITRA
Name Capacity g AR SR 4
e=g A 20 £ = (H&iv)
CCM Trust (1) Trustee 487,702,041 46.98%
ZEA (Note i)
(2) Interest of controlled corporation (BfEti)
SEREEzERE
Mingly (1) Beneficial owner 104,243,301 10.04%
an EEBEAEA (Note ii)
(2) Interest of controlled corporation (Bftii)
TELEzERE
CCM Capital Beneficial owner 78,866,272 7.59%
BEREEA (Note ii)
(B&tii)
LBJ (1) Trustee 67,829,571 6.53%
ZEA (Note iii)
(2) Interest of controlled corporation (Bt aFiii)

XErE RS
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Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

These share interests comprise 383,458,740 shares directly
held by CCM Trust and 104,243,301 shares indirectly held
through Mingly and its certain subsidiaries. CCM Trust
is holding these shares as the trustee of certain but not
identical discretionary trusts of which members of the Cha
Family (comprising, inter alios, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson
and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, being the directors of the
Company) are among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha
Mou Sing, Payson is also a director of CCM Trust.

CCM Capital and Mingly Asia Capital Limited are direct
wholly owned subsidiaries of Mingly. Accordingly, Mingly
is deemed to be interested in the 78,866,272 shares and
the 21,644,101 shares held by CCM Capital and Mingly
Asia Capital Limited, respectively, under the SFO. Mr. Cha
Mou Sing, Payson is also the executive chairman of Mingly
and a director of CCM Capital, while Mr. Cha Mou Daid,
Johnson is a director of Mingly and CCM Capital.

LBJ is holding these shares as the trustee of certain
discretionary trusts of which members of the Cha Family
(comprising, inter alios, Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and
Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson, being the directors of the
Company) are among the discretionary objects. Mr. Cha
Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson are also
directors of LBJ.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at 31 March 2017 (i.e.
1,038,003,926 shares).

By &E

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

HERDEZEIEHRCIM TrustEEEE 2
383,458, 740 I R FEB A N REWE L
B3 E 2104,243,3010% IR 49 ° CCM Trust
UEFASBAETTRARBEETEFELRSE
B ZEEAEZHBEZRALPEERRE
RE (EFEEERBELEREREBLEE T
BARQNTESE) - EMBELETRECCM Trust
ZEE

CCM Capital & Mingly Asia Capital Limited
RBANZEEZENBAR B RIE
HERBAEKRE | D HBEEDHHACCM
Capital % Mingly Asia Capital Limited#%#&
278,866,272% Bx 17 1. 21,644,101 B% B 10+ %
ERZ ERBEETRBAIZITEER
CCM Capitalz EE MEREREEREBE IR
CCM CapitalzEZE »

LBILEEA SRS THEETHFALER
7 ZEEENEZREARPEERREN
E(EPEELAQAESEHELLERER
BELE) BERBLEREHELETRLB)
ZES-

AL DRBRATIN-E—tF= A=+
HE /TR 10422 (B1,038,003,926 % i 17')
o
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

During the year, the interests of the directors of the
Company in businesses which compete or were likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the principal
businesses of the Group as required to be disclosed

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS # 37 i 5 &

AT

pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

Name of director (Note 1)
EE8A (i)

Name of
company

DEER

Nature of interest

BinE

BEENEEA

=% T

it 5

EENREREGPCHER

REER ARAESNEAEAEEEERE
PSR ATRE AR F M - MR
BETRAARATFRBEZEMRBRER 2&

Competing business (Note 2)
BRUEE (WiE2)

Cha Mou Sing, Payson
BB

HKRI

NWDCL
HiR

CREIT
BEERET

Director of HKRI and a member of the class
of discretionary beneficiaries of certain
but not identical discretionary trusts of
which the trustees are deemed substantial
shareholders of HKRI under Part XV of the
SFO

BEREXEERETTRAMBEAZHEZEA
BRIz RE  MAREERSRBERAIZEXVE
DEGAZEIARRABTBEXIERR

Independent non-executive director of
NWDCL
FHRZBUFHTES

Independent non-executive director of Eagle
Asset Management (CP) Limited, the
manager of CREIT

BEEEEE (BB)ERLH
(BEEXGRAZERBA) ZBUHHITES

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;

(a)

Property development and
investment

NEERRRE

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

MEERE HERDTSEE
R

Property development and
investment

NEERRRE

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

MEERE HERDTSEE
R

Property investment

NERE

Property management,
leasing and marketing
services

NEEE HERDSERE
R
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Name of
Name of director (Note 1)  company Nature of interest Competing business (Note 2)
BN (M) GRS ERtHE BEMER (M)
Cha Mou Daid, Johnson HKRI Director of HKRI and a member of the class (@) Property development and
ERE EREXE of discretionary beneficiaries of certain investment
but not identical discretionary trusts of MEBRRRE

which the trustees are deemed substantial
shareholders of HKRI under Part XV of the ~ (b) Property management,

SFO leasing and marketing
BRRXEERETIAMBEECHEREA services

ARlzmE MREESRAEHRHEXVE NEEE BERDHEE

ZEERZERTARRATBEXIERR R

Notes:

1. Mr. Cha Mou Sing, Payson and Mr. Cha Mou Daid, Johnson
are non-executive directors of the Company, who are
not involved in the daily management of the Group.
Accordingly, the Company is capable of carrying its
businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from the
abovementioned competing businesses.

2. Such businesses may be made through subsidiaries,
affiliated companies or by way of other forms of
investments.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors is
interested in any business apart from the Group’s
businesses, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with businesses of the Group.

1. BRBAEREBEELEHBARDAFNT
B WEAWESEAEEAREEIF-BE
bt RO RREMEE HERREB R LA
FUEBTIZDFRAEE -

2. ZEEBUEBMEBEARIBBELRALE
FEBHMBRES XL -

Br EX PR EE N BB EE MM ERAREE
EREEIBEAREUERTRARELEZ
RS (BRAEEERIN) RS-
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
entered into the following transaction which constituted
a connected transaction of the Company and is required
to be disclosed under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

Disposal of a Property at Shatin Industrial Centre
(the "Disposal”)

On 5 July 2016, Emwell Limited (the “Vendor”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and
Century Marvel Limited (the “Purchaser”) entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Vendor agreed to sell and the
Purchaser agreed to buy a property located at Workshop
16 on the Fifth Floor of Block B, Shatin Industrial Centre,
Nos. 5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong at a consideration of HK$9,172,800 based on the
market value of the industrial properties nearby.

As at the date of the Agreement, Mr. Tai Sai Ho
(director and General Manager of the Company) was
the beneficial owner of the Purchaser. As such, the
Purchaser was regarded as a connected person of the
Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules and the
Disposal constituted a connected transaction for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
applicable percentage ratios (as defined in the Listing
Rules) calculated in respect of the Disposal exceeded
0.1% but were less than 5%, the Disposal was subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but was
exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
Completion of the Disposal took place on 5 September
2016.

MEX %

REBEZE-Z—tF=A=1t—-HLFERN &
KEETTIRS MERXZBEAREZE
BRERARE ETRAUBIAAZTFEHIE

HEMRAPBHIER O 2YE ([HES
71)

REZB—RELtARR ARAZBHEREMN
BAREEERAR ([EHF])HHtLEESR
RAR (TBEFDNTLEERZ ([HE]) B
I BELREHEMELREBENRE B
AVPBRIBESZ75 A PH I # R OBESET
fER6 2% RERBYE9,172,8007T  It])
RIEMAETIEYE TS EREE

RipZEAH BittZiE (KA ZESRA
KIB)RERFZERBEBEA -EI B EHREA
S BAEBALRQARZEEAL MRE
FHRBIE14AE  HESBEBR A QT ZH
BEXG HREBREESEMAZERES L
R (EHXR LMHRAD)BB0.1%EEKMA% &
EEBEABT IHRAFUAZET Z2HHK
NERE - EUTERRBELRRAERE - H
EFEBEERZE—R"ENLARABRER-
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "“Connected
Transaction” above, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts that are significant in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its parent company or any subsidiary of its
parent company was a party and in which a director of
the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION AND
INSURANCE

The Company’s Articles of Association provides that
every director, auditor or other officer of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or
sustained by him as a director, auditor or other officer
of the Company in defending any proceedings, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is
acquitted. Such permitted indemnity provision is in force
during the year ended 31 March 2017 and at the date of
this annual report.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance coverage for directors and
officers of the Company.

EERXS RERSHZHER

BREXEERS | —EREEEN AR F
FEEMAMBELR HBQRAIEF AT ZME
B A RBE] VEASREERER  BX
NRAESHEBEEERHEPEENBEE
BEAEBEMRAFEREZHSARFERN
FAEBNRAERZETNERRS  ZHRE
2o

BHFF RGN R R

RABRZEBERMAIRE AOFEES-
BREMAEMSRABEREEAARNEEFR
HERAXAREE REMAHEMSHBEE
BHBFRIEHARR 2 EMFAPETRE
MEESRZ 2 —VEASIEETESHE-R
BE-_Z—+tF=ZA=+—-HLEFEEARR
RERBH BEARETREKRI—EEN-

KRB CRAEFRAESRSABEBEEE
NEERSABESERRESRE-
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme described above, the
Group has not entered into any equity-linked agreements
during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract for undertaking the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for about 63% of the turnover of the Group
and the largest customer is an independent third party,
accounted for about 26% of the turnover of the Group.
Aggregate purchases for the year ended 31 March 2017
attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers were less
than 30%.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their
respective close associates, or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) has any interest in the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2017.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in making
mandatory contributions for its staff. Details of charges
relating to the retirement benefits schemes are set out in
note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

B% R 89 1% i

BR EALAB AR AT &SN AN F AT L
R AR SR 8 150 5 o

TEaW

RER RARALET IR FETAEELD
A2 HEPEMNERZR XK 2 EERT
IEkl:In)J

FEERRMER

RER AEBZAREFEREEEEED
63% MEAZEFABUE=F HAKEE
EFN26% BE-E—tF=B=+—H
LFE AEELAEEERGRRBEIRN
30% e

BREXNFREEN BE-2—-—tF=A
ZSt-BLEFE BEES REREZEER
BMEARTMRR (RESHFAEEALAFE
BITRAS%U L) RAEEREAREF R HE
AP R Ao

iB & ¥ &R
AEEBREETRESHAZAE BHES

e A B R - BER KB EIERFR
HRGRES M B RRM 44 -
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DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.22 OF

LISTING RULES

The financial assistance to affiliated companies of the
Company, and guarantees given for banking facilities
granted to affiliated companies of the Company named
in the first column in the table below, in aggregate
amounted to approximately HK$701,455,000 which
represented approximately 14.0% of the total assets of
the Company at 31 March 2017. Details of which are as

follows:

RELTHRUE13.2216EHZ
W

R-ZFBE—+tE=F=+—H BAEAQAFZH
AAREZHMBEDERETFERITERER
RAEAQTF BB AT ZRITRMEFL ZER
HAZEH B85701,455,0007 - HAAERAAE
EBEN14.0% BEFBOT:

Total amount of financial
assistance given to,

Company'’s committed capital injection

equity interest to and guarantees given

in affiliated for facilities granted to,

company affiliated company

mEEARRECHBEY:

ERFR AEnBEARMELZ

BELAR EERBBETHEATZ

Name of affiliated company BEARER 2R e MEFHZERERE

HK$000

BEFT

Pagson Development Limited Pagson Development Limited 50% 310,000

("Pagson”) ([Pagson J) (Note 1)

(K1)

338 Apartment 338 Apartment 40% 154,274

Holdings (BVI) Limited Holdings (BVI) Limited (Note 2)

(“338 Apartment Holdings") (1338 Apartment Holdings ) (Hrzt2)
and its subsidiary REWE AT

Haining Jiafeng Real Estate BEZLEEMERRLA 49% 139,263

Development Limited (Is=]) (Note 3)

(“Haining") (H15E3)

AG Acquisition M (BVI) Limited AG Acquisition M (BVI) Limited 25% 97,918

(“AG Acquisition”) (T AG Acquisition J) (Note 4)

and its subsidiaries REKB AR (Htit4)

701,455

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ¥ 37 i 15 &

Notes:

The total capital commitment shall be contributed by the
Group by way of subscription of shares and providing an
unsecured shareholder’s loan to Pagson. The shareholder’s
loan to be provided to Pagson shall be unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed term of repayment.

According to shareholders deed with joint venture
partner, the Group has agreed to advance to 338
Apartment Holdings shareholder loans in the amount of
approximately HK$92,274,000. The aforesaid shareholder
loans are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
on demand. In addition, an indemnity (subject to a
maximum liability of HK$62,000,000) was provided by
the Group to five limited partnerships which are affiliates
of the majority shareholder of 338 Apartment Holdings,
who had provided a corporate guarantee as required
under the senior secured term loan facilities granted to
the wholly owned subsidiary of 338 Apartment Holdings
for (i) securing the interest payment obligations; and (ii)
completion and cost overrun undertaking of the property
development. Such indemnity provided by the Group
to five limited partnerships is not given for securing the
principal amount of the senior secured term loan facilities
granted to the wholly owned subsidiary of 338 Apartment
Holdings, and accordingly, the amount of banking
facilities utilised by the affiliated companies which are
guaranteed by the Company is nil.

The Group has pledged to a bank in Hong Kong cash
deposits in the sum of approximately HK$139,263,000
(accrued at an interest rate of 0.91% per annum) for the
period from 21 December 2016 to 21 December 2017 for
securing the standby letter of credit issued to the bank in
the PRC which granted a bank loan to Haining.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group advanced and made
available to AG Acquisition shareholder loans amounting
to approximately HK$30,793,000 which are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. In
addition, the Group agrees to provide guarantees or
other securities in respect of bank loan to an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of AG Acquisition amounting to
HK$67,125,000.

EXRRIEBAEEHAEEERARBERORE
PagsonfZ M BIKIFRRER AT AL E B
Pagsoni2ft 2 R REFRB A EEKAE TF R
R EE EERE -

RIBEAEBHTE2BREREZY  AEERE
338 Apartment HoldingsE {3} & 284058 4
92,274,000t 2 RRE K - LR RERBE
K T EREREREBE - N AEEH
ERAEBBREHEE (195338 Apartment
Holdings (K B 1R #531% 338 Apartment
Holdingsz 2 &M B AR 2B LB IRIFEH
EXmMEET 2RERELTNER) 2EER
ReBBAL)BROFNELRER KW
BRZERARBAABIFLERBBAERE (Z
BB EB%62,000,000TFIHRR) - AEH
MEEEREBEERM I BEEABEBREL
JEHL ¥ F338 Apartment HoldingsZ 2 & [
BARZELAERACHENRMEZERTH
e Bt BADAMERREHBE AR
AZRITRHESEAT

AEECREBERFRITERZ—EHE
ROBEHEACAED —BEBRTER
REERBEYBE1139,263,0007T (IRE R
R091%:TE) HRABE-ZT—X<FE+=A
—t+—-HE=ZE—+HE+=ZHA=+—H-

RZBE—+tF=ZA=+—H ~EEHAG
AcquisitionB R B HZHRRERLE
#£30,793,000t H A EIKF T ERE
REREE - REERBERE FAG
Acquisitionz B E2 EM B AR ZRITER
1R IR R =k H A 3K 35 5 #567,125,00077T ©
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The proforma combined statement of financial position

LB AR -_ZE-—tF=ZRA=+—Hx

of the above affiliated companies at 31 March 2017 isas  BZSHFBEMRARNOT :
follows:
HK$'000
BT T
Current assets RENEE 812,556
Current liabilities TREEE (2,122,244)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,610,702
Net assets EEFE 301,014
DONATIONS B®

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$113,140 (2016: HK$142,650).

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the number
of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RERN AEEFEHEEREMIBFUEBRY
113,1407T (=& — /N 1 jB15142,6507T) ©

RALRIERE

RERABABZAHENRBRAARES
Al RAREEZRE AQAGAERELT
RAREEBFIORADAERITRHOEE
5% EHANRIEFERE -

Bz {7 e Ee AR 12

RRBzABERARRMSHE LML E
BERRDELRBE 2R REA QAR AR
EeBIERBIRRBEHMBA
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AUDITOR s o

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual  AATBREERREFALE LIESRER
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint Messrs. EIEEZ e MEMR H ST MITHEAQAZE

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. i

On behalf of the Board AEEGm

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart FiE

Managing Director EFELE

13 June 2017 —E-tFXA+=H
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T S A% B o

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 124 to 284, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

=2

FHHANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS
LIMITED (B RIZERERQE) ZHERE
(REEBHEAME L ZHIRL )

BER

ARZEM (UTHEBIEM) EETIEHR
%1248 £ 552848 Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited (B RIZZRBRAF)
(UTHEBIEARREMB AR (LT4
BAIEEE]) NEREMKERE LB HEHRE
BER-ZE—tE=ZA=1+T—HWNEEHH
MREREBEZALFENFREBRER KE
Em R HMEZEKER SEEEEEBRERA
FERERERURGEMBHRRWT 2F
FTESHBEHRE-

HMRR ZEGREVBEBRREREFTBST
MASEMH (FEBMBREEL) EEMH
BT BEEER-ZT-—tF=ZA=+-
BNGREaBRARBEZBLFENGS
MRRERGERENE WEBRBREB (A
ARD) WIRBEERZ BEHE-
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BERER

EMHEREBT BSOS EMEY (FBET
Q) ETEN -BMEZSEYTAENS
FEEAHE [ZBEAREFTFEPHRERA
ENEFEI Mo EE-SHEM - REETES
B AEEMY (BESEEERTAD (B
TEBISFAD BMBLRN BE5EH XCE
BATFRIP M EMBERBEEEE  RMEE
BMFAESHETBEERZERBEE LR
MNESEREHER-

MREEXER

HRETEEERERMNEXIE A 5Y
TGV BERRNETTRBEENSE-
ELERRERMFFEESZSUBHERREK
HARRRBETREN KM SHELEE
REEBHNER-
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (cContinued)

HEBEXER 2

Key audit matter

HRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESNAEERREREE

Valuation of investment properties

REYFEZIGE

We identified the valuation of investment
properties as a key audit matter due to the
significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements associated with determining the fair
value.

ENBEAFESRERATTBEEHABBRELRH
- KPS RENE 2 HERBI SERERSE

As disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group’s investment
property portfolio comprises agricultural,
commercial, industrial and residential properties
was stated at fair value of HK$2,399,700,000,
accounting for approximately 48% of the Group’s
total assets as at 31 March 2017 with a gain on
change in fair value of HK$255,042,000 recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the year then ended.

PR EMBHRRMT16MTIEE BERERENE
HE (BEEE B ITXERIFEYE)2AFES
7 %52,399,700,000t 1f EXER-ZT—tF=A
=+ —HBREENIBY% REBEZALFEZEEE
Ik AR AT EEE 2 s A8 %255,042,0007T ©

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included:

MR REME 2 HEATHREFEE:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuer;

AL ER 2 RED - T RERFEM |

o Obtaining an understanding from the
Valuer about the valuation techniques,
the performance of the property markets,
significant assumptions adopted, critical
judgmental areas, key inputs and data used
in the valuations;

TG EMMMEE A ERTAZGER A
EMERE RN EEMR/R  EAAEHE
REEWMASBREE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REBERKEER &)

Key audit matter

ARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESNAEERREXEE

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REWEZ1G1E (&)

All of the Group’s investment properties are
measured using the fair value model based on
valuation conducted by an independent firm of
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in
note 5 to the consolidated financial statements,
in determining the fair values of the Group's
investment properties, the Valuer applied a
market value basis which involves, inter-alia,
significant unobservable inputs and significant
judgements, representing appropriate market
rent, capitalisation rates and adjusted market
price that has taken into account of property-
specific adjustments including location, land
quality and timing of reference transactions.

BEREEHRENENREBYERMGELQR ([f4
B ) A PEEXFTEMEL 2 (hE - BNERE B
BWHRRMESWE NEE BEEREWE QT
B HEMEATEEE EhFR (HFEE)E
RAABEEMABBMNERHE NEETSES
EXREREARTSER (CEERERENLE L1t
BEERUZERZLZEZKR) -

o Evaluating the reasonableness of significant
unobservable inputs by comparing the
market rent estimated by the Valuer against
market data or rental of existing lease,
benchmarking capitalisation rate against
market data and comparing adjusted market
price with comparable market transactions
for comparable property in similar location
and condition on a sample basis; and

BRMA LB EMA 2 HSHES R AT
CHEBERREHECHE - EXMLRETAD
S8 REARDSEREELU R RAMR
ZULBMENATLBETERS  UFFEEX
TUBEEMABBENSEME R

e Assessing the integrity of information
provided by the management to the Valuer
by comparing details of rentals on a sample
basis to the respective underlying existing
lease agreements.

BRMESESHBEEERAEERRET
E ¥ LRFEEEE R A EM R E 2 ENDN

TEM
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REBERKEER &)

Key audit matter

HRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNENAERERREXEE

4
=2V

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts, interior and renovation contracts and
installation of building materials contracts and amounts receivable (payable) on contract work

BEH ROREEIEENRGEEZRNHENELZRARBEAUREWK () E4) TIEHEZE

We identified the recognition of revenue and
costs from construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and installation of building
materials contracts and amounts receivable
(payable) on contract work as a key audit matter
because the Group recognised revenue from
construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts and installation of building materials
contracts using the percentage of completion
method, measured by reference to the value
of work performed during the year and the
estimated total contract value including variations
in contract work which involve the management’s
best estimates and judgments, as disclosed in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

HMEEESN RHIREEIERSNORZEEZSEN
BENEEZWARBAURER (BN EHNTRE
MR ERER RERELEER  BUFESHBRE
MEESPrikE: EXERATIBESLERIRZE
B ENREEIRSHARZEEEMBENEE
ZWA EESEFRAMETIREZEBERMGITEN
REE(BRESNIEZRY) HESREEEZ
RAEEf T R A -

Our procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue and costs from construction contracts,
interior and renovation contracts and installation
of building materials contracts recognised and
amounts receivable (payable) on contract work
included:

EMACRREEZSN RHREBIREOIRE
KEEMBENEEZWRARBARURER ()
BHRNIRRENTZEFERE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REBERKEER &)

Key audit matter

HRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNENARERREXEE

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts, interior and renovation contracts
and installation of building materials contracts and amounts receivable (payable) on contract work

(Continued)

BEEH RORBETIEEHNRZREENHENELEZ WA RKAUREW (E) EH TREMIEZE

5 ()

As disclosed in notes 6 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group recorded
revenue from construction contract work,
interior and renovation contracts and installation
of building materials contracts amounting
to HK$2,036,765,000, HK$163,971,000 and
HK$574,759,000, respectively, for the year ended
31 March 2017 and recognised amounts receivable
on contract work and amounts payable on
contract work amounting to HK$104,115,000 and
HK$344,798,000, respectively, as at 31 March 2017.

MG E M ERERMTOR22TIEE BEERE
EE—tHE=ZRB=1+—HLEEEIRREEEES
NI EMREBCIRSARTEEEMBESHNN
WA %7 %2,036,765,0007T ~ & #163,971,0007T &
7B#574,759,000t RRAZE—tF=A=+—H%
FEREREN IRRERENEN I RRIERY
104,115,000t } & #5344,798,0007T °

e  Agreeing the budget contract revenue to
the construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and installation of
building materials contracts, and discussing
with the project director of the Group
to evaluate the reasonableness of their
estimated total budget contract revenue
based on the size and complexity of
the construction contracts, interior and
renovation contracts and installation of
building materials contracts, on a sample
basis;

HEESNWAERESH KO REBTRE
BHRZEREMBESNETRYE TE &
EEEEAREREESH KOHIREBIES
WRLZREZEMP SN ZREREMEEET
A AR ERETRES N RARTEZ
SEM (UHEERX)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

HEBEZXER 2

Key audit matter

HRELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESNAEERREREE

(Continued)

& (&)

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts, interior and renovation contracts
and installation of building materials contracts and amounts receivable (payable) on contract work

BEESH RORBETIEEHNRLZREZENHENELEZ WA RKAUREW (JE) X TREMIEZE

The management estimated the construction
costs which mainly comprise material costs,
labour costs and subcontracting fees based on
the quotations from time to time provided by the
major contractors/suppliers/vendors involved and
the experience of the management.

EEEMETEERL (EEEBEMBRAE S TR
ARDBER) DREBEIERAEH HES &H
TRHEMZHREREERE 2SR AMKE-

o Discussing with the project director of the
Group to evaluate the reasonableness of
their estimated construction costs, taking
into account the profit margin of similar
projects, the duration and the complexity of
the projects etc;

B BEREEBAENW U REMGEE
ERA BN (BERELIER 2 BB FH
RIBBREZ2HEREBHEEEEESHEER)

o Discussing with the project director of
the Group to understand the status of
completion of the relevant construction
contracts, interior and renovation contracts
and installation of building materials
contracts and the reasons for the change
of budget contract value and contract costs
during the year;

B SREEEEAEETH®W UTHRFAR
BEESN RHIREEIRSORZEEE
MRENZEITRERRFERRESNER
REaENmA2E 2 RE;
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REBERKEER &)

Key audit matter

ARELEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EMNESNAEERREXEE

(Continued)

5 ()

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts, interior and renovation contracts
and installation of building materials contracts and amounts receivable (payable) on contract work

BEEH RORBETIREEHNRLZREENHENELEZ WA RKAUREW (EY) EX TREMIEZHE

(1

(2)

e  Verifying whether value of work has been
reasonably recognised as contract revenue
including variations in contract work, by
performing the following procedures on a
sample basis:

DB XATTIEAAERTIREERS
EEEMBEAR/EGHURA (BREEHNIEZHR
) :

Checking to the latest certificates
issued by the independent surveyors
(the “Surveyors”) before year end date
for the verification of the value of work
already performed during the year;

sWBAEE (A ) RELEB R
BHCRIEEUREEERNCETIR
ZBE;

Checking to the certificates issued by
the Surveyors subsequent to year end
date, to verify the uncertified work
before year end has been subsequently
certified by the Surveyors; and

EHABMNFERRBEHCEE UK
ENFEANARERRERLRCENEMm
BRHENIR R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) REBEFEXER &)
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
HRELEE EMNENAEERRELEE

(Continued)

& ()

Recognition of revenue and costs from construction contracts, interior and renovation contracts
and installation of building materials contracts and amounts receivable (payable) on contract work

BEEH RORBETIEEHNRLZREENHENELEZ WA RKAUREW (JE) EX TREMIEZHE

Checking calculation of stage of completion,
on a sample basis, and performing
comparisons between the percentage of
completion and the percentage of progress
billing on construction contracts, interior
and renovation contracts and installation of
building materials contracts to identify and
investigate any significant differences.

DB ABRERTIREZANE RAEES
W RBRECIREGARZEEEMNBEN
ZRE T AN EERENRE DL E LR
KAEEMEREZE-

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Hnig 2

BLARESEHHMESEE -HttER2 8%
HHEREFRANES  BTEEFSHBRE
R EAIH L2 H R BENIRE

HMEGRSUBRERNIRT TREHME
B HATFAEZEEMERBRREMALAN

= A
EXEwmeo
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OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

HM{ER 2

FERMYRSMHRRNET RANEE
EHEHMES EhBEF ZEHMER
ERRGEMBHRRIARMEETBEFHR
THNBERAFEERBEBREUTFFEEXR
EERIRIL R - EREFAEHTH I W0
REMRAHMESFEERERBL - H
FEREZREE-EETH RMREBEMHR

o
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EHRE

BEAFESAAERE (FEYBREER)
R&EE (RRFRA) WHBEZEREFREM S
BENGERMHHRE THARAAEFS N
BROBEFETFEARIGFRERMEHD
BERERPULFAFENABEFES
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

EERAEEBHMGOMBERRAR
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FHRE  ETRERERR (FBETERD

ETHES AR -ERERRAFERFELE
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

BREMEENRSMBEERRRED
BE =)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR BBMEFNGSSMERRARIED
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED BE 2

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

HESRAKECESTHERNREM
TG o RIS PTEEUMVERTHRRE  HE
EEFHEESEIBERBEENERTE
EM - EmAEEHRY BREMNEESK
LRNELEBARE NMREMR/EFE
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RFEREER -HMANEREERNLE
RM ¥R B L FrES BV ERE - ARl R
REEFBFRAEEY ERETER
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B BEEENERAXBITDNMEE
EENRR -EENEFNERR UHES
BHHRERBER -KMARE BREF
ST BEEMBT  RARETER
AERAEE-

We communicate with those charged with governance  BREMEBEEIN  RMERERBERE T ENE
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 8B BEZHEREAZITRRE 8ER
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,  {M7EE& 5T Bl A SR I2 &l 49 (E A B K ER PG ©
including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Wong Lam Ching.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

13 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

Car AN RYR
ABmE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE-Z—+tE=A=t+—HLEE

2017 2016
—EB—+iF —E—XRHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BET T BT T
Turnover =X 6 3,216,077 2,623,043
Cost of sales SHER A (2,762,364) (2,244,371)
Gross profit EF 453,713 378,672
Other income Hayg A 8 7,770 10,380
Other gains and losses HiwHERER 9 49,115 431,030
Marketing and distribution costs TMiHERER 2 HE R (46,917) (44,541)
Administrative expenses THRX (208,508) (248,960)
Gain on change in fair value of BREWECLAFEZE
investment properties g &= 255,042 210,223
Share of profit of an associate DAL E D Ba A 323 95
Share of profit (loss) of joint TMEEERERN (BE)
ventures 57,182 (50,260)
Finance costs B%ER 10 (13,229) (12,126)
Profit before taxation BR i A 28 A 11 554,491 674,513
Taxation BEXH 13 (37,552) (26,817)
Profit for the year REEREF 516,939 647,696
Profit for the year THALTEEREEER:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company PIN/NETE7 2SN 516,939 635,701
Non-controlling interest JEFE R S - 11,995
516,939 647,696
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK cents) EHAR (GBAL) 15 51.0 80.0
Diluted (HK cents) #E (GB4L) 15 50.7 79.0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fo B 1R A M LAt 4 1 W 2 R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE-Z—+tE=A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-REF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year AEERA 516,939 647,696
Other comprehensive expense: ~ HttZ2®E& H :
Items that may be subsequently FRERZEHIEEBHE2EE
reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising REBNIEREEZERERE
on translation of foreign
operations (3.362) (1,899)
Share of exchange differences TMEEELECERERE
of a joint venture (3,667) (5,105)
(7,029) (7,004)
Total comprehensive income TEE2EHWVALLE
for the year 509,910 640,692
Total comprehensive income for THATEERFEREPALLEE:
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company FiN/NCTE Z= N 509,910 628,697
Non-controlling interest FERER - 11,995
509,910 640,692
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A B AR DL AR

AT 31 MARCH 2017

R-ZZE-—tH=A=+—-H

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E—-RE
=A=+—-H8 | =ZA=+—H
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
F & BT T BT T
Non-current assets IREBEE
Investment properties KREYE 16 2,399,700 1,827,310
Property, plant and equipment ¥ %¥ B E k& E 17 251,131 293,745
Prepaid lease payments i‘Eﬁ*ﬂgfﬁ’\Iﬁ 18 5,472 6,032
Interest in an associate N T 2 R 19 6,941 6,618
Interests in joint ventures BELEIER 20 422,738 117,483
Pledged bank deposits SRR ITIER 28 - 200,910
Deferred tax assets EEFIEEE 32 492 627
3,086,474 2,452,725
Current assets mEEE
Properties held for sale BIESEWE 110,474 260,225
Inventories FE 21 14,803 14,226
Amounts receivable on EWEHITRERE
contract work 22 104,115 122,024
Progress payments receivable JE WA E FRIR 23 233,819 131,266
Retention money receivable FEWRES 24 281,686 223,300
Debtors, deposits and EWRE -#ZERk
prepayments FE{TIRIE 25 158,221 57,261
Prepaid lease payments FEAHEERIE 18 201 213
Amount due from FEREETER
a joint venture 26 17 17
Investments held for trading FIEEEZRE 27 383 325
Taxation recoverable AR B8 2,949 3,200
Pledged bank deposits 2R AIRITFR 28 139,263 -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRRS 28 840,074 1,221,284
1,886,005 2,033,341
Assets classified as held for sale S EAFEHEEE 29 24,784 -
1,910,789 2,033,341
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts payable on contract e & #H TR
work 22 344,798 329,224
Trade and other payables EARERE M EAFOE 30 727,468 655,679
Taxation payable EHIE 24,227 26,611
Bank and other loans — amounts $R{T R E &=
due within one year - R—FAEMRIEA 31 822,155 764,780
1,918,648 1,776,294
Net current (liabilities) assets RE(BB)EEFE (7,859) 257,047
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION %% & W&k il

AT 31 MARCH 2017
R-ZZE-—+tH=A=t+—-H

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E—RE
=A=+-8B | ZA=+-8
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
FFaE BET T BT T
Total assets less current liabilities 2EERTEEE 3,078,615 2,709,772
Non-current liability FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFHEEE 32 12,000 12,530
3,066,615 2,697,242
Capital and reserves BERK#E
Share capital [N 33 103,800 103,572
Reserves & 2,962,815 2,593,670
3,066,615 2,697,242

The consolidated financial statements on pages 124 to
284 were approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 13 June 2017 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
IS
DIRECTOR
EE

BI24EEF284E IS 2 FE MBS KE
EER-E—tERNATZHERERRER
o LA TIESAREE:

Tai Sai Ho
E i
DIRECTOR
EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
£ A 5 5 ) 4

128

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017

BE-Z—+tE=A=t+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAREAELR
Share- Shares
based heldfor ~ Property Non-
Share  Contributed Special compensation share award  revaluation  Translation  Goodwill Accumulated controlling Total
capital surplus reserve reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interest equity
ARt
HRAXAN  RBHE
Ba  BAB%  BHRE  MERE mREZRH NEEREE  AERE  EREE  RHER it FERER  ERAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BRTR EMTn EWTR BBTR EMTn ERTn BRTRn BETn #RTn BBt ENTR
(note 34) (note 34)
(W) (W)
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-15MA-A 53,632 8,769 2194 5,749 B 982 5379 (78) 1,647,186 1,743,560 73499 1,817,059
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - - - 6350 635,701 11,995 647,69
Exchange differences arising on BEENERELL
translation of foreign operations EXEE - - - - - - (1,899) - - (1,899) - (1,899)
Share of exchange differences of MEaghEZERER
ajoint venture - - - - - - (5,105) - - (5,105) - (5,105)
Total comprehensive (expense) REERE (R UALE
income for the year - - - - - - (7,004) - 635,701 628,697 11,995 640,692
Dividends paid Bfizke - - - - - - - - (35,375) (35,375) - (35,375)
Issue of rights shares BTHRRS 3153 304,135 - - - - - - - 338658 - 338658
Issue of shares upon exercise of TRBREMEG RS
share options 1,864 23,050 - (3212 - - - - - 21,702 - 21,702
Share options lapsed BREAN - - - (107) - - - - 107 - - -
Issue of bonus shares BAR 13,553 (13553) - - - - - - - - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HERBAZ (K36 - - - - - - - - - - (85,494) (85,494)
At 31 March 2016 RZB-REZB=t-A 103572 322401 2194 2430 - 982 (1,625 (78) 2247619 2697282 - 2697282
Profit for the year REEER - - - - - - - - 51699 516939 - 516939
Exchange differences arising on BEENHEL
translation of foreign operations ERZE - - - - - - (3362) - - (3362) - (3362)
Share of exchange differences of MERELEZERER
ajoint venture - - - - - - (3667) - - (3,667) - (3,667)
Total comprehensive (expense) REERE (R YALE
income for the year - - - - - - (7,029) - 516,939 509,910 - 509,910
Dividends paid 2fiZhE - - = - - - - - (13823) (73,823) - (73,823)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TRBREMET RS
share options 8 2283 - (322) - - - - - 2,189 - 2,189
Share options lapsed BREAN - - - 0] - - - - 4 - - -
Shares purchased for R R HBE 2 RS
share award scheme (note 39) (K339 - - - - (71,995) - - - - (71,99) - (71,995)
Recognition of equity-settled BINEREER
share-based payments DRA% A 258 - - - 3092 - - - - - 3,092 - 3092
At 31 March 2017 RZZ-tEZB=1-A 103,800 324,684 21941 5,19 (71,995) 982 (8,654) (78) 2690739 3,066,615 - 3,066,615
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

22 /N 2
HEBREREE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE-Z—+tE=A=+—HLEE

2017 2016
“E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T
Operating activities EEXK
Profit before taxation BR% A 554,491 674,513
Adjustments for: A
Share of profit of an associate pal o AN bl (323) (95)
Share of (profit) loss of PIEEELE
joint ventures CaA) ER (57,182) 50,260
Dividend income R E WA (8) (6)
Interest income FEUWA (3,955) (1,827)
Interest expense FMEZTH 13,229 12,126
Depreciation of property, ME BRERZEZITE
plant and equipment 13,532 6,011
Equity-settled share-based DRESHEER ARG XM
payments in relation to share Z R0 R E Gt E
award scheme 3,092 -
Gain on disposal of property, HENE -BEX
plant and equipment # 2z W (708) (4,170)
Gain on change in fair value of REME2NTE
investment properties BE) 2 N (255,042) (210,223)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBA Rz WE (49,057) (252)
Gain on disposal of ZBRLHE-RBMNBEATF
a development project HERRER 2 W&
through disposal of
a subsidiary - (416,626)
(Gain) loss on change in BEBE2REZ
fair value of investments NFEEHZ
held for trading () B8 (58) 101
Reversal of impairment loss BECRAN
recognised on trade debtors EWFBRERSE - (927)
Gain on change in fair value of Hit REAEATHIEZ
other long-term payable DNFESB 2 WG - (14,253)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z A B4R E#

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE-Z—+tHE=A=t+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEF T
Operating cash flows before HEESRHZ
movements in working capital EEREN 218,011 94,632
(Increase) decrease in inventories FE (&mimEs (577) 7,863
Decrease in properties held for sale  iS{EFEYERFD 149,751 112,362
Decrease in amounts receivable on ~ EWAXH TRIERD
contract work 23,293 25,076
Increase in progress payments & LA FE SR IR 42 B0
receivable (102,553) (34,543)
Increase in retention money FE W 4R & & 38 i
receivable (58,386) (8,834)
(Increase) decrease in debtors, EWFE - ReEREATE
deposits and prepayments () m A (100,666) 484,105
Increase in amounts payable on &N TRRIEE M
contract work 15,574 85,777
Increase in trade and other payables FE{SFRI8 & E b fEF FRIB L b0 74,609 38,189
Cash from operating activities REEEXBZ2EE 219,056 804,627
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EAEBFEH (39,378) (20,676)
Interest paid E2RFIE (13,229) (15,015)
Net cash from operating activities REEEEK RS FHE 166,449 768,936
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 4 S B A mEi#

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE-Z—+tH=F=+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E-XF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B BETT BEF T
Investing activities REXK
Interest received EWFE 3,955 1,827
Dividend received from BRBFFEBEZRERE
investments held for trading 8 6
Dividend received from EREEARIRE
an associate - 19,700
Dividend received from BEREELERE
joint ventures - 8,000
Purchase of investment properties  FEREYE (25,844) (18,501)
Purchase of property, RENE BERRE
plant and equipment (12,720) (13,088)
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEMERE
investment properties 9,173 22,710
Proceeds from disposal of HENE -BEK
property, plant and equipment RIEREBNE 708 4,252
Repayment from an associate BERNRZER - 2,198
Repayment from joint ventures EELEZEN - 1
Net cash outflows on acquisitions EWEEHE LR 2
of subsidiaries REm TR 35 (491,726) (1,238,492)
Net cash inflows on disposal HHENRBLARZ
of subsidiaries RERNFHE 36 249,829 242,924
Net cash inflows on disposal of HEBHE—FEMELD A
a development project through HERRERZ
disposal of a subsidiary RERNFE 37 - 696,900
Direct attributable costs paid HREBHE-—BWEAT
for disposal of a development HERRERENZ
project through disposal of =83 %N
a subsidiary (3,299) -
Loans to joint ventures BELECZEN (251,740) (1,175)
Withdrawal of pledged REEEFBRITER
bank deposits 61,647 19,000
Placement of pledged bank FHERARITER
deposits - (136,190)
Net cash used in investing activities FRBREEHK 2 BEEFHE (460,009) (389,928)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #Z A B4R E#

132

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017
BE-Z—+tH=A=t+—HLEE

2017 2016
—®—tE | ZB-5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEF T
Financing activities MEXK
Dividends paid ENZRE (73,823) (35,375)
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (259,653) (867,130)
New bank and other loans raised HERITREAMER 317,028 1,083,650
Net proceeds from issue of BITHERG 2
rights shares FEFIE R4 - 338,658
Proceeds from issue of shares upon  {THEEBREMBTRGZ
exercise of share options Fr8sE 2,189 21,702
Purchase of shares for the purpose BB R AER®D EEHE
of share award scheme (71,995) -
Net cash (used in) from (AR)REREEE
financing activities BE&EEE (86,254) 541,505
Net (decrease) increase in BeRHALEME OHD)
cash and cash equivalents nELE (379,814) 920,513
Cash and cash equivalents at FYHeRBEL2EE
the beginning of the year 1,221,284 301,206
Effect of foreign exchange EXgEsosE
rate changes (1,396) (435)
Cash and cash equivalents FREECRBLZEE
at the end of the year, REBITEHREAE
representing bank balances
and cash 840,074 1,221,284
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability under
the Companies Law (2001 Second Revision), Chapter
22 of the Laws of Cayman Islands. Its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the Company’s annual
report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
functional currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company
and the principal activities of its subsidiaries are
construction, interior and renovation works, supply
and installation of building materials, property
investment, property development, provision of
property agency and management services and sale
of health products.

Fok 1 Y 285 i A W

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_Z—tF=ZA=+—-HLEE

—KER

ARBRBEHEHREEME-+-ED
AE(CEE-FE_BIR) - EHE
HEAMRLA—BERRERQA:
HROREBBEXZAAERQA ([H
KD Em-ARBzEZMPEERE
DEXME U RNA DT FRH
NEERR-

REUBBRRLGBEE5 BB TIA QT
ZUEEE

ARA—RREZERAB -HWEQ
Al EBXBREE KHREETE
HIBEZRBEME  WERE MR
B EREREERB 2 REZHREREE
a2 SHE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & 1 %5 Ht 2 b 5k

134

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group in
light of the fact that the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by HK$7,859,000,
and the Group has commitment amounting to
HK$216,000,000 in relation to acquisition of a
property under development for sale as at 31 March
2017. As at 31 March 2017, the Group has bank and
other loans totalling HK$822,155,000, which were
classified as current liabilities. The directors of the
Company are of the opinion that there are good
track records and relationship with banks which
would enhance the Group's ability on renewing the
borrowing facilities.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that, taking into account of the unutilised banking
facilities and the internally generated funds of the
Group and the other factors described above, the
Group has sufficient working capital for its present
requirements for the next twelve months from 31
March 2017. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

The Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle
Amendments to Investment entities: Applying

HKFRS 10, the consolidation exception
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28
Amendments to Accounting for acquisitions of
HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations
Amendments to Disclosure initiative
HKAS 1
Amendments to Clarification of acceptable
HKAS 16 methods of depreciation
and HKAS 38 and amortisation
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer plants
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and financial
positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs and an interpretation
(the “new and revised HKFRSs”) that have been
issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 40
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Financial instruments’

Revenue from contracts with
customers (and the related
amendments)’

Leases?

Foreign currency transactions
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Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 cycle?
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based payment transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 “Financial
instruments” with HKFRS 4

"

“Insurance contracts
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between an investor and its
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 Ht 2 fih 5k

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2019.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2017.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and
impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to
the Group are described as follows:

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have
contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured
at fair value through other comprehensive
income. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at their fair
value at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities
may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 #t 2 fif 5k

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

J In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss
model under HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement”. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at the end of
each reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The directors of the Company are of the view
that the expected credit loss model may result in
early provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect from using an
expected credit loss model in respect of its financial
assets until a detailed review has been completed.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

HE=

—tFE=ZA=t—-HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
HKAS 11 “Construction contracts”
and the related interpretations when it becomes

“Revenue”,
effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from contracts with
customers” (Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e.
when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred
to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS
15 in relation to the identification of performance
obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as
well as licensing application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of HKFRS 15 in the future may affect the
amounts reported and related disclosures. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs
a detailed review.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16
will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases” and the related
interpretations when it becomes effective.

3.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts
on the basis of whether an identified asset is
controlled by a customer. Distinctions of operating
leases and finance leases are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for
short-term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the
impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group
currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments
as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold
lands and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented
as operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16,
lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows.

3.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (Continued)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to require a
lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$14,896,000
as disclosed in note 43. A preliminary assessment
indicates that these arrangements will meet the
definition of a lease under HKFRS 16, and hence
the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases
upon the application of HKFRS 16. In addition, the
application of new requirements may result changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the financial effect
until the directors complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

3.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the investment properties and certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price
is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account
the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement
date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

4.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss from
the date the Group gains control until the date
when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interest.
Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interest even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the
owners of the Company and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities
of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets
or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 "“Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related
to share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree or share based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance
with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with
that standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 #t 2 fif 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Acquisition of a subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a group of assets and
liabilities that do not constitute a business, the
Group identifies and recognises the individual
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to the financial
assets and financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other individual identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction
does not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase
gain.

Interests in an associate and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties
sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
or joint ventures are incorporated in these
consolidated financial statements using the equity
method of accounting. The financial statements
of an associate and joint ventures used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate or a joint venture is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint
venture. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance,
form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & B %5 Ht 2 fif 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the
date on which the investee becomes an associate
or a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill,
which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment,
is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

S

—E—+tHE=ZA=t+—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in an associate and joint ventures
(Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate
or a joint venture of the Group, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate
or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent
of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if
their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the asset is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for sales of such asset and
its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to
qualify for recognition as a completed sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Investment properties classified as held for sale are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured; when it is probable that
future economic benefits will flow to the Group and
when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group's activities, as described below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %¢ &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from construction contracts, interior
and renovation contracts and building materials
installation contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method by reference to

the value of work carried out during the year as
determined by quantitative surveyors’ reports.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to
the buyers.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Property agency and management service income is
recognised when services are provided.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of
revenue from operating leases is described in the
accounting policy for leasing below.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. All of the Group’s property
interests held under operating leases to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation purposes are accounted
for as investment properties and are measured using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investment property
are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset) is included in the profit or loss in the
period in which the item is derecognised.

Transfer from investment property to owner-
occupied property

An investment property is transferred to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation. The fair
value, at the date of transfer, which is the deemed
cost of the property. The property interest held
under an operating lease which is previously
classified as investment property under the fair
value model is continued to account for as a finance
lease after the transfer.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land and buildings held for own use are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Transfer from property under development for
sale to owner-occupied property

A property under development for sale is
transferred at its carrying amount to property,
plant and equipment when it is evidenced by the
commencement of owner-occupation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost
of acquiring land held under operating leases,
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as "prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except
for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent the up-front
payments to lease medium-term leasehold land
interests in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") and are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Inventories

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties
and are classified under current assets. They are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs relating to the development of properties,
comprising land costs and development costs, are
included in properties held for development for
sale until such time when they are completed. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling
price less all anticipated cost to be incurred in
marketing and selling.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction, interior and renovation and
installation of building materials contracts

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and
costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the end of the
reporting period, as measured by surveys of work
performed. Variations in contract work are included
to the extent that the amount can be measured
reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction, interior and
renovation or installation of building materials
contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of contract costs
incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus
recognised profits less recognised losses exceed
progress billings, the surplus is shown as amounts
receivable on contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as amounts payable on contract
work. Amounts received before the related work
is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as
other payables. Amounts billed for work performed
but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under
progress payments receivable.

4.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

FESHEBEK &)

BE - RHIRECREEMBZE

By

ERE RHRECIEEMRZREY
ZHRA NGB HRAREA
HBERBREPRBENZRIRET
LIFERR - R TRRE TR IE TR ER BB M
Eo BN ITIRNB KA ST 2
KRB B TREWEBRMAR-

ERE RHIREEREEMRZESYN
ZHERAEEEMIMAR SHRARE
BRAESITHRECEEE2ENHES
RER MENMARRELERERDX
$o

EREHNBARETRBAZSHBA
BB VA WER S e

f==]

fif TIREL 2 &AM INE #RE TR
CHRRAEEEE TR CEER  ZERU
FERENIRABIR - BETRRZEE
REBEREEL A NRAMEBRE
FMREHRAFE ZEHMUERFENT
BRIBIR -EFEEMBHRRRL B
TRETHEWZBREIFERLMEMNR
B(o8AEE) CETZIRELCH
RREEMRUBzRBUSEFREUH
AR 2= 2 1) 4F BB WOHE 2 500 ©

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;

159



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 45 & 1 %5 Ht 2 b

For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
one of the two categories, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are financial
assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

J it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent
actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets
and is included in the other income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 48.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including progress payments receivable, retention
money receivable, debtors, refundable deposits,
amount due from a joint venture, pledged bank
deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the loans and receivables,
the estimated future cash flows of the loans and
receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;
or

o it becomes probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed for
impairment on a collective basis even if they
are assessed not to be impaired individually.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period, as well as observable
changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited to the profit or loss.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or
as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fee and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest
expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and bank and other loans are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Group
will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognised as a provision
is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sale and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

#HE=

4.

—tFE=ZA=t—-HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible assets
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value
in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of
the impairment loss that would otherwise have
been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit
before taxation’ as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, and interests in an associate and
joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax
liabilities and deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value
model in accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment
property”, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered through sale. Such
a presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit
or loss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deductible from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Retirement benefits cost

Payments to the Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment
arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees
and others providing similar services are measured
at the fair value of the equity instruments at the
grant date. The fair value determined at the grant
date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based compensation
reserve). For share options that vest immediately at
the date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based compensation
reserve will be transferred to share premium
or contributed surplus. When share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to accumulated profits.

4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
(Continued)

Shares purchased for share award scheme

When the Company’s shares are purchased
from the open market for share award scheme,
the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, is presented as shares
held for share award scheme and deducted from
total equity.

The fair value of services received from directors
and employees determined by reference to
the fair value of award shares granted at the
grant date is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period based on the Group's
estimate of award shares that will ultimately vest,
with a corresponding increase in share-based
compensation reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revised its estimates of the number of shares
expected to ultimately vest. The impact of
the revision of the original estimates, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to share-based
compensation reserve.

At the time when the award shares are vested, the
difference on the amounts previously recognised in
shares held for share award scheme and the amount
recognised in share-based compensation reserve is
transferred to accumulated profits.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period unless exchange rate fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed
to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

4.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, that the directors of
the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the investment
property portfolio of the Group’s subsidiaries,
associate and joint ventures and concluded that
none of the investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment properties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, the directors of
the Company have determined that the “sale”
presumption set out in the amendments to HKAS
12 is not rebutted. As a result, the Group has not
recognised any deferred taxes on changes in fair
value of investment properties as the management
does not expect to have tax consequence on
disposals of these investment properties.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
and a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31
March 2017 at their fair value of HK$2,399,700,000
(2016: HK$1,827,310,000) (note 16) based on
valuation of these properties conducted by Jones
Lang LaSalle Limited, an independent property
valuer. In determining the fair values of the Group'’s
investment properties, the Valuer applied a market
value basis which involves, inter-alia, significant
unobservable inputs and significant judgements,
representing appropriate market rent, capitalisation
rates and adjusted market price that has taken into
account of property-specific adjustments including
location, land quality and timing of reference
transactions.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (cContinued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

Construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts and installation of building materials
contracts

The Group recognised revenue and costs from
construction contracts, interior and renovation
contracts and installation of building materials
contracts (“contracts”) using percentage of
completion method, which were derived from
the latest available budgets of the contracts
including variations on contract work based on
the overall performance of each contracts and
the management’s best estimates and judgments.
Estimated construction income is determined in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant
contracts. Estimated construction costs which
mainly comprise material costs, labour costs and
subcontracting fees based on the quotations from
time to time provided by the major contractors/
suppliers/vendors involved and the experience of
the management. Because of the nature of the
construction industry, the management regularly
reviews the progress of the contracts and the
estimated construction income and costs.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

6. TURNOVER

Turnover represents the aggregate of the revenue

earned from construction contract work, interior

and renovation contracts, supply and installation

of building materials, sales of health products,

gross rental income from property investment, sale
of properties and provision of property agency
and management services during the year, and is

analysed as follows:

EEBISERNRAREAN TR EHR
BIELK HERRERENY  HER
BER MEREZHASUA  WEH
£ 1% 32 {311 35 A TR I IR R S R Uk
AZBE RAFMT

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-REF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue from construction BESHNIRZBWA
contract work 2,036,765 1,523,079
Revenue from interior and HEREBEHZBWA
renovation contracts 163,971 358,137
Sale of building materials EEMBCHEESSE - 6,176
Revenue from installation of ZREEMBEHZRA
building materials contracts 574,759 369,544
Sale of health products BREEMZHEESSE 54,966 52,659
Rental income from MEREZHERA
property investment 44,881 31,655
Sale of properties MEZHESE 331,261 272,327
Property agency and MERIEREERE 2 WA
management service income 9,474 9,466
3,216,077 2,623,043
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. SWAEH

The Group is organised into seven operating AEBTIEREHE A TLE BE K
divisions: construction, interior and renovation RIS TRE BEME o HERZE -
works, supply and installation of building materials, BREEMIHEE VERE MEZEER
sales of health products, property investment, MEREREERE 2 RME - XEBIRE
property development and provision of property WESEREERETHADHBER XL
agency and management services. These divisions HAABHITES (REELKEREKSE)
are the basis on which the Group reports its EHEBRUSES 2 EEAZ2ERR M
financial information internally and are regularly DEB2RR -

reviewed by the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision makers, for the
purpose of allocating resources to segments and
assessing their performance.

(a) Segment revenues and results (a) PHWAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's UTAXREBRRKEPB2WRAR
revenue and results by operating segment: EEDMN:

For the year ended 31 March 2017 BE-_Z—tF=A=+t—HLEFE

Property

Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment

Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management total  Eliminations  Consolidated

NERE
BE LHREHR BENH  REER NERE NEBR REE PRE g Ga

HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
EETR  BRTR BETR EMTn BWTn EWTR ENTR ARTR ERTR BRTR

TURNOVER X%

External sales Hivge 2,036,765 163,971 574,759 54,966 44,881 331,261 9474 3,216,077 - 326077
Inter-segment sales PEERHZEE 609 6,917 17,831 108 4,268 - 11,029 40,762 (40,762) -
Total @it 2,037,374 170,888 592,590 55,074 49,149 331,261 20503 3,256,839 (40762 3216077

Inter-segment sales are AREBBZHE
charged by referenceto 15 £ EHE

market prices.
RESULTS E
Segment result ik B3 48,991 2,611 68,524 3,250 320,261 123,206 454 567,297 - 567,297
Unallocated expenses FABIH (12,806)
Profit before taxation BataEA 554,491

WL AR B AT 2016/2017 4 179
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

7. BEH =)

(a) Segment revenues and results (Continued) (a) 7EWARESE (&
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z-REZA=+—HLEEE
Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and Segment
Construction ~ renovation materials products investment development management total  Eliminations ~ Consolidated
NERE
BE  ZBREE  BEMR REER NERE MEER REE  SEEH s ga
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETR BETR BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BB BETT BETT
TURNOVER EXE
External sales HEE 1,523,079 358,137 375720 52,659 31,655 212,321 9,466 2,623,043 - 2,623,043
Inter-segment sales PEEBEZEE 52,014 47403 38,264 4 2,030 - 16,666 156,421 (156,421) -
Total & 1,575,093 405,540 413,984 52,703 33,685 22321 26132 2,779,464 (156421) 2,623,043
Intersegment salesare P EEBEZzEE
charged by referenceto NS EHEHE-
market prices.
RESULTS #5
Segment result FEEE 44,305 17973 29,811 2,638 193,958 426,085 163 714933 - 714933
Unallocated expenses FABEH (40,420)
Profit before taxation BB ATRA 674,513

The accounting policies of the operating
segments are the same as the Group’s
accounting policies described in note 4.
Segment results represent the results
from each segment without allocation of
administration costs incurred by head office
and the inactive subsidiaries. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating
decision makers for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s

assets and liabilities by operating segment:

As at 31 March 2017

7. SBEH =)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

THEEHARS

UTAREEREE

BED:

R-ZE—t&E=A=+—H

Dz

BER

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property agency and
Construction ~ renovation materials products  investment  development management  Consolidated
NERE
BE  EURER BENH BRER NERE NELR REE &4
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E8TR A8t E8Tn EBTn EETR EETn E8Tn EBTR
ASSETS 2B
Segment assets SBEE 1,223,142 137,884 235,644 36,634 2,783,836 544,907 23,506 4,985,553
Unallocated assets FABEE 1,710
Consolidated assets GREE 4,997,263
LIABILITIES R
Seqment liailities HEER 657,59 65,715 395,149 2,683 638,169 26,537 959 1786808
Unallocated labilities FAREE 143,840
Consolidated liabilities GRER 1,930,648

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016

7. BEH =)

(b) 7EEEHRKE (&)

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction ~ renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  RHREE  BEMR REER WERE DEER RER Ga
HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BRI BETR E¥TR BETT BRI A¥TR E¥TR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HBEE 1,412,165 117,809 201,696 35,686 1,989,224 610,306 77,966 4,444,852
Unallocated assets KIBEE 41,214
Consolidated assets GREE 4,486,066
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities 2EEE 674,580 73,846 161,416 2,884 668,492 31,088 1231 1613537
Unallocated liabilities FATMEE 175,287
Consolidated liabilities GR8E 1,788,824

For the purposes of monitoring segment

performance and allocating resources between

segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating
segments other than central bank
balances and cash of head office and
other inactive subsidiaries, taxation
recoverable and deferred tax assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating
segments other than other payables of
head office and the inactive subsidiaries,
taxation payable and deferred tax

liabilities.

REESBERARIBIEENE

R
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(c) Other information

Year ended 31 March 2017

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

7. SEEH &)
() HtbEH

BE-Z—tF=A=+—HLEE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction  renovation materials products  investment development management Consolidated
NERE
BE  EHREE BENH  BEER NERE NEER REE g8
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
B¥Tr  E¥Tn R¥TR A¥TR BRETT BETT A¥TR A¥TR
Amounts included in the measure 3t B EXERABEERTAZ
of segment results or segment £
assets:
Depreciation of property, N% BERRHENE

plant and equipment 8732 38 5,064 789 2,170 19 1,903 18,715
Gain on change in fair value of ~ RENE2 AFEREz %

investment properties - - - - (255,042) - - (255,042)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ BEEREZATEZ Bz Ui

investments held for trading (58) - - - - - - (58)
Gain on disposal of property, LENE BERREUE

plant and equipment (666) - - - - - (42) (708)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary ~ HENBAE 2 i - - - - (49,057) - - (49,057)
Interest income FIEHRA (2,306) - (20) ) - (1,264) (364) (3,955)
Share of profit of an associate 5B E A FEA - - - - (323 - - 323)
Share of profit of joint ventures ~ AEAESERT - - - - (42,975) (14,207) - (57,182)
Finance costs BHER - - 1 - 13217 - - 13,229
Additions to non-current assets  REFFHEE (HizE)

(note) 5112 - 4,654 - 28,487 - M 38,564
Interest in an associate BeNAzER - - - - 6,941 - - 6,941
Iterests in joint ventures RELEVER - - - - 293,551 129,187 - 422,738
Amounts regularly providedto ~ FEFES B EEEHER

the chief operating decision RIELERREZER:

makers but not included in

the measure of segment results:

Income tax expenses FgHxi 7,008 340 11,386 445 632 17,361 380 37,552
Note: Non-current assets exclude pledged bank Mizt: FRBDEETBEDIEMRIT

deposits, deferred tax assets, interest in an
associate and interests in joint ventures.

FRCEEBEEE BEQT
ZEEREE R EE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(9]

Other information (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2016

7. BEH =)

(0 Hi&EHR (&)

BE-ZE-R"E=ZA=+—-HLEE

Property
Interior and Building Health Property Property  agency and
Construction ~ renovation materials products investment development management  Consolidated
NERE
BE  EHREE  BEMR ERER NERE L REER G4
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A¥Tn BEIn  BETn BETn E¥Tn BT BMTR A¥In
Amounts included in the measure S EABFERANBEERTAZ
of segment results or segment £
assets:
Depreciation of property, W BERFEZNE

plant and equipment 3,467 38 3325 9%7 898 17 1916 10,608
Gain on change in fair value of ~ RENEZAFERBZzUH

investment properties - - - - (210,223 - - (210,223)
Loss on change in fair value o~ BFEEZREZATFELH EE

investments held for trading 101 - - - - - - 101
Reversal of impairment loss BECRARKFEHERE

recognised on trade debtors - - (927) - - - - (927)
Gain on change in fair value of ~ EtRBEMHEZATEZE

other long-term payable W& - - - - - (14,253) - (14,253)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, &M% HRERREZ (K5)

plant and equipment 5] (4,194) - ®) 2 - - - (8,170)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HEMBEL 2z - - - - (252) - - (252)
Gain on disposal of a development EBHE-BHEAALERR

project through disposal of BBz W&

a subsidiary - - - - - (416,626) - (416,626)
Interest income FBKRA (86) - (16) ) - (98) (1,626) (1,827)
Share of profit of an associate ~ AMEBE 1 FRA - - - - (95) - - (95)
Share of loss of joint ventures ~ 2EAELEFE - - - - - 50,260 - 50,260
Finance costs HEER - - 2,267 - 9,609 250 - 12,126
Additions to non-current assets  AEFFEBEE ()

(note) 8,523 - 1,548 1,126 20,295 % 3 31,589
Interest in an associate BeNAzER - - - - 6,618 - - 6,618
Interests in joint ventures REtEVER - - - - - 117,483 - 117,483
Amounts regularly provided to A EEEBEHER

the chief operating decision LIBLERRECEE:

makers but not included in

the measure of segment results:

Income tax expenses (credit) FERZE (5t A) 5935 2630 3,162 253 (1317) 15,792 362 26,817
Note: Non-current assets exclude pledged bank Mat: ERBEETEESEART
deposits, deferred tax assets, interest in an GFREERBEE HBEQA

associate and interests in joint ventures.

ZEEREE R ERE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. H¥EEH &)

HibE® (&)

(c) Other information (Continued) (d)

Geographical information iy & & K
EAEENEXBEIERBE R
(RAFEHE)NES  BAE
B ARRBEF 2B LE 25|
wEMS S ENEXTFE S D
M- REBBEFNEXBERBY
3,197,536,0007T (=T —RF 8
#£2,595,046,0007T ) °

The Group’s turnover which is generated
from customers located in Hong Kong, the
Company’s place of domicile, amounted to
HK$3,197,536,000 (2016: HK$2,595,046,000).
Accordingly, no further analysis of the Group’s
turnover by geographical market based on
geographical location of customers has been
presented.

AEEFRBEERBEE 2 IE
UEDHE2HRMNT (M)

The analysis of the Group’s non-current assets
by geographical location of assets is presented
as follows (Note):

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
ZE-tF | ZF-AF
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Hong Kong (place of B8 (MEHE)

domicile) 2,953,501 2,130,516
The PRC B 132,481 120,672
3,085,982 2,251,188
Note: Interest in an associate and interests in B&E - H%%’REZF%&%_%{E%Z
joint ventures are analysed by geographical BmEDBIUREAEENHE

NEEDH -

location of their respective operations.

FRBEETBFECETET
FREEERIREE-

Non-current assets excluded pledged bank
deposits and deferred tax assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued)

(c) Other information (Continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding
years individually contributing over 10% of the

7. EEHE #)
() HEtEx (&)

EREREFZEH

REBFEXN EMEBAEER
EEFE0%2@RIFF 2B A

total turnover of the Group is as follows: T
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HKS$’000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Customer A (note) BEZH (MIEE) 834,968 —%
Customer B (note) BEEZ (MiEE) 674,639 —*
Customer C (note) BER (M) —* 460,310
Customer D (note) BEZET (MIsEE) —* 385,477

Note: Revenue from construction contracts income

within the construction segment.

* The corresponding revenue does not
contribute over 10% of the total turnover of

the Group in the respective year.

MaE: REZEIBZBRESHWE

ZWA o

* RBEFER  HARKA SR
THBAREBMBLEHKTEI0Y%

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hftlr A
2017 2016
—ZE—+5F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Other income includes: HitUy A B :

Dividend income BREWA 8 6
Interest income FE WA 3,955 1,827
Storage income FRWA 268 343
Sales of scrap materials FERISHE 1,272 1,303

Gain on disposal of property, HENE BERRBE2ZNRGZ
plant and equipment 708 4,170
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9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

10.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

9. HftlkZREHIR

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other gains and losses comprises: H % & BB EE :
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries  HE&EMEQ 7z Uz (KizE36)
(note 36) 49,057 252
Gain (loss) on change in BEEBEZREZ
fair value of investments N ESE 2 W (EE)
held for trading 58 (101)
Gain on disposal of ZRHE—RBHBARHE
a development project BRIER 2W& (FaE37)
through disposal of
a subsidiary (note 37) - 416,626
Gain on change in fair value of HtREIESRIEBZ
other long-term payable AFEEZF 2 WS - 14,253
49,115 431,030
FINANCE COSTS 10. UBHEHA
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest on bank and other loans $R{TREMER 2R E 13,229 15,015
Less: Amount capitalised B BERLRERFPZ
in properties under HEVEZEH
development for sale - (2,889)
13,229 12,126

Borrowings costs capitalised arose on specific
borrowings to finance the properties under
development for sale for the year ended 31 March

2016.

NBE—_FE-AE=A=+—BHLEE"
BERPZFEVERBES2HEER
BEMEEZBERTESWER-

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

11. BRIRAEF

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation has been MRELADEFI S R (5HA) ¢
arrived at after
charging (crediting):
Directors’ emoluments (note 12(i)) BEMNE (MEE123))
Fees ws 989 944
Other emoluments H i< 36,696 35,968
Equity-settled share-based DEREER
payments LR X A4 2 FRIE 1,900 -
39,585 36,912
Other staff costs Hh8 TR
Salaries and other benefits HFeREMEBER 342,255 310,632
Equity-settled share-based URSEER
payments LR 0 24 2 718 1,192 -
Retirement benefits scheme RNERIGH B
contributions 18,586 14,768
Total staff costs incurred EEECZETIRAELE 401,618 362,312
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (cContinued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

1. RRAER &

2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RE
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Depreciation of property, plantand %% -BERREZITE
equipment 13,532 6,011
Auditor’s remuneration A2 3,150 2,880
Reversal of impairment loss BOocmIAERNRIBREESE
recognised on trade debtors - (927)
Gain on disposal of property, HEVE BERSZE2ZRR
plant and equipment (708) (4,170)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W (MEE36)
(note 36) (49,057) (252)
Gain on disposal of a development ZEBHE-—BHBATHE
project through disposal of a BREH W (MEE37)
subsidiary (note 37) - (416,626)
Gain on change in fair value of Htt REENRIEZ
other long-term payable NP ESH W& - (14,253)
Net exchange loss R KR 629 2,392
Contract costs recognised BHRATT AHERA
as expenses in cost of sales 2,573,663 2,084,683
Costs of inventories recognised FERARGT AHERA
as expenses in cost of sales 188,701 159,688
Reversal of over accrued contract REABEREBERIEZ
costs upon finalisation of HBREETTE N A
accounts during the year (22,598) (24,557)
Gross rental income under REBEEHRSWMALE
operating leases (44,881) (31,655)
Less: Direct operating expenses WREREEEHEESBA
that generated rental Mol EREEE TN
income during the year 9,938 3,932
(34,943) (27,723)

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued)

1. RRAER @)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sub-leasing income ZHEBA (268) (343)
Less: Direct operating expenses that & : REREEE D HAURA
generated sub-leasing income Mol EEEE TN
during the year 52 51
(216) (292)
Expenses included in cost of BERENIRRAANZEZE
contract work:
Depreciation e 5,183 4,597
Release of prepaid FEREEREZRE
lease payments 201 213
Rentals under operating ReHEsHE:
leases in respect of:
- plant and machinery - E RS 24,888 15,208
- others —Hits 547 1,627
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

EMOLUMENTS

(i) Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
emoluments paid or payable to each of the

seven (2016: eight) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

NR.EFRIEEEFALIHE

() E=M<

RAFE REBEERAZ EHRAR
BEERERARIIBKE2ESHE R
ENHENTFLERESE (ZF—X
FNB)EEZHMENT

BE-E—tF=A=+—HLEE

Executive directors (note a)

Non-executive directors (note b)

Independent non-executive directors (note )

$7ES (Wita) FATES (Hib) BUFATES (W0
Wong Cha Mou Cha Mou Lau
Sue Toa, Tai Sing, Daid, Chan Tze Yiu, Sun Total
Stewart Sai Ho Subtotal Payson Johnson Subtotal Pak Joe Peter Tai Lun Subtotal  emoluments
ItE BtE it ERE ERE it Rk 27 EXf it ame
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETn BT BMTn B¥Tn E%Tn B¥Tn B¥Tx BMTn BETn BMTr BT
Fees Be - - - 100 100 200 263 263 263 789 989
Other emoluments Hibme
Salaries and other benefits HEREMEA 3,386 2129 5515 - - - - - - - 5515
Performance related incentive IERERS
payments (note d) (GES 13,500 7388 20,888 - - - - - - - 20,888
Retirement benefits scheme BAERITHER
contributions 508 319 827 - - - - - - - 827
Ex-gratia payments (note e) BEFE (Mite) - 9,466 9,466 - - - - - - - 9,466
Equity-settled share-based payments R EE R AR H
XH2RE 736 368 1,104 3M 3N 622 62 50 62 174 1,900
18,130 19,670 37,800 a1 m 822 325 31 325 963 39,585

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 12. EERAGESFALTEHSE

EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#)

(i) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (i)

For the year ended 31 March 2016

EEMNE (&)

HEZE—RF=ZA=+—HLEFE

Executive directors (Note a) Non-executive directors (Note b) Independent non-executive directors (Note ¢)
H4EE (Ka) FUTES (Hib) BUFUGES (Ko
Wong Cha Cha Lau
Sue Toa, Tai MouSing,  Mou Daid, Lam Chan Tze Yiu, Sun Total
Stewart Sai Ho Subtotal Payson Johnson ChatYu*  Subtotal Pak Joe Peter Tai Lun Subtotal ~ emoluments
Its BtE gt 2. BRE WER gt Riat 475 BiR At ane
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BETL BETR BBTR BMTR BMTR BMTR BMTR BMTR BMTR BBTR BMTR BETR
Fees ik - - - 100 100 69 269 25 05 05 675 944
Other emoluments RitHe
Salaries and other benefits FERAMER 3239 2037 5276 - - - - - - - - 5276
Performance related incentive  IfEXERBS
payments (Note d) (Hf3Ed) 10,600 5,300 15,900 - - - - - - - - 15,900
Retirement benefits scheme ~ BIAEAIHIfEE
contributions 486 306 92 - - - - - - - - 92
Ex-gratia payments (Notee) 4550 (Hfite) 14,000 - 14,000 - - - - - - - - 14,000
28325 7683 35,968 100 100 69 269 25 05 25 675 36912
* Dr. Lam Chat Yu resigned as a non-executive * MEFELER=_Z—HFE+=
director of the Company on 10 December B+HEBEEQTIPHTESR
2015. o
Notes: BET
(a) The executive directors’ emoluments shown (a) LIMMTEEMSAEMEEAK
above were for their services in connection RARKTEEEREHE 2 RIEHE
with the management of the affairs of the B
Company and the Group.
(b) The non-executive directors’ emoluments (b) LHFEBITEEMSEMNEIES

shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

0]

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(c) The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were for their
services as directors of the Company.

(d) The performance related incentive payments
are determined based on the performance of
the individual and the Group’s performance
and profitability for the year.

(e) The ex-gratia payment is given to the directors
of the Company to recognise the long service
and contribution to the Group.

No directors waived any emoluments for both
years.

Other than a disposal of an investment
property as disclosed in note 45, no other
significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

NR.EFRIEEEFALIHE

() EsM= @)

Myt (&)

(0 EHBVFHMTESHEAME
EREALTEE 2R -

(d IERREBERBEZFEN
BAZRBARAEBZEERR
MEEDMEE -

() HBTALAEBZHEFRLE
REHAEBERABRBRER-

FR I8 9 8] 6 B 3F 4 55 55 TR AT ) B
ﬁ o

BREAEASPTIRE < HE—IRIREY
EUSN RNRBEIT L ARANRE
ERETEEIBEEREAES
MR FETE B RAFEREM
B R Rz R A SR E 75 1E R
ZEMEARZ ZHRiHE-

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

()

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and
2016, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any directors as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

Share options were granted to certain directors
in respect of their services to the Group under
the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme and the
share options granted to the directors are set
out in note 38. No share options are granted
under the share option scheme during the
years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2017,
31,664,000 (2016: nil) Award Shares (as defined
in note 39) were granted to directors of the
Company in respect of their services to the
Group under the Share Award Scheme (as
defined in note 39). The fair value of these
shares granted during the year ended 31
March 2017 amounting to HK$41,276,000 was
determined with reference to the market value
of the shares of the Company at the grant
date, of which HK$1,900,000 was recognised
as equity-settled share-based payments during
the year ended 31 March 2017. The market
value for those Award Shares as at their
grant date was amounted to approximately
HK$43,696,000, which was calculated with
reference to the closest trading price of the
Company'’s share of HK$1.38 per share. Details
of the Share Award Scheme are set out in note
39.

NR.EFRIEEEFALIHE

(&)

()
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EEME #)

BE-_ZT—tER=-F—~F=A
=t+—BLEFEE AEEWEDOT
AEEXZFME EASEMAK
SERMAREE ZRE REEHE
R

REARRFBRESE CRKSF
HASKEZRBEOETESKHE
RE-FHEBREFIRRTES
ZIBRE 2 BRI RE38 - &
E-E-tLtHERZFT-AF=A
=t—BLFE SEREBRE
IR B

REBEZE=-ZE—+tH&=ZHA=+—H
IEFEER 31,664,000 (=&
—RE B)EERH(EEZRKH
H3)ERBRMDRETE (EE
B39 ERADNAEETRAE
ERU2BEEMRERTFRE-ERN
BEZ-Z—tH&=A=+—-BL
FEREZROMZEBAFES
7 %541,276,000T NS BRHEA
ZARDNBROTEEE  HP B
1,900,000t REZE—Z—tF =4
S+-HLEFEEREIRUERSE
ERUBD I 2B -ZERE
BRONREREABZHENREE
43,696,0007T ' 32 Z AR QAR5
ZEBREBMR ZESREBE1.38TE
B -RORBEHFBHENRMET
39¢



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 12. EERAGESFALTEHSE

EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#)
(i) Five highest paid employees (i) EEESHES
During the year, the five highest paid rFE hAEBEFALTEBEMSE
individuals included two directors (2016: two BEFE(Z2—REWMBES) &
directors), details of whose emoluments are set MEESZHMEeHFBENR L -H
out above. The emoluments of the remaining B=B(ZE—RF: =ZF) LD
three (2016: three) highest paid individuals AEECESHFALTZHMENT :
who are not directors of the Company were as
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits ¥ & Rk HE 12T 3,432 3,277
Performance related ITERBRBE
incentive payments 6,950 5,400
Retirement benefits scheme R{RERIGH B
contributions 515 491
Equity-settled share-based  LIEZEEK
payments LU 2 2 FRIB 352 -
Ex-gratia payments HERMIR - 5,025
11,249 14,193
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(ii) Five highest paid employees (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees

NR.EFRIEEEFALIHE

(#&)
(il EERSHES (&

FARNAERZZBRSHFALTHEZ

who are not the directors of the Company e T HIA R
whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RE
HK$2,500,001 — 7B #£2,500,0017T —
HK$3,000,000 75 #£3,000,0007T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 - 78 #£3,500,0017T —
HK$4,000,000 7&#54,000,0007T 1 1
HK$4,000,001 - 7 %£4,000,0017T —
HK$4,500,000 7&#4,500,0007T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 — 7B #£4,500,0017T —
HK$5,000,000 75 #£5,000,0007T - 1
HK$5,500,001 — 78 #£5,500,001 7T —
HK$6,000,000 7&%56,000,0007TC - 1

During the year ended 31 March 2017,
5,871,000 (2016: nil) Award Shares were
granted to the three relevant highest paid
employees in respect of their services to
the Group under the Share Award Scheme.
Details of the Share Award Scheme are set
out in note 39. The fair value of these shares
granted during the year ended 31 March 2017
amounting to HK$7,653,000 was determined
with reference to the market value of the
shares of the Company at the grant date, of
which HK$352,000 was recognised as equity-
settled share-based payments during the year
ended 31 March 2017. The market value for
those Award Shares as at their grant date was
amounted to approximately HK$8,102,000,
which was calculated with reference to the
closest trading price of the Company’s share of
HK$1.38 per share.

RBZE-Z—tF=A=+—HI1
FE RERORBETE ERE
EHAEBZRER=VEBRS
#FIEE# 15,871,000 (=& — N
F . E)ERRD -BRERRMNZ
HBHAME -REBE=E—+
FZA=+—HIEFEHBERZ
BRAR M 22 F{EABYT,653,000
T NS ERBBBZAQTRSG
TEEE  Hi8%352,000TAE
EZE—+FZA=1+—HLEE
BEEIBUESZEER RS XA
ZRE -ZERBRANEL A
ZTEL A HB%8,102,0007T ' J32
ERPNERDZRIEPRZEESR
BHE1.38LETE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 #t 2 fif 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

13. TAXATION 13. HLIEXH
2017 2016
—E—tHF —E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBAEH
Current year TEE 38,014 25,326
(Over)underprovision in BAEFE (HBEEEE)
prior years BETR (67) 2,097
37,947 27,423
Deferred taxation (note 32) EERIE (MFEE32) (395) (606)
37,552 26,817
Hong Kong Profits Tax is provided at 16.5% on the MEFE 2 EBFEH UG ERN G
estimated assessable profits for both years. FMEI16.5% 5t 1R B o
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax RETBECERSHRE(EEMRSH
(the “EIT Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of ENREEFMBBUEEREEG B
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% BARRMEFENHEITH25% °
for both years.
No provision for taxation in the PRC as there are no A F 30 SR PR ER BRI - AR SRR
assessable profits for both years. HEIB IR IR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

#HE=

13.

—tE=ZA=t—-HLEE

TAXATION (continued)

Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of

profit or loss as follows:

13. BB H (&)

FERBIXHEFABEER ZBRBANS
FEERWIT

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-XREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation RRF A& F 554,491 674,513
Tax at the domestic income tax A FFEH T £16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) (ZE—XRF:16.5%)2HE 91,491 111,295
Tax effect of share of profit of EEBE NG BETE
an associate (53) (16)
Tax effect of share of (profit) FEihegE iz OFF) BBz
loss of joint ventures BMETE (9,435) 8,293
Tax effect of expenses not REBFEATHRZ
deductible for tax purpose THHRETE 5,828 16,542
Tax effect of income not REBFTEBERKRZ
taxable for tax purpose WA ZB L (51,761) (109,896)
Utilisation of tax losses CEAZRIRER 2RIEEE
previously not recognised (173) (2,330)
Tax effect of tax losses not RAERZBHEBEZHBERE
recognised 1,822 1,211
Tax effect of different tax rates KB R AR EMELEEEEN
of subsidiaries operating TRREZHRBEE
in other jurisdictions (100) (379)
(Over)underprovision BEFEE (BE)BETE
in prior years (67) 2,097
Taxation for the year FEBEIH 37,552 26,817
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #¢ &

St 25 e A B i

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

14. DIVIDENDS 14. &R
2017 2016
—E—+5F ZE—-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Dividends recognised as FREBRIACDIKZ
distribution during the year: BEWMT:
Ordinary shares: ZER:
Interim dividend for 2017 - —E—tFHHEHRE
HK2.2 cents per share —BRE2.21l
(2016: HK2.5 cents per share (ZE2—RE ZE2—RE
for 2016) BRBEE2.51) 21,966 16,942
Final dividend for 2016 - —E-RERERE
HK5.0 cents per share —FIRBES5.0M
(2016: HK3.4 cents per share (ZBE—RE . ZE—5F
for 2015) BRBEE3.41M) 51,857 18,433
73,823 35,375
2017 2016
—E—+t5F —EB—-RXE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Proposed final dividend for the BLKBEBE-_Z—tHF
financial year ended 31 March :ﬁ =t+—HALMBFEZ
2017 of HK5.0 cents per share REA IR B8 IR B ¥5.010
(2016: for the financial year (ZE2—RF BE-Z—KF
ended 31 March 2016 of HK5.0 Z=B=+—BLEHBFE
cents per share) F IR B HES.00l) 49,315 51,786

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
per share for the year attributable to owners of the
Company based on the following data:

15. SlREF

ARREE AR EETRENREE
BRI T B

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-—REF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Earnings 27
Earnings for the purpose of basic AU ESRERK
and diluted earnings per share ~ ESERRIMNEF| 516,939 635,701
2017 2016
—E—t5F —E-RE
‘000 ‘000
F] TR
Number of shares ROEE
Weighted average number of AU ESRERBRN
ordinary shares for the EiERMEFIH (M)
purpose of basic earnings
per share (Note) 1,014,378 794,807
Effect of dilutive potential BEETERRNTE:
ordinary shares:
Adjustment in relation to MARRBITHBRE
share options issued by {EH R A&
the Company 4,509 9,875
Adjustment in relation to AR B H AR E R D
Award Shares granted by fEH R
the Company 369 -
Weighted average number of RAUGTESREERAN
ordinary shares for the purpose  Z@ER MNEF L (KizE)
of diluted earnings per share
(Note) 1,019,256 804,682
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued) 15. SIREBH (&

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares fed: BZ2-_F—+tF=A=Z+—HBLHF
for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per E ANGHEBREXRREBERFN
share for the year ended 31 March 2017 have been ZEBRMET LR AETER
arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust AREDTAFEZROEEE (KM
for the Company (note 39). 39) -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REME

HK$'000
BT T

FAIR VALUE NFE

At 1 April 2015 N-E—R&EmMA—A 1,028,240

Additions NE 18,501

Disposals HE (22,710)

Gain on change in fair value AFEZB 2R 210,223

Transfer to property, ERZYE -BMEREZHE (HEE17)

plant and equipment (note 17) (114,000)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) UM E A R (MEE35) 1,257,056

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEME QT (MiFE36) (550,000)

At 31 March 2016 R-ZB-XRF=ZA=+—H 1,827,310

Additions hE 25,844

Disposals HE (9,173)

Gain on change in fair value NP EEE WS 255,042

Transfer to assets classified ERECoEABFLHEZEE

as held for sale (note 29) (PFFEE29) (24,784)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) U BB BT /8 2 &) (FfFRE35) 490,683

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEME 2R (MEE36) (165,222)

At 31 March 2017 R-ZE—+tHF=A=+—H 2,399,700

LI A P A TR AR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties
at 31 March 2017 and 2016 has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on the respective
date by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited (“JLL"), an
independent property valuer not connected with
the Group. JLL has appropriate qualifications
and recent experience in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. In estimating
the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current
use. The valuation of properties amounting to
HK$43,700,000 (2016: HK$113,200,000) was arrived
at by reference to market evidence of transaction
prices of similar properties. The valuations of other
properties amounting to HK$2,356,000,000 (2016:
HK$1,714,110,000) were arrived at by reference to
the income capitalisation method which is based
on the capitalisation of the net income potential by
adopting an appropriate capitalisation rate, which
is derived from analysis of sale transactions and
interpretation of prevailing investor requirements
or expectations.

Summary of fair value hierarchy and Level 3
fair value measurements

All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties. All investment properties of
the Group are valued by reference to a Level 3 fair
value measurement.

There are no transfers between different levels
within the fair value hierarchy during both years.

16. B EME &)

TEBZREMER-_Z—LtEF=A
=t+—-HER=ZZE—-X"F=ZA=+—-HZ
AFEIDHBEIYEGLEMPERTE
PRAR (MMPE8T]) (B E I &
BE)REAZHEEE - HMEHTA
BEREEREN NS EERTERE
EYXETRE - REFTYEZATE
K -Y¥zEak&ERZ2AHEBAA
BR-BERENEZLTERZERMGE
2 Y ¥EEE A B¥43,700,000T (= F
— N 1 75%5113,200,0007T) < BRA WA
BREEARFEAGECHMYEEEAE
#52,356,000,0000T (=T — RNF B
1,714,110,0007T) - L A2 RIBHRAE
ENERLEEEBERERAFEIEER
bt ERHHEERZIMNERREEZ
ERFEEAHE R T S B AR o

AP ESEERE=RAFETEZ
BE

AEEA A EERE S RISE - LA
MASRAAHER RO ZNERSR
FERRENE LORAFEMRIIE-
AEEFERENKEREE=RAT
B fAME

RMEFEALELFESZRETRR
B BVER o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Level 3 valuation methodologies

Below is a table which presents the significant

unobservable inputs:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

16. EME =
F£=
THREJNEARTHERHASE:

RAEETE

Fair value Significant unobservable inputs (note (b))
AYE EXTABERALY (K (b))
Direct comparison method Adjusted market price per square foot (note (a))
EEtEE BRARNGTHRHE (K@)
Agricultural HK$43,700,000 HK$190 - HK$360
Eif (2016: HK$113,200,000) (2016: HK$190 - HK$560)
78 #43,700,0007T BHE1907T — B %3607
(ZE-RE: (ZB—RE B¥1907 - 85607 )
7#113,200,0007T)
Capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate Monthly market rent (per square foot)
BR{EE (note ()) (note (c))
Exfb® §RTMERS (BFAR)
(K3E(d) (HtEE()
Commercial HK$1,251,020,000 3.50% - 5.00% HK$15.00 to HK$70.00
¥ (2016: HK$1,121,850,000) (2016: 3.50% - 5.00%) (2016: HK$15.00 to HK$75.00)
#1#1,251,020,0007T 3.50%~5.00% B #15.007 - &%70.0070
(ZB-R%: (ZZ—-RF1350%-5.00%) (ZZ—RF E#15.00 - B%75.007)
78#1,121,850,0007T)
Industrial HK$434,980,000 3.50% - 5.50% HK$6.70 to HK$72.00
I% (2016: HK$292,260,000) (2016: 4.00% - 5.50%) (2016: HK$6.70 to HK$15.80)
434,980,000 3.50%~5.00% & #6.7070 - B H72.00%
(ZB-R%: (ZZ—RE14.00% - 5.50% ) (ZE-RE B¥670 - E¥15.807)
71#292,260,0007T)
Residential HK$670,000,000 3.75% - 4.75% HK$27.00 to HK$71.30
&2 (2016: HK$300,000,000) (2016: 4.75%) (2016: HK$30.00 to HK$68.10)
#%#670,000,0007C 3.75%~4.75% B#27.00m - E%71.307
(ZB-R%: (ZB-RE:475%) (ZZ—RE 1 E#30.007 - B%68.107)
78 #300,000,0007z)

Notes: BiEE

(a) Adjusted market price per square foot has taken into (a) KRENBIEHFRTEDZRZIVEN
account of property-specific adjustment including BEAR EFNE - tHEERITS
location, land quality and timing of reference EXR G ZERE -
transaction.

(b) Fair value measurement of investment properties is (b) BREMEZAFEIEESASFAIR
positively correlated to the monthly market rent per TEHSREARNESTARTERZE
square foot and adjusted market price per square EEREMY MEEAR L R2amEEE
foot and negatively correlated to the capitalisation e
rate.

() A significant change in these inputs would result in a (0 HERABECEAEHLEEHLATE

significantly higher or lower fair value measurement.

FFERELEAS TR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BERZE
Leasehold Furniture
land and Plant and and Leasehold Motor
buildings  equipment fixtures improvements vehicles Total
HET#HRK
BF HBEKERE HGAREE & AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
CosT A
At 1 April 2015 R-E-REMA-A 73,660 70,658 19,537 15,454 12,191 191,500
Exchange adjustments ERHE (1,248) (543) (153) 9 (84) (2,037)
Additions RE - 929 2,440 1,197 8,522 13,088
Disposals HE - (16,159) (897) (1,009) (3,269) (21,334)
Transfer from investment B EMEER (K16)

properties (note 16) 114,000 - - - - 114,000
Transfer from properties under ~ REEHR 2 SENEER

development for sale 110,181 - - - - 110,181
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEME A (MEE35)

(note 35) - - 89 195 - 284
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &K B2 7 (Ki536) - - (625) (385) - (1,010)
At 31 March 2016 RZB-XF=ZA=1-H 296,593 54,885 20,391 15,443 17,360 404,672
Exchange adjustments ExHE (1,776) (837) (219) (15) (120) (2,967)
Additions RE 144 3,618 2,838 2,987 3,133 12,720
Disposals HE - (3,965) (1,179) (455) (1,688) (7,287)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEME AR (MiEE35)

(note 35) - - 697 - - 697
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &K B2 7 (Ki536) (37,000 - - - - (37,000)
At 31 March 2017 RZB-+tF=A=1-H 257,961 53,701 22,528 17,960 18,685 370,835
DEPRECIATION AND FERBE

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2015 R-ZE-HEEMA-A 21,391 62,215 15,865 13,193 10,042 122,706
Exchange adjustments ExHE (370) (298) (128) 0] (44) (842)
Provided for the year EERE 3,49 1,836 1,745 1918 1,613 10,608
Eliminated on disposals R - (16,159) (868) (978) (3,247) (21,252)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &K &2 & ( H&t36) - - (189) (104) - (293)
At 31 March 2016 RZEB-RE=ZR=1+-H 24,517 47,59 16,425 14,027 8,364 110,927
Exchange adjustments ERHE (602) (492) (201) @ ) (1,372)
Provided for the year FERE 10,986 2,013 1,778 1,202 2,736 18,715
Eliminated on disposals HE RS - (3,965) (1,179) (455) (1,688) (7,287)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) &K B2 7 (Ki3k36) (1,279) - - - - (1,279)
At 31 March 2017 RZB-+tF=A=+-H 33,622 45,150 16,823 14,770 9,339 119,704
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2017 R-ZZE-t§=A=1-H 224,339 8,551 5,705 3,190 9,346 251,131
At 31 March 2016 R-ZZE-xF=A=1-H 272,076 7,291 3,966 1,416 8,996 293,745
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the unexpired term of the

and buildings relevant lease period from 20
to 50 years
Leasehold Over the shorter of the term of
improvements the lease period or 5 years
Other assets 5 years

The carrying value of leasehold land and buildings
comprises properties in Hong Kong except for
certain buildings amounting to HK$17,612,000
(2016: HK$19,972,000) which are located in the PRC.

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

17. E - -BERRZRE (&)

LEYR - BERREEE DRMRIBEER
EREBEEUSTEINE FHOT

HE+# BABEANKRERFSH
kEgF H-tZa+F

& EREANERFHIEF
(ABEERE)
HtEE "F

AN BRE{E B 1517,612,000T (=& — N
& 1 78%519,972,000T) (U AFEI R E T
BFEN HELHREFRE BN EAE
Ejzo

18. ENHERE

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-RE
=A=+-8 | =A=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
The Group's prepaid lease rEBZBEMNEERBERE:
payments represent:
Leasehold land in the PRC A& i 5,673 6,245
Analysed for reporting LBERBHNZDM:
purposes as:
Current asset REEE 201 213
Non-current asset ERBEE 5,472 6,032
5,673 6,245
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 19. BEE QTR 2=
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tHF —E-RE
=BA=+-—-H8 | =Z=AR=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of unlisted investment in an REE QAT IE LHIRE 2 A
associate 6,618 6,618
Share of post-acquisition profit, 2 1GWEEE 2 F|
net of dividends received (fRREWZBRE) 323 -
6,941 6,618
Details of the Group's associate as at 31 March 2017 R-ZB—tHF=A=Z+—-HR=ZF—R
and 2016 are as follows: FE=A=1+—H FAEEHE QAT ZHE
mE:
Place of Attributable
incorporation interest and
Form of and principal proportion of
Name of business place of Class of voting power Principal
associate structure operation shares held held by the Group activity
AKE
A ER AL 3t B iR A BiERAERR
BHENRZEB EBEBER TEEXBE Ehl REREZLH TEXY
2017 2016
ZE—tF|ZE-RF
Hoi Bun Godown Limited liability Hong Kong Ordinary 50% 50% Property
Company Limited company investment
(“Hoi Bun
Godown")
BEERBRAR  ABRAH 5E EER MERE
(hgEER])
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19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts
shown in the associate’s financial statements,
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associate is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

19. & NT 2R (&)

FEEBENT 2P BERRBREAS W
T o TIMBERPRIIRRE B BER
HEAFEH 2 BEQAYBRERATRE
o

ENREAERERZEFREMBR
%)\EE°

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total assets EEAE 13,894 13,249
Total liabilities eEEE (12) (13)
Net assets EEFE 13,882 13,236
Group's share of net assets of rEBREGHENRNEEFE
the associate 6,941 6,618
Revenue WA 728 466
Profit for the year REERER 646 190
Group's share of profit and REBERIEHE QT
other comprehensive income of ANFEEEFREMEEEA
the associate for the year 323 95
Dividend received from the o REE N TRE
associate - 19,700
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-Z—tHF=ZA=+—HLEFE

19. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The financial information of Hoi Bun Godown
relating to the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016
included in the consolidated financial statements
do not constitute Hoi Bun Godown's statutory
annual financial statements for those years but is
derived from those financial statements. Further
information relating to these statutory financial
statements required to be disclosed in accordance
with section 436 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is as follows:

(i) As Hoi Bun Godown is a private company,
Hoi Bun Godown is not required to deliver
its financial statements to the Registrar of
Companies, and will not do so.

(ii) Hoi Bun Godown's auditor has reported on the
financial statements of Hoi Bun Godown for
the year ended 31 March 2016. The auditor’s
reports were unqualified; did not include a
reference to any matters to which the auditor
drew attention by way of emphasis without
qualifying its reports; and did not contain a
statement under sections 406(2), 407(2) or (3)
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(iii) Hoi Bun Godown'’s auditor has yet to report on
these financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017.

19. BB NTI 2R (&)

GEMBRRFBAEEE_ZT—tF
&:$—A$ A=+—HBLEEZS
BEAMBEENYTERZSEFESE
B ZEEFENKBRE BREZSY
BHRKk BEBERBEEBLTRMFEL36
BFURBECZS EEMBBRR 2E—
TERMT :

‘ﬂllR i

() ARBEERR—BRARF B
BERBABYRGHEHMBHRKE
R AR EME °

(i) BEEENZEMEMNEEERE
E-E-RE=ZA=+—HLEE
2 BBMREEHBE - LBERE
WHRABER WEIBEZENRN
HASREZERENBERT RFEXE
BEMGIMT 2 ERER, FEEE
RIEE B D B RHGI55406(2) - 407(2)
2R ()R A R At

(i) BEERREMEAREBE_F
—tF=ZA=+t—HBLEFEZZE
B sR|AEHIRE o
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20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

20. EE X ES

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—B-tF | ZB-A%E
=A=+-8B | ZA=+-6
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Cost of unlisted investments in ASELEIEEFTEREZRAK
joint ventures 148,302 148,302
Share of post-acquisition losses and 2 {5 B R BER EM2E X H
other comprehensive expense, (MIBRERZEE)
net of dividends received (6,933) (60,448)
141,369 87,854
Loans to joint ventures EELECEX 281,369 29,629
422,738 117,483

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the
Group’s joint venture Haining Jiafeng Real
Estate Development Limited had recognised
an impairment on its properties interest of
HK$47,700,000 (2017: nil), and the Group’s share
of loss for this joint venture was HK$50,225,000
(2017: share of profit for this joint venture is
HK$18,677,000).

Loans to joint ventures are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed terms of repayment.
The Group has no intention to exercise its right
to demand repayment of these loans within the
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period. The directors of the Company believe the
settlement of these loans are not likely to occur in
the foreseeable future as they are, in substance,
a part of the Group’s net investments in the joint
ventures as the proceeds of the loans have been
substantially used by joint ventures to purchase
their investment properties and as working capital
of the joint ventures. Accordingly, the amounts are
classified as non-current asset and included in the
Group’s interests in joint ventures for the purpose
of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

BE-E—-R"EZA=+—-HLEFE:
AEBNEELESERLRILESR
RAGEMEMERZBERREBE
47,700,000t (ZZ2—tF: &) KU
RAEBIHLEELEEFEREBABYE
50,225,0005t (= E—tF : 9 LlEE
EER B %18,677,0007T) °

BELECERAEIER REREEE
BERH - AEEAESNREDR T =@
ARTRERBELEHZER - AQF
ESRARARBREERE TSRS
BE BEASELHERBEEERSE
EREZFREN BN REHER
ZHBERECEABI RS ERERNE
BEEREVERERESELXZEESR
Tl 2L BRIRDEEN
AREEzEERE RN BUESRS
BT RTIER
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. B KR (@)
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at R=F-—tF=A=Z1T—-HR=F—RX
31 March 2017 and 2016 are as follows: FZR=+—H FAEEXTENGEDHE
ZHBWT
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
business and principal Class of voting power
Name of joint ventures  structure place of operation  shares held held by the Group Principal activities
EMALHE  FERA rEBEERTER
REDEZER EBERIR REZEELY Ehl REZE LA TEEH
2017 2016

S A

Haining Jiafeng Limited liability The PRC  Registered 49% 49% Property development in
Real Estate company i capital Haining, the PRC
Development Limited A EMER ReESE
("Haining Jiafeng") ETNFRRENR

BERCRHERRLT
(NSERL))

AG Acquisition M Limited liability British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BRAR ABALEE/BE REBETRERREH

AG Acquisition O Limited liability British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 25% 25% Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BRAR ABALHE/BE REBETRERRER

Eltara Limited Limited liability HongKong  Ordinary 25% 25% Property development in
company BB EER Hong Kong

ARAR REBETNFERER

338 Apartment Holdings  Limited liability British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 40% - Investment holding in
(BVI) Limited® company Hong Kong EER Hong Kong
BRAR ABALEE/BE REBETREERER
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20. ¥R B (&
(Continued)
Attributable
Place of interest and
Form of incorporation proportion of
business and principal Class of voting power
Name of joint ventures  structure place of operation shares held held by the Group Principal activities
ERELEE  AERG rEEEERTER
RELECER E3V 8 5 RIZEFHY ol REZE2 LA TERE
2017 2016
ZB-t% “E-R%
338 Apartment Limited liability British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 40% - Property investment in
(BVI) Limited* company Hong Kong LER Hong Kong
BRARE ABRABE/BE REBETNFREEH
Pagson Development Limited liability British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
Limited" company Hong Kong LER Hong Kong
BRARE ABRABE/BE REBETREERER
Yandi Holdings Limited®  Limited liability British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
company Hong Kong LER Hong Kong
BRARE ABRLBE/BE REBETREERER
CRM One Limited* Limited liability Hong Kong  Ordinary 50% - Property investment in
BH-SERAR company £ LER Hong Kong
BRARE REBETNEREEH
Wall Street 38 Limited"  Limited liability British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary 50% - Investment holding in
Company Hong Kong LER Hong Kong
BRARE ABRLBE/BE REBETREERER
# Joint ventures which were newly acquired during # REBEE-ZE—tE=ZA=1+—HLEE
the year ended 31 March 2017. BB zEEDE-
" Joint ventures which were incorporated during the " REBE-_Z—tF=ZA=1+—HLEE
year ended 31 March 2017. HMELzaERE.
The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group T RENEER AN AEBEENESE
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally EEASEB I RERLSY ¥ - EET
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give B HDHMAZMENER  BSAKRE
details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion BRATE -
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

20. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20.

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint ventures as at 31 March 2017 and 2016
is set out below:

All of these joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial

EEMEIES ()

REZB-tF=A=1T—-HBK=F-—RX
FZA=+—H AEEEELE K
ERBEHIINT :

FEEELXERERERNZAEFRAY
IR AIR

>

statements.
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RE
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYET T BT T
Current assets RBEE 812,822 726,413
Current liabilities REERE (2,122,287) (624,776)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,610,702 59,055
Net assets EEFHE 301,237 160,692
Group's share of net assets AEBDLHZ2EEZRE 141,369 87,854
Net profit (loss) for the year REEF &M (FHE) 129,034 (102,635)
Group's share of profit (loss) AEBIEZEERF (FHE)
for the year 57,182 (50,260)
Dividend received from BREETERE
a joint venture - 8,000

2 1 2 HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 #t 2 fif 5k

21. INVENTORIES

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—B-tFE | —B-A%E
=A=+-8B | =ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Health products - finished goods #2EE7E b — K M 11,019 10,407
Others - finished goods Hibh— B 3,784 3,819
14,803 14,226
22. AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE) 22. BEW (FEEMR) EHIERER
ON CONTRACT WORK
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—+tF —E—RE
ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Contract costs incurred plus FIEEZE XA
recognised profits less & R0 R
recognised losses CEAEE 9,676,503 7,636,544
Less: Progress billings B EERM (9,917,186) (7,843,744)
(240,683) (207,200)
Analysed for reporting WEBNZDM:
purposes as:
Amounts receivable on EWEHITRERE
contract work 104,115 122,024
Amounts payable on &N ITRENRE
contract work (344,798) (329,224)
(240,683) (207,200)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE=

22,

23.

Z—tE=ZA=+-HILEFE

AMOUNTS RECEIVABLE (PAYABLE)
ON CONTRACT WORK (continued)

Both balances of amounts receivable (payable) on
contract work are expected to be settled within
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE

Progress payments receivable represents the
amounts receivable, after deduction of retention
money, for construction services which usually
fall due within 30 days after the work is certified.
Retention money is usually withheld from the
amounts receivable for work certified. 50% of the
retention money is normally due upon completion
of construction services and the remaining 50%
portion is due upon finalisation of construction
accounts.

Management closely monitors the credit quality of
progress payments receivables. 69% (2016: 88%) of
the progress payments receivable that are neither
past due nor impaired are considered to be of
good credit quality based on historical repayment
from the debtors. Included in the Group’s
progress payments receivable of HK$73,018,000
(2016: HK$15,840,000) which are past due as at
the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

22,

23.

e (EM)EHIERE &

FEW (FE) B TRRFAME WS
FEIRBREHREN T —BER RSB

R Mt S FE 3 IR

FEWGE E R HNRRE S & 2B
BERBIE —RARIEESRER
ZTHRXF - REE-RENCRET
12 FRUGRIE R IR - Hh50%BE A
REIRF T THFERE - T HERS0% RINE
HIHENRRERFEIH -

EEERYEREREEREZEEER
H o BUEEFIEZ69% (ZF—RF:
88% ) (BIMmEANEEE) ERNEWR
B EBRBEL I RARFEES R 5t
AR (B P U HE 2 FRIE B 573,018,000
7T (ZZF — X F : #B%15,840,0007T) A
RS B H C 8 HA M AN 58 [ 30 A R (ELES
BELERE AEELESEEZSEH
R G o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & B %5 Ht 2 fif 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

23. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE 23. EMGERERE (&)
(Continued)
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—+tHF —E-RE
=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Progress payments FEUGEE FIERB
receivable from:
A related company in which —BHARARETES
certain directors of the 25 F BE R A |
Company have control - 1,004
A joint venture —HeEhE 5,873 2,079
Third parties FE= 227,946 128,183
233,819 131,266

The aged analysis of progress payments receivable is

FEWGE E IR 2 R D AT 0T ¢

as follows:
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-RE
=B=+—-H | =ZA=+—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within 30 days =+HR 160,801 115,426
31 - 60 days =t+—Zx+H 60,192 5,760
Over 60 days B+ H 12,826 10,080
233,819 131,266

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

23. PROGRESS PAYMENTS RECEIVABLE
(Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of progress

23. BUERERIE (&)

EE BB RERE < BYCEERIE 2 ik

payments receivable which are past due but not BAOMMT :
impaired:
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—B—tE | ZB-A%E
=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
31 - 60 days =t+—&x+H 60,192 5,760
Over 60 days BB+ H 12,826 10,080
73,018 15,840
24. RETENTION MONEY RECEIVABLE 24. Bl RE &
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—+fF —E—RE
ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Retention money receivable from: FEWRE&HRH :
A joint venture —HEeErE 7,731 3,014
Third parties $£=5 273,955 220,286
281,686 223,300
Amount receivable within one year — F (X fEUR 7K 18 124,501 112,402
Amount receivable after one year — & & EUNFIIE 157,185 110,898
281,686 223,300
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & B %5 Ht 2 fif 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 25. B RE - ZRERAMRE
PREPAYMENTS
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—ZE—tF —E-RE
=B=+—-H | =A=+—H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Trade debtors PRI 44,493 26,846
Other receivables Hth FE W FKIR 6,144 11,381
Deposits B"E 6,175 8,512
Deposits for properties under BRYPZGENEZ
development for sale e
(note 50(i)) (FFEE50() ) 96,000 -
Prepayments B FRIE 5,409 10,522
158,221 57,261

Proceeds from property sales are receivable
pursuant to the terms of the sale and purchase
agreements. For other businesses, the Group
generally allows a credit period of not more than 90
days (2016: not more than 90 days) to its customers.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
internally assess the credit quality of the potential
customers and define appropriate credit limit.
Other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

REMEEERWAEREDZESR
R IRRER] - EREM R AE
B-RETEFEFAZRATHE(ZE
—ANFIARZRATR) ZERIRM - £ 12
MEFEF 2 ARERHEEREF 2
EEERFRETME LETSBREE
PREE- HM BB EER 2R
RERGEERE-

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 25. Bk HRIBE - BERFAFNRIA

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Management closely monitors the credit quality
of trade debtors. 92% (2016: 91%) of the trade
debtors that are neither past due nor impaired to
be of a good credit quality based on their historical
repayments. Included in the trade debtors balance
are trade debtors with aggregate carrying amount
of HK$3,404,000 (2016: HK$2,471,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances. There are no balances included in
other receivables which are past due.

The aged analysis of trade debtors presented
based on the invoice date or agreement date, as
appropriate, at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

(&)

EEESRYERERREZEEER

HA92% (ZZ2—XF:91% ) BURFIE
BB ER  MEREE MIRBREZER
BeEms EEEZRF -ERERR
T8 #5 SR BR TH B 42 5878 163,404,000 2 FE
WRIE (= F — <5 1 B %2,471,0007T)
RBEHRE BB M A KB I B R
EEBELRE AEEHSENZSEG
BEE MR R Ht KRBT /REIE
Oz ko

FEWRIR 2 BRI D AT D RIBIRE AR 2
BRERHSHEAL (WER)RE25
T

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—B—tF | ZB-XE

=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =+HR 35,352 22,462
31 - 60 days =+—Zx+H 6,042 2,440
61 — 90 days At—ZhTH 47 731
Over 90 days HiBht+H 3,052 1,213
44,493 26,846
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25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade debtors
which are past due but not impaired:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

25. Bt R IR B R AT RIA

(#&)

BB H B R RE < FE WK IR 2 BRI 0 A

mr:

31.3.2017 31.3.2016

—E—tF —E-RF

=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—8H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within 30 days =+HR 572 47
31 - 60 days =+—Zx+H 539 937
61 — 90 days At—ZhTH - 639
Over 90 days BB+ H 2,293 848
3,404 2,471

Included in the above trade debtors are amounts
due from related parties of trading nature as

EUAERBFEANBERBEBRALA
BSMEZFRBFRUT

follows:
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-RF
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Joint ventures BELE 90 166
Related companies in which AARBTEERHEAF
certain directors of the EEESE BB DA
Company have control 261 -
Subsidiaries of HKR International &HBEZFEEBERAD A
Limited (“HKRI") (Note) ([BEBEHE]) ZHMBEAR
(B=E) 387 279
738 445

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

25. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Note: HKRI was regarded as a holding company having
control over the Company upon its adoption of
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements” and
up to the date that HKRI ceased to be the holding
company of the Company when HKRI distributed
all its shares of the Company to its shareholders
on 3 November 2015. Upon the completion of the
distribution, HKRI is regarded as a related company
in which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited (“CCM
Trust”), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
and certain discretionary trusts have beneficial
interests.

Movement in the impairment losses recognised on
trade debtors:

25. BlrRR B R AT RIEA

(&)

M REBEERABTBUBREEAE TR
[REMBHRERIG HEHRAKXARAZ
ERABYHEEEFEREE-Z—1F
tT—AZHEBEEEADRAZERGIK
BTHERE SBEZRIARNFZER
DR THIREE BBEERRA—EX
DN EEBRECCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
(fcCm Trust 1) - RET2RETRETE
EERERZBEE LR

2017 2016
—E—t5F —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Balance at the beginning of FH &R

the year 2,649 3,576

Reversal of impairment BECRIANBESE
losses recognised - (927)
Balance at the end of the year FRERR 2,649 2,649

Included in the impairment loss recognised on trade
debtors are individually impaired trade debtors
with an aggregate balance of HK$2,649,000 (2016:
HK$2,649,000) which have either been placed under
liquidation or in financial difficulties or in dispute.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

BERERAERKENREEIEF
Y 45 BR 48 B 78 152,649,000 (=& — X
F : 7B%2,649,0007T ) A 18 B E 2 FEUR
MIE  ZERE Z YR IE [E 5 A8 55 Bt
BHRR#SFET SEEBERZE
EHRBFEEMERG-
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25.

26.

27.

28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & B %5 Ht 2 fif 5k

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31 March 2016, included in the Group’s trade
debtors is a balance amounting to HK$162,000
(2017: nil) which was denominated in Renminbi
("RMB"), a currency other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entity.

AMOUNT DUE FROM A JOINT
VENTURE

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

Investments held for trading represent investments
in equity securities listed on the Stock Exchange
whose fair value amounted to HK$383,000 (2016:
HK$325,000).

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash represent cash held by
the Group and short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less at interest
rate at a range from 0.01% to 0.55% (2016: 0.01%
to 0.5%) per annum as at 31 March 2017.

25.

26.

27.

28.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

BRHRE -EeR AR

(&)

N-ZB-—REZA=+—H 8&8NLKE
EvERURBEBFUARE (BEHEEE
BRNGEEBUNINEE) JIBEzEHE
HB#162,000T (ZF—tF &) -

BlSELRRIA

ZAELEER RFERTEERE

HEREZRE

BIEEE v RE ERBXMET 2R
REHRE HAFEABY383,000T
(=& — X% : /B8%325,0007T) ©

BEERBRTHER RITHERR
&

MN-ZB—+tE=ZA=+—10 RITEHK
REeEAEEFE2HEREARRHA
A=EARARPR=E A 2 EHRITFR
FRMENF0.01%%0.55% (=ZZF— X
F:0.01%ZE0.5%) °

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

28. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

At 31 March 2017, bank balances and cash
of HK$3,049,000 (2016: HK$11,973,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not a freely
convertible currency in the international market.
The exchange rate of RMB is regulated by the PRC
government and the remittance of these funds
out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the PRC government.

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits pledged
to banks to secure banking facilities granted to
a joint venture of the Group. The pledged bank
balances carry interest at the prevailing market
rate at a range from 0.01% to 0.91% (2016: 0.01%
to 3.20%) per annum for the year ended 31 March
2017. As at 31 March 2016, deposits amounting to
HK$200,910,000 (2017: nil) had been pledged to
secure the bank loan borrowed by a joint venture
which would be repayable after one year and are
therefore classified as non-current assets. As at 31
March 2017, deposits amounting to HK$139,263,000
(2016: nil) had been pledged to secure the bank
loan borrowed by a joint venture which will be
repayable within one year and therefore classified
as current assets.

The Group’s bank balances and pledged bank
deposits that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities are set out below.

28.

CEHBRETER RITRHER
We =)

RZZ—tF=H=1+—H - &#3,049,000
It (=T —7< 4 78%11,973,0007T) Z $R 1T
HBRBESRARBIIE ARBETEER
EmSEHREE ARBEXRZFEIK
HRERKRTEHELEBESEZH
B B i B9 S BEE PR 1 45 BR ©

BIEFRTERERFEEREASEE -
BEDECRTEEMRFFRITNG
R BEZE—tF=ZA=1+—HLHF
Bz B BRITERLUIBITH SR EG
BN TFEF0.01%E091% (ZF—
F:0.01%E3.20%)  RZEBE—REF=
B=+—H  #%A%E%200,910,0007T
ZE—tF B\ 2EREEFAEE
REHGELEMEENR—FEEEN
RITEF AR BAFERBEE-RN
—E—tHE=ZA=1+—H #BEHBYE
139,263,0007C (ZZF—/RF &) 2FXK
BIEFREEREELEMEAR—F
RNEZENRTER Rt2BARBHE
Eo

FEELEBEEEER 2 LB
ZEBIEZRITHEBKREERRTE
EINAT

31.3.2017 31.3.2016

—E—+tF —E-REF

ZA=+—H | =ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Macau Pataca (“MOP") P 913 926
Australian Dollars (“AUD") BT 17 55
United States Dollars (“USD") =T 527 696
RMB AR 757 54,056
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30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR
SALE

On 22 March 2017, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company has entered into two
provisional agreements for sale and purchase
("agreements”) with independent third parties to
dispose of certain investment properties. The fair
value of investment properties classified as held for
sale is determined with reference to the contracted
selling price. The directors of the Company assessed
whether the held-for-sale criteria set out in HKFRS 5
“Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are met. Taking into account (a) the
fact that the subject properties are immediately
available for sale, and (b) the conditions to be
met to complete the disposal as set out in the
terms of the relevant agreements, the directors
of the Company believe that the disposals will
be completed in June 2017 and accordingly the
relevant investment properties were classified as
held for sale at 31 March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

29. P RBHHEHEZHRE

RIE—tFE=A"+ZH A2 FzZH
ExEWEAREBYE=STCRES
MR E ([HE]) UHESET
REYE - D HEABFFELECRENEZ
AFEDNSECTVHEBREE K
DB EETHRETCEBYBREE
Al [IFFHEFRRBEERE KL
REXER | BB EHECRE - KERE
(a):ZIZ R W EBNBF AT & & (b)AB R
EERRTERZELEESHTEZHKMG
ARABESRAE ZEHESN 22—+
FRARA Bt BREREMECRZ
E-t+tF=A=1+—HEEAIFESL

o

=

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. FE PR IR B 3 fth FE 4 R IR
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-RF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade payables FEASFRIE 149,370 118,395
Retention payable — amount B REE - —FRAENKIE
payable within one year 120,123 92,116
Retention payable — amount EHREE - —FRENIE
payable after one year 79,044 60,212
Accrued operating costs and EtEENAREA
charges 211,268 212,168
Accrued costs for construction FEStEE TR
work 139,501 147,125
Temporary receipts fa BF s B 2 TR IR 14,208 12,532
Deposits received B WEZRE 13,954 13,131
727,468 655,679

The average credit period on purchase of goods and
payment for subcontractors’ works is 90 days.

BEmmEXN2EBEIEREZFY
EEHR0R -

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31.

(Continued)

The aged analysis of trade payables presented based

30. B RIAR K MEFMARE &)

ENRIBEZRED M I RBHRER R 2

on the invoice date at the end of the reporting BREAHREZIMT :
period is as follows:

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-RF
=A=+-—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within 30 days =+HR 144,519 110,816
31 - 60 days =+—ZXKTH 1,001 524
61 — 90 days ~tTt—Zht+H 282 1,015
Over 90 days HiBht+H 3,568 6,040
149,370 118,395

BANK AND OTHER LOANS -

31. MITRAEMBR ——FREM

AMOUNTS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR ]
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—+fF —E—-REF
=BA=+—-8 | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEET T
Bank loans (note a) RITER (MiEEa) 815,127 764,780
Other loan (note b) HMER (MzEb) 7,028 -
822,155 764,780
Less: Amount shown under BooBEARBEBCSEE
current liabilities (BREREREEZEZ
(including bank loans RITER)
with a repayable on
demand clause) (822,155) (764,780)

Amount shown under
non-current liabilities

DTERFRDEEZEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %¢ &

St 25 e A B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS - 31. BITRAMBR ——FRHES
AMOUNTS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR ®IE (@)
(Continued)
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-RF
=ZA=+—-H | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The carrying amount of BEAREREERERZ
bank loans that contain a SRITEREKREE (2ER
repayment on demand clause REEE) AR TSR
(shown under current liabilities) {&3& (FizEc) :
but repayable (note ¢):
Within one year —F R 428,037 150,480
Within a period of BB —-FENEB
more than one year MEEER
but not exceeding two years 39,960 227,210
Within a period of HBWEETBRB
more than two years hFEHER
but not exceeding five years 347,130 387,090
815,127 764,780
The carrying amount of ARTHIHEEEZ
other loan that repayable: Hitt EFARMEE :
Within one year —FR 7,028 -
822,155 764,780
Secured (note d) BEA (FfaEd) 605,127 634,780
Unsecured EIK A 217,028 130,000
822,155 764,780

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS -
AMOUNTS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
(Continued)

32.

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

The Group’s bank loans are floating-rate borrowings
which carry interest at market rates ranging from
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") +
0.75% to HIBOR + 1.90% per annum (2016: from
HIBOR + 1.50% to HIBOR + 1.95% per annum) and
are repayable in instalments over a period of five
years.

At 31 March 2017, the Group’s other loan of
RMB6,300,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$7,028,000) (2016: nil) was unsecured, interest
bearing at fixed interest rate of 4.90% per annum,
and repayable within one year.

The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment
dates set out in the respective loan agreements.

The bank loans are secured by charges over certain
assets of the Group, which are disclosed in note 40.

The weighted average effective interest rates on the
Group's bank and other loans is 2.06% (2016: 2.16%)
per annum.

DEFERRED TAXATION

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

31. RITREMBER ——FAEM

RIB (&)
e
@) AEERTERDUTSAENTE

WEEBNEZER FRNRAFBRT
BAEFE([BEBRTRAEREM
0.75%ZHFBRITRZEIFREN1.90%
SFTE(ZE-AF - HEBRTEE
WEI1.50%Z&BRTEEREM
1.95%) HERAFERN D HEE-

(b) R-ZE—+tF=ZA=+—H X5£H
H b & 5 A E#6,300,0007T (FHE R
#) 78 #7,028,0007T) (=T —NE:
&) AEER REEFRNEL90%
S HER—FREE-

(0) ZELERBEARSERGZEZTE
EXRAMEE-

(d) ZERTEFULAEEETEERR
B AN 40P IR EE -

() AEBERLKHMER 2 METFY
ERFENEEH2.06% (ZFB—NF:
2.16%) °

32. RERE

2IREMHIRRKE B TIELESIRE
ERBEBECEREE - U T AP BEHRE
B S BB IRAEER 2 D4

31.3.2017 31.3.2016

—ZE—tF —E—RE

=A=+-8B | ZA=+-8

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Deferred tax assets EERIEEE 492 627
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEEE (12,000) (12,530)
(11,508) (11,903)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

32. DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 32.;ERERIA (&)
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities AEBITEEEHREBEER (EE)RRS
(assets) of the Group and movements thereon BRI FEEBRLEMEE2EBNT

during the current and prior years:

Accelerated

tax Tax
depreciation losses Total
iz
BN E BEER e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BETT BETT

At 1 April 2015 R-—Z—-HAFMA—A 9,953 (2,346) 7,607
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 35) Ut E&Hi B 2 & (FfzE35) 6,162 (122) 6,040
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 36) HEMB LR (FEE36) (2,012) 874 (1,138)
Charge (credit) to consolidated RAEEGEEBERZRF

statement of profit or loss X (FFA)

for the year 1,310 (1,916) (606)
At 31 March 2016 RZZB-R"E=ZA=+—-8H 15,413 (3,510) 11,903
Charge (credit) to consolidated REZEEFEBERZRF

statement of profit or loss i (FFA)

for the year 1,042 (1,437) (395)
At 31 March 2017 R-ZBE—+tF=H=+-—H 16,455 (4,947) 11,508
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has REFHR AEEARAZRBEEEN
unused tax losses of approximately HK$77,447,000 B BT7,447,000C (= —RF 1 B
(2016: HK$58,132,000) available for offset #58,132,0007T) @ A] AEIKEE R R 2
against future profit. A deferred tax asset has & Fl o B Fi A 18 5 18 20 78 529,986,000
been recognised in respect of approximately T (ZF—RF:#8%21,273,0007T)
HK$29,986,000 (2016: HK$21,273,000) of such losses. BMRELERBEE AR REEMIT R
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect RzwmX MERERKBESELS
of the remaining approximately HK$47,461,000 #47,461,000C (=2 —RF: B
(2016: HK$36,859,000) due to the unpredictability of 36,859,0007T ) BRIELERIEEE -FTH
future profit streams. All the unrecognised tax losses AERZBIEEE T ERALE -

may be carried forward indefinitely.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. k&
No. of shares HK$'000
BB BT T
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of BREEEY.10TZ
HK$0.10 each Egaldn)
Balance as at 1 April 2015, R-ZE—HFMA—B"
31 March 2016 and —E-RF=A=t—-HBK
31 March 2017 —E-tH=ZA=1t—-Bx
=33 1,200,000,000 120,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR:
Ordinary shares of BREEBE.10TZ
HK$0.10 each Eplan)
Balance as at 1 April 2015 R-ZZE—-RFNA—B 24 536,315,641 53,632
Issue of shares upon exercise TEEREMBETZRG
of share options 18,641,075 1,864
Issue of bonus shares (note a) BHITALRR (FfizEa) 135,536,410 13,553
Issue of rights shares (note b) BIATHRRM (MiaEb) 345,231,025 34,523
Balance as at 31 March 2016 N-ZBE-—XE=ZA=+—H2
iEER 1,035,724,151 103,572
Issue of shares upon exercise TEEREMBTZRG
of share options 2,279,775 228
Balance as at 31 March 2017 NZZE—+tHE=ZHA=+—H=2
=373 1,038,003,926 103,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & B %5 Ht 2 fif 5k

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

a. Pursuant to a resolution passed at the annual
general meeting held on 25 August 2015, the issued
share capital was increased by way of the bonus
issue by applying HK$13,553,000 charging to the
contributed surplus account in payment in full at par
of 135,536,410 shares of HK$0.10 each on the basis
of one bonus share for every four existing shares
held.

b. On 23 February 2016, the Company issued
345,231,025 ordinary shares, on the basis of one
rights share for every two existing ordinary shares
at the issue price of HK$1.00 per share. The net
proceeds of approximately HK$338,658,000 were
raised by the Company.

The new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects
with the existing shares in issue.

RESERVES

Contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the aggregate share capital
of the subsidiaries at the date on which they were
acquired by the Company and the nominal amount
of the Company’s shares issued at the time of the
group corporate reorganisation, less the par value
of the bonus shares issued by the Company.

Special reserve of the Group represents the
aggregate of contributions from the then
shareholders of the companies comprising the
Group and other subsidiaries of HKRI before the
group corporate reorganisation.

33.

34.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

B&&E (&)
M=

a. WRER=-Z-HAFENA=-+HBHETZ
BRRAFAGLBBZRER BAKX
N A A B EA R HP B #513,553,0007T ¢
REHENRRERMD TERT—RA
Bz B % 5 2417135,536,4 100X SR EE
BEOIOTEHERAZAR  EME
BT

b. MRIZE-—ARFZAZH+ZH ARFE
BRAMRREEBERER —RERR
2B E UERRMDBE1.00T 23
17{E%£17345,231,025RE B  FriERK
THF RE 408 1338,658,000T I A 2

SET D

CRTHROBREECHITRONRES
EZHERER -

ot fil

REBEZHABS BERAQXAWBZE
MEARER ZEMBLRZRALEE
ERAEEEABAAREHITROE
BZEZ8 BEXRNQACHBTARZE
o

FEEZBRREREARAEE 2L
ARRAEEEAREEEERE MM
BRANERRRZRAEERT-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there
are two acquisitions entered into by the Group
including (i) Befit Limited (“Befit”); (ii) Honour
Tower Holdings Limited together with its wholly
owned subsidiary, Westpac Limited, (collectively
referred to as “Honour Tower Group”) and Reliable
Worldwide Limited together with its wholly owned
subsidiary, Golden Years Limited, (collectively
referred to as “Reliable Worldwide Group”). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that
these transactions do not constitute business
combinations as defined in HKFRS 3, therefore,
these acquisitions have been accounted for as
acquisition of assets. Details of these transactions
are summarised follows:

(i) Acquisition of Befit

On 8 August 2016, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Esteemed Virtue
Limited, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party
to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Befit together with the shareholder’s loan,
at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$150,129,000. The acquisition was
completed on 7 October 2016. The major asset
of Befit is an investment property representing
an en-bloc industrial property (now known as
"West Castle”) situated in Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.

35. iR B LT

REBEZ-Z—tF=A=+—HLEF
E AEBTYMERBESEE 15 (i)
Befit Limited ([Befit|) ; (ii) Honour
Tower Holdings Limitedi& @ H % & K
BAREEERATR (#i%A Honour
Towerf & ]) & Reliable Worldwide
LimitedE R HE 2 & M B 2 T Golden
Years Limited (£ % % [Reliable
Worldwide5 B |) e KA R EBR A Z
EX U T EREBUIEREER IR
FMRAEZ#KE6 Bt ZEWEEE
EEREERBAR -ZERXZ 2FBH
BT

(i) UWhEBefit

RZE—XRENANB KAFZ
BE2ENBARRERERARNRE
—BBNE=AETBEEBRAK
BBefitZ2 WL HITRARRRE
FoRERELNHE®150,129,000
ToZWBEER_-_Z—<F+A
+t AR Befite T BEEAMMN
EBTEN—BEIEYE (RES
[West Castle |) > FAEREYZ-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. kISP B F) (&)

(Continued)

(ii) Acquisition of Honour Tower Group and (i) W EHonour TowerE B &

Reliable Worldwide Group

On 28 December 2016, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Great
Practice Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with certain independent
third parties to acquire the entire issued
share capital of Honour Tower Holdings
Limited and Reliable Worldwide Limited
at a cash consideration of approximately
HK$341,609,000, representing HK$341,920,000
adjusted by the net current asset values of
Honour Tower Group and Reliable Worldwide
Group on the completion date. The acquisition
was completed on 27 February 2017. The major
asset of Honour Tower Group and Reliable
Worldwide Group is an investment property
representing an en-bloc residential property
(now known as “West Park”) situated in Sham
Shui Po, Hong Kong.

Reliable Worldwide £k &

R-ZE-—XR"E+ZBA=+N\H-
RKABzEEZEMB AR
*ERQAAIEETBILE=ZR
HUBEBEWHE LW EBHonour
Tower Holdings Limited&
Reliable Worldwide Limitedz
2PERTREA RERELSB
7 #341,609,0007T (18 B A B %
341,920,000t &Honour Tower
£ B K Reliable Worldwidef E
RER BB ZREEEFEER
) ZWBEEN_ZT—tF=A
—+ -+ H5% MK Honour Tower%
@ & Reliable WorldwidefE = £
EEEANVREBRKEN—EE
W (RFEA [West Park ]) - A
fERREYE-

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

(Continued)

35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the

35. kSR B AW (&)

RUEBERHMBBE2EERER 2AE

date of acquisitions, are as follows: M
Honour
Tower
Group and
Reliable
Worldwide
Group Total
Honour
Tower
fEK
Reliable
Worldwide
Befit 58 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BEF T BET T
Investment properties REYE 150,000 340,683 490,683
Property, plant and equipment M BEREE - 697 697
Debtors, deposits and EBRFHE -RER
prepayments FENRIE 49 332 381
Taxation recoverable AREFE 86 414 500
Trade and other payables FE {5 SR B R EL A PB4 7R IE (6) (218) (224)
Bank balances RITEER - 12 12
Net assets assumed EMEEEEE 150,129 341,920 492,049
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration paid ERRERE 150,129 341,609 491,738
Consideration payable, BEREMENTRIEZ
included in other payables FEARE - 311 311
150,129 341,920 492,049
Net cash outflows on acquisition: ~ WHEZR SR FE:
Consideration paid 2 RE 150,129 341,609 491,738
Bank balances acquired CUEBR T - (12) (12)
150,129 341,597 491,726
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35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2016, there
were two acquisitions entered into by the Group
including (i) General Mark Holdings Limited
together with its wholly owned subsidiary,
Masswell International Limited (collectively referred
to as “General Mark Group”); (ii) Trillion Mart
Development Limited (formerly known as “Billion
Mart Development Limited”) (“Trillion Mart”).
The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that these transactions do not constitute business
combinations as defined in HKFRS 3, therefore,
these acquisitions had been accounted for as
acquisition of assets. Details of these transactions
are summarised follows:

(i) Acquisition of General Mark Group

On 19 May 2015, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Shangzhi Limited,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party to acquire
the entire issued share capital of General Mark
Holdings Limited, and the shareholder’s loan,
at a cash consideration of HK$253,346,000.
The acquisition was completed on 17 July
2015. The major asset of General Mark Group
is an investment property representing an en-
bloc residential property (now known as “One
Eleven”) situated in Sai Ying Pun, Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

35. kISP B F) (&)

RBE_Z—X"F=A=+—HLEE"
AEBETUMBRBEE BFENOER
ERERARERAEZ2EMBARKXF
BIRERAR (SBAIEFEE])
(ii) Trillion Mart Development Limited
([Trillion Mart ] FIBREEZRER
DA ARNAEBARZERZATE
REBMBHMELAEIRMRATE %K
a6t Bt ZZWBEEHEFEREENR
BAR - ZEXF2HFBEHENT:

() WEEREHE

RZB-AFHA+AB AR
ZEEZERBAREE EBE’AE
H-FBVE=ZAHITEEHZR
DWBEFERERLATZEE
BITRARBRRER BE&REAR
7 15253,346,0007T  Z BB EH R
—E-HFtATtLtHEK Ei
SECEEEER —BEURER
AEBNEEWE EBAOne
Eleven]) ' H{EREYE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

(i) Acquisition of Trillion Mart

On 8 September 2015, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Nimble
Run Limited, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party
to acquire the entire issued share capital of
Trillion Mart, and the shareholder’s loan,
at a cash consideration of HK$993,304,000,
representing HK$987,801,000 adjusted by
the net current asset value of Trillion Mart
at the completion date. The acquisition was
completed on 22 October 2015. The major
asset of Trillion Mart is an investment property
representing an en-bloc commercial property
(now known as “PeakCastle”) situated in
Cheung Sha Wan, Hong Kong.

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017
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(i) W EETrillion Mart

RZE-—RFABNB KAQF
2EEZENBARALBRA
HE-BBIUE=FFITEEH
2 LW EETrillion Martz & 3f
ERTRAERRRER ReR
B 578 %993,304,000T (HHE K
78 #5987,801,0007T & LA Trillion
MartR R Bz REBEE FE
ERE) ZWBEER-_ZF—1
F+AZ+ZHRERKe Trillion
MartzFEEER —EBENR
EBRVENERAVE(REBA
[PeakCastle ]) » AfEIREWZE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

35. ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. BB AT (#)
(Continued)
The assets acquired and liabilities recognised on the RUWBHBHRB-EERBRZEE
date of acquisitions, are as follows: mE

General Mark

Group Total
H&EE  Trillion Mart #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT

Investment properties BEWFE 254,908 1,002,148 1,257,056
Property, plant and equipment ¥ BEREE 284 - 284
Debtors, deposits and EWFIE Ze RFEFRE
prepayments 182 634 816
Trade and other payables FE A SR IB R EL A BB A4 7R IE (136) (10,094) (10,230)
Bank balances RITEE R - 158 158
Taxation payable FERFE - (897) (897)
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE (1,892) (4,148) (6,040)
Net assets assumed EHBEERE 253,346 987,801 1,241,147
Satisfied by: XRAR:
Cash consideration paid EfRRERE 253,346 993,304 1,246,650
Other receivables H b fE W Fi 18 - (5,503) (5,503)
253,346 987,801 1,241,147

Net cash outflows on acquisition: WHEZIRERHFEE:

Consideration paid 2 E 253,346 993,304 1,246,650
Bank balances acquired S UWEBIR TR - (158) (158)
Deposit paid gffEe (8,000) - (8,000)

245,346 993,146 1,238,492
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 36. HEME AT

On 8 February 2017, a direct wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Hanison Construction
Holdings (BVI) Limited (“Hanison BVI”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of its entire
issued share capital in Senior Rich Development
Limited (“Senior Rich”). Senior Rich is engaged in
property investment. The major assets of Senior
Rich represented various lots situated at D.D. 128,
Deep Bay Road in Yuen Long, Hong Kong. The cash
consideration for the disposal is HK$249,829,000.
The disposal was completed on 31 March 2017.

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiary on the date of

R-ZZE—ttF-_ANHB AAFRZE
#E2E i B A BlHanison Construction
Holdings (BVI) Limited ([Hanison
BVIEE—EBIUE=FFTLEEHZR
HEHERERERBRLAR ([KLMml) 2
2EEBITRA - EREBYWERE L
MZEEEEANVNABBTHRER L
ENME128F 2 ETHR ZHESE
& REAHBNE249,829,000T c ZHE
EER-_Z—tF=A=+—HEMK-"

MEBARRNEERMcEERAEE:

disposal:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Investment properties KREWE 165,222
Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERZE 35,721
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWFRIE - R RFEMNFRIE 87
Trade and other payables FEAFRER M E A FRIE (56)
Taxation payable FEAS B8 (202)
200,772
Gain on disposal HE W &= 49,057
249,829
Satisfied by: ST AR:
Cash consideration received BWRSRE 249,829
Net cash inflows on disposal: HEZRERAFE:
Cash consideration received BWERSNRE 249,829
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36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

In addition, other expenses of approximately
HK$4,905,000 relating to the disposal of the
subsidiary represent bonus provision directly
related to the disposal which was included in
“Administrative expenses”.

On 19 March 2015, a direct wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison BVI and an indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of CCM Trust, Sky
Champion International Limited (“Sky Champion”),
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party, pursuant to which,
Hanison BVI and Sky Champion disposed of their
entire interests in Superior Choice Holdings Limited
(“Superior Choice”) together with its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Excel Pointer Limited (collectively
referred to as “Superior Choice Group”), which is
held by Hanison BVI and Sky Champion on a 60:40
basis, and the same proportionate shareholders’
loans made to Superior Choice. Excel Pointer Limited
is engaged in property investment. The total cash
consideration for the disposal is HK$549,710,000.
An amount of HK$143,000,000 out of the total
cash consideration has been applied for bank
loan repayment directly before the completion of
the disposal. The cash consideration attributed to
Hanison BVI is HK$244,826,000. The disposal was
completed on 7 July 2015.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

36. HEMB LR (#

Loh - BREHEZME QR 2 KX A
78#54,905,000t E R IEEZHESIRE
B 2 DAL ZEFETA [T
e

R=ZB-HEF=ZA+HIA xARZ2E
Kt & 2 T Hanison BVI} CCM Trustf&i#
BEZZEMBLARRTEBRERL
A(REE-—EBIE=FFTLEE
%% #51t - Hanison BVIR K& HERK
£ Superior Choice Holdings Limited
(I'Superior Choice |) BRI HE 2 &M
BARERBRATR (4% [ Superior
Choice 58 ]) 22 & # % (Superior
Choiceft B % Bl FHHanison BVIR X &
LL60% R 40% L Bl B H iR ) - AR [
Superior ChoicefE i Rl 2 R R E
M- ERBERQAABINRBYWERE -ZH
ESHE2REHBRERB549,710,000
T RS RNRE T R EE%143,000,000
TREERRAIC AREEZEZRRITE
o Hanison BVIEG 2R & REAEE
#244,826,0007 - ZHEBHE R =&
—hAFtAtHATKe
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 36. HEMB AT (&

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the date MEBARREERMZEERERE:
of disposal:
HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Investment properties REY 550,000
Property, plant and equipment M BRERRZE 717
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWFIE - RERFENHIE 277
Bank balances R1TE R 1,980
Trade and other payables EAFER M EARIE (2,546)
Amount due to a group company B B A R FIE (116,333)
Amount due to a non-controlling FEAF — AR IR RFRIE
shareholder (76,222)
Bank loan RITER (143,000)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE (1,138)
213,735
Non-controlling interest IR ER (85,494)
Assignment of shareholder’s loan HERREXR 116,333
Gain on disposal HE W 252
244,826
Satisfied by: XRFER:
Cash consideration received EWREKRE 244,904
Other payable HuEARIE (78)
244,826
Net cash inflows on disposal: HEZRERAFE:
Cash consideration received EWBEERE 244,904
Less: Bank balances disposed of B HEZRITER (1,980)
242,924
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37. DISPOSAL OF A DEVELOPMENT

PROJECT THROUGH DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY

On 30 July 2015, a direct wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Hanison BVI entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of the entire issued share
capital and shareholder’s loan of Wisdom Concept
Development Limited (“Wisdom Concept”). Wisdom
Concept is engaged in property development.
The major assets of Wisdom Concept represented
properties under development situated in D.D. 129,
Lau Fau Shan in Yuen Long, Hong Kong. The cash
consideration for the disposal is HK$710,000,000.
The disposal was completed on 22 March 2016.

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiary on the date of
disposal:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

37. EBHE—FHME LR HE R

RIAHE

N-B-RAE+LtA=1+H KAQFAZHEE
2 & B X T Hanison BVIEE — ZIF I 5
=RV ESEHE  UHERSEREIR
AR ([BEF]) 22 HEBTREARRR
ER-BEHRERMEZRR - BH2FE
BEANREBAARZLUXENME
NREzERERFYE-ZHESTEZES
R 18 £ 38 %710,000,0007T ° % H&EH 18
ERZE—RE=ZA=Z+ZHREK-"

ZHBARNHERM2EERER:

HK$'000
BT T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEFE:
Properties under development for sale R ZFEYHE 256,967
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EWEE - ReRENRE 8
Amount due to a group company A EBLQRRIE (234,833)
22,142
Assignment of shareholder’s loan EERREX 234,833
Direct attributable cost (Note) BHEEGLER (M) 36,399
Gain on disposal HE W 416,626
710,000
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration received eWwBEesNRE 710,000
Net cash inflows on disposal: HEZRESARANFE:
Cash consideration received elwBEesNRE 710,000
Less: Direct attributable cost paid during B REBEZ=-ZTE—~E=A=+—H1:
the year ended 31 March 2016 FEOCNEEREER (13,100)
696,900
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For the year ended 31 March 2017

BE=

37.

38.

Z—t+tE=ZA=+—-HILEFE

DISPOSAL OF A DEVELOPMENT
PROJECT THROUGH DISPOSAL OF A
SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Note: Direct attributable cost amounting to
HK$23,299,000 was unpaid as at 31 March 2016
and this amount was included in the “Trade and
other payables” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In addition, other expenses of approximately
HK$54,701,000 relating to the disposal of the
development project mainly represent bonus
provision directly related to the disposal which was
included in “Administrative expenses”.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s former share option scheme was
adopted on 3 January 2002 and was terminated
on 21 September 2011. Pursuant to the Company’s
new share option scheme (the “Scheme”) which was
adopted and became effective on 21 September
2011, all directors (including independent non-
executive directors), full-time employees and
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies/associates are eligible to
participate in the Scheme.

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the
participants who have been granted options
under the Scheme to subscribe for ordinary shares
in the Company with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interest in the Company and to
encourage them to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

37.

38.

FAHE—MHBEBAFTHES
RI|RAH (&)

Mizf: A=B—R"EZR=+—0 EEELER
75#523,299,0007T i R S Rz & BEE A
RATBRRARZ [EARBEREMENRK
B o

ir AREHEZRRIRER 2 HMAX
B ¥E54,701,000t T BIERZHES
HEEMRBAEFTA TR ] 22 A%
fao

Ris A% #E BT &Y

ARAREANBRESEN-ZTZ
—B=ZRERMARR-ZF-——FhA
—T—HRLE-REBEAQXTHOBRE
S8 (&8 (R=F——FN1A
ZH-BERARER) - ARE - HK
BRARAK, REBEARZHEES (B
FEBMFHITES) 2RESREBY
B2 REE 2B

ZatEl 2 BNERARBEZTEERE
BRELUZBAAREBR 2SRE  =ZH]
BAXRRBAREARE ZHE  UEB
SREATDARERR 2EERN

BHRSALARERD 2EE-
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(a) Maximum number of shares available

for issuance

The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of approval of the Scheme. A
total of 48,755,967 shares of the Company is
available for issue under the Scheme which
represents 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme.

Upon the refreshment of the Scheme mandate
limit at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 23 August 2016, the
maximum number of new share options
that can be granted under the Scheme is
103,654,057 (the “Refreshed Share Option
Limit"”), representing approximately 9.99% of
the number of the Company’s shares in issue as
at the date of this annual report.

The overall limit on the number of shares
of the Company which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 30% of the number of the Company’s
shares in issue from time to time. Taking into
account the Refreshed Share Option Limit
to subscribe for 103,654,057 shares and the
14,876,450 shares that may be issued upon
exercise of the outstanding share options
granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme, the cumulative total number of
shares that may be issued under the Scheme
will then be 118,530,507 shares, representing
approximately 11.42% of the number of the
Company's shares in issue as at the date of this
annual report.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
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38. AR (=)
(a) AJHBITZRHOEHE LR

BRIBZTERAQAEMEAMT
ERENEBERERTEM A
FRITHRGOEE LR T 588
REZFEHERART 2B HLT
B3 10% o st BT 2 AR D
R 19 42 2 548,755,967 % » 15 A
NRAZFTERMB 2B BITRA
10% ©

RAEAQXARE=ZZBE—R"ENB=+=
HETZBRRAFKE L BHEE
BIRERERZ REZFETRT
ZHERESE FRA103,654,057
B (BB RERE]) EARD
FARAERAHPORTROHELN
9.99% o

RIEZET B R A D BEMEAMETE
P ¥% T e AR 1T (8 B IR R e i 1T
FRUEBRTZARARMDEAE
[REABSEBEBAQTFENE R
ITRMDEE 230% « Lit R AR
103,654,057 IR 0 2w B EF B R
ERERRETEZTEETERE
BERITEZEREMATFRTZ
14,876,450 B% 10 % - & B 5% 51 2
BHTAFRITZEABROEAELE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) Maximum entitlement of each
participant

(1

()

The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options
granted to each participant (including
both exercised and unexercised options)
under the Scheme or any other share
option schemes adopted by the Company
in any 12-month period must not exceed
1% of the shares of the Company in
issue unless otherwise approved by
shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to
a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in rule 1.01 of the
Listing Rules), would result in the shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of
all options already granted and to be
granted to such person in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of
the grant:

(i) representing in aggregate over 0.1%
of the shares of the Company in
issue; and

(ii) having an aggregate value, based
on the closing price of the shares of
the Company on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to
prior approval of the shareholders of the
Company who are not connected persons
of the Company as defined in the Listing
Rules of the Stock Exchange.

38. R8I (=)

(b) EBHEEZBRERBFELR

Q)]

(2)
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38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(9]

(d)

(e)

(f)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

Within ten years from the date on which an
option is granted or such shorter period as the
Board of Directors or the relevant committee
thereof may specify.

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of granting an option, the Board
of Directors or the relevant committee thereof
must specify the minimum period(s) (if any),
achievement of performance targets (if any),
for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised in whole or in part.

Period open for acceptance of an option

The offer of grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the
Stock Exchange) must be accepted within 14
days after the date of grant.

Amount payable upon acceptance of the
option

A consideration of HK$1 shall be paid upon the
acceptance of the option.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

38. RS (=)

(o)

(d)

(e)

(f)

BREBREXAZBRG <8
PR

HEREBEREZzFE+FHERE
ESERETARZEESEECRE
Hif e
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
—tF=ZA=Zt-HLEEE

#HE=

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(g) Basis of determining exercise price of
the option

(h)

The exercise price of the option shall be no less
than the highest of:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a business
day;

the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days of the
Stock Exchange immediately preceding
the date of grant; and

the nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.

Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 20 September 2021 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the terms of the

Scheme.

38. R8I (=)

(9)

(h)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 38. B #EsE (=)
At 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect R-EBE—+FE=A=+—08 ' EBEzZTE
of which options had been granted and remained RERERTEZEREZROHE SR
outstanding under the Scheme was 14,876,450 14,876,450% (=& — /x4 117,181,650
(2016: 17,181,650), representing approximately BR) EZABAARERITROZH
1.43% (2016: 1.66%) of the shares of the Company 1.43% (ZE—RF :11.66%) °

in issue at that date.

Details of the movements of the share options REBREMSE 2SBFBUOT:
granted are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-Z—tHF=A=+—HLEFE

Exercise price

per share
attheend Outstanding Outstanding
of the as at Exercised Lapsed as at
Category of reporting 1 April during during 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period period 2016 the year the year 2017
(note 3)
R®
R-B-X%F —E-tF
REBEHR mE—H =A=t+-H
SHEEEH RitiAH T ZBRTEE HATR RERTE  RERXN i R AT R
(M&E3)
HK$
ik
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96 12,695,550 (757,100) - 11,938,450
25 November 2019
B2 ZZ-ME+-A=+RB ZE-WFE+-A=tRAZE
“E-NFt+-B=TEH
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96 4,486,100  (1,522,675) (25,425) 2,938,000
25 November 2019
& “E-WE+T-AStAE ZE-OET-AZTREZE
“E-NEt+-A=TEE
17,181,650 (2,279,775) (25,425) 14,876,450
Exercisable at the end of the year 14,876,450

RERTTE

B Al A FRA R 2016/2017 4F 245
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

38. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2016
BE-_Z-A"F=ZA=1+-HLEFE

Exercise price
per share
at the end

38. R8I (=)

Outstanding

Outstanding

of the as at Adjusted Exercised Lapsed as at
Category of reporting 1 April during during during 31 March
participants Date of grant Exercise period period 2015 the year the year the year 2016
(note 1) (note 3)
R-E-1%F RZIB-RE
RBEHRZ mA—B =R=+-8
2HEEE R A TR ER BRITEE HATR RERFE  RERTE REREXN i RATHE
(BzE1) (P=E3)
HK$
B
Directors 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 0.96 17,564,000 5,851,550  (10,720,000) - 12,695,550
25 November 2019
= “E-MF+-A=t+AB ZE-WE+-AZTRHEE
“E-NE+-B=+EA
Employees 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to 096 10,676,000 1,731,175 (7,921,075) - 4,486,100
25 November 2019
=] “Z-MFE+-A=tARB —E-NE+-A=t+XHE
ZE-NEF+-AZTEH
Other participant 26 November 2014 26 November 2014 to N/A 536,000 221,100 - (757,100) -
(note 2) 25 November 2019 TEA
HitpmE “E-MET-AZt+AE ZE-EET-BZTREE
(MzE2) —E-hE+-B=tIA
28,776,000 7,803,825  (18,641,075) (757,100) 17,181,650
Exercisable at the end of the year 17,181,650
RERAFTE
Notes: B aE :

With effective from 16 September 2015, the exercise
price was adjusted downwards from HK$1.35 per
share to HK$1.08 per share as a result of the bonus
issue and the total number of outstanding share
options was adjusted upwards from 22,946,000 to
28,682,500.

With effective from 23 February 2016, the exercise
price was further adjusted downwards from HK$1.08
per share to HK$0.96 per share as a result of the
rights issue and the total number of outstanding
share options was adjusted upwards from 15,902,500
to 17,969,825.

1. BZZE-HFAA+TARB BEBITL
B TEEREREEISTTAEZE
BREH1.08T R M RITE 2 BREAE
B H922,946,000 38 %28,682,500 °

B=2—A"F=-A=1+=0 RBTH
BB (TEEEE — S HEBRBYE1.08
TTHZEERE®096 TR EKRITHE
2B EHAEEH15902,500LH#A=E
17,969,825 ©
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39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. Given that Dr. Lam Chat Yu resigned as a non-
executive director of the Company with effect
from 10 December 2015, his share options were
reclassified from the category of “Directors of the
Company” to “Other participant” and lapsed during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

3. In respect of the share options exercised during
the year, the weighted average share price at
immediately before the exercise dates is HK$1.33
(2016: HK$1.93) per share.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 July 2016 (the “Adoption Date”), the
Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain persons (“Eligible Persons”),
including employees and directors of companies
within the Group, and to give incentives to them in
order to retain them for the continuing operation
and development of the Group, and to attract
suitable personnel for further development of the
Group. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by directors of the Company, the Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for 3 years from
the Adoption Date (the “Award Period").

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the directors
of the Company may, from time to time, at its
absolute discretion, select any Eligible Persons to
participate in the Share Award Scheme as selected
participants and determine the shares to be
granted, vesting criteria and conditions, and period
for the shares to be vested, subject to the terms and
conditions set out in the Share Award Scheme. The
directors of the Company shall not grant further
awards if they would result in the number of Award
Shares (defined as below) under the Share Award
Scheme exceeding 5% of the total number of shares
in issue as at the date of the Adoption Date.

38.

39.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

BRER 2
MisE: (4

2. ERMEFELIE-ZE-AF+ZAT
RERERNRRZFHNTES EBR
ROCBREARRAZES | EHNIE
E[HMWSEE ] IRBEZZ—K<F
ZA=t—-RLFEHBRRK-

3. BRERCITEZBREMS NEBE
TEEHAMEEIRELERBE
133 (=& —RF B¥1.937T) °

B 17 5€ By &t &1

ARFRZZF-A"FLAZF+NBE (&K
MBH RA—ERGREE S ([RD
REEE]) URBETAL (TEER
Atl) (BEAEEETAAZEER
EE)FHcERMEBRERTRE 3
IR ERSEBERAEBEZFEEER
BRMN  RAAEEE-DBERNSE
BAE - HEBARARESIRORERA
Kb BRIRORBET S RRARHE=
Fr((RBBEDBRRER-

RIBERD RS AARES TR
PREEIMNEERALIFAEESHE
EZERMRBE TEERERHR
7 BERERKREURROEBEHME -
HAZ RO RBF S RE 2R RIRSE
FRRRR o fisl AR 10 SR B =t BT T 2 SR B AR 1
HE(ERRTX)BBRRMEHEEH
ITRODBEE 25% RNAREETEE
—HRHER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

The Company established a trust to purchase shares
of the Company for the benefit of employees and
the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
under the Share Award Scheme (the “Award
Shares”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award
Scheme, the Company has appointed a trustee,
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited (the
“Trustee”), to administer the Share Award Scheme
and to purchase and hold the Award Shares during
the Award Period. The Company would contribute
a maximum of HK$74,000,000 to the trust for the
purchase of shares under the Share Award Scheme.

Unless the Board of Directors determines
otherwise at its absolute discretion, an award
shall automatically lapse upon (i) the resignation
of the selected participant’s employment; or
(ii) termination of the selected participant’s
employment or early termination of the contractual
engagement with the relevant member of the
Group by reasons of misconduct or otherwise
pursuant to law or employment or engagement
contract, and the relevant Award Shares shall not
vest on the relevant vesting date.

If there occurs an offer by way of takeover, merger,
scheme of arrangement, share repurchase or
otherwise, all the outstanding Award Shares shall
immediately vest on the date when such offer
becomes or is declared unconditional or in the case
of a scheme of arrangement on the record date for
determining entitlements under such scheme and
such date shall be deemed the vesting date.

39. BRIDBERNEH B (o

ARBRBERDEBAECSHE2FTR
HBARAMEERES 2 M@mKRIUIEFT
LUBEARQRRMD (TRERND]) - R\
RORBABZRA AR EES
BPRBSEEERIABELA(E
AANREBRHERNEZRO KRB
ERBEURKERBRG -RERHD
REE ARARETEMKRSZER
74,000,0005T ABE B IR 17 ©

BERSHEBR J()VERSHEHE
HEAEBEEEKE D TKRILERBERS
HEAKEHERERARZENTERE
HEZEREBRRENEAREZTAK
ERHMERMIZATAL  BEEEEL
Mo MERREROTITENIEEEE B S
FB-RIEETSERMBERTRE Al

=R =NV
B E B e

fis AWEE - S 0F - ERZHFE RO
BRAEMTXRERRY FEEREZER
BRI AR ZBELNR BN E MR EMR
HERIMEAZHIEMS  NEEE
MZBERTBITET 2 A 2 ie 8k B B BN i
B MBS REREERN-
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39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

If there is an event of any spin-off and separate
listing of any subsidiary, assets or businesses of the
Company on the Stock Exchange or elsewhere,
structured in whole or in part as a distribution
in specie or in respect of which shareholders are
otherwise entitled to participate, all the outstanding
Award Shares shall immediately vest on the earlier
of (i) the date of approval of the listing by the Stock
Exchange or other relevant regulatory body, and
(ii) the date that falls five business days prior to the
record date for the distribution in specie or other
date set for the entitlement to participate. Such
date shall be deemed the vesting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Trustee
purchased an aggregate of 51,700,000 shares of the
Company from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$71,995,000 (including directly
attributable incremental costs) and a total of
51,542,000 shares were granted to 88 eligible
participants on 10 March 2017 pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme, representing approximately
4.97% of the total number of issued shares as at 31
March 2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

39. BRIDEERNEH B (o

AR B 2 EMHB AR EERTER
BRI EMR A IRRBYL EH &
HRBIEREYWD REBRAEL M
NEEZE FfIECRE ZZBRDER
LUTHHE (UREERE)NEEE: (i)
EBMIREMAEESHE E LT
2B RNEYWD KRBT BB AEE
¥BZHZHEESE HMmAH-
EBEBHSERARBRE

REBEEZE=-T—tF=A=+—HLHF
E - EXACKRTSELBELRAQAASE
$£51,700,000/ I 17 RELREN R B
#571,995,0007T (BiIEE EEGEE R
) BRZZE—+tE=ZA+THRER
HEBTECRSSEEEKRSEER Y
& 51,542,000k 10 HER R =
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B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

39. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued)

Details of the movement of the Award Shares
granted under the Share Award Scheme are as
follows:

Category of

39. BRIDBERNEH B (o

BEEBUT

Number of
Award Shares
granted during
the year and
outstanding at

participants Date of grant Vesting date 31 March 2017

REANERER

R=Z—tH=A

=t-BHkBEZ

sHEEER A8 EEAH RERROBEAE

Directors 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 31,664,000
o —ZE2-tHF=A+H ZE-N\FXRA=tH

Employees 10 March 2017 30 June 2018 19,878,000
== —E2-tHF=A+H —E-N\FEXRA=t+H

Total 51,542,000

EEE

The fair value of the shares granted pursuant to the
Share Award Scheme amounting to HK$67,189,000
was determined with reference to market value of
the shares at the grant date taking into account
the exclusion of the expected dividends during the
vesting period as the directors and employees are
not entitled to receive dividends paid during the
vesting period. The Group recognised share-based
payments amounting to HK$3,092,000 (2016: nil) for
the year ended 31 March 2017 in relation to shares
granted pursuant to the Share Award Scheme by the
Company.

RERDEBTERERODZDFER
78%67,189,0007T - T3 2 ERH R H
E RS EELERRE B EMER
AHRE (REAEEREEREBY
BEEWE K ZRE) MEE - B
REARB RO EZETERE 2RHD
AEERIABE_ZE-—LtF=ZA=1+—
BLEFEZUROINZRBERBE
3,092,0007T (= F—RF 1 ) o
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40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

40. EEIEH

RBERR UAKE 2 EEEAKER

bank loans were secured by the Group's assets as TERZEROT:
follows:
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E—RE
=A=+-8 | =ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET T
Investment properties REYE 1,829,600 1,686,500
Leasehold land and buildings HELHRETF 54,454 98,883
Assets classified as held for sale D EAZEHEZEE 24,784 -
Pledged bank deposits BB ITER 139,263 200,910
2,048,101 1,986,293
41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. R AR

(a) During the year ended 31 March 2004, legal (a) BEZE-—ZEZENFE=A=+—HILHF

actions in respect of allegations of copyright
infringement and defamation have been taken
against certain subsidiaries of the Company
carrying on its health products business. No
further steps have been taken against the
Group in respect of such actions after the
court hearing for directions to appoint experts
and exchange witness statements since 2004.
At 31 March 2017 and 2016, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that in view
of the uncertainty of the outcome, it is not
practicable to assess the financial effect.

ER ARARETHREREERE
K2 BN R MBILRER =
EERREEETH B=-ZZFN
FREAERRBRBARLER
MZiERRME ZE5EAEHE
AEEZE-—STH - R=-FT—t
F=ZA=+—HERZ=Z2—XRE=H
=+—H AQAEERE HERHE
HERCTBEMN MTREY BT
EHM KL

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(b)

(9

(d)

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has an
outstanding corporate guarantee issued
to a bank in respect of banking facilities
granted to a joint venture of approximately
HK$53,181,000 (2016: HK$34,312,000), which
represents the Group’s proportionate share of
the banking facilities utilised as at 31 March
2017. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the fair values of these financial
guarantee contracts are insignificant at initial
recognition and no provision for financial
guarantee contracts has been made at the end
of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group has an
outstanding counter indemnity in favour of
the partners of a joint venture amounting to
HK$62,000,000 (2016: nil) which represents
the Group’s maximum liability. This maximum
liability was determined among the parties
to the counter indemnity with reference to
the Group’s proportionate share of estimated
amount of interest payment under the banking
facilities granted to the joint venture and the
cost overrun in respect of the renovation,
management and marketing and leasing of
the property held by the joint venture. In
the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair value of the counter indemnity is
insignificant at initial recognition and no
provision for counter indemnity has been made
at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had
outstanding performance bonds in respect
of construction contracts amounting to
HK$501,210,000 (2016: HK$576,413,000).

41. XRE |/ (=#)
b) R=—E—tHE=A=+—8B K&

(9

(d)

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

EX—EeEbEERZRTHME
EER-BRTRERHAFAERY
7B #53,181,0000 (Z & — R~ F:
7%534,312,0007T) * ZFIEBAARE
BRI EZR-E—LF=A
=t—HBAZRITREZGEE &K
RNAIEERB ZEVWBEREY
ZAFERNSEAFLAEKX
MR ERTBERIEIERED
EH B -

R-ZZB-—tF=ZA=+—-HB &&
BoeseEtEaBARMREE
R 78 % %62,000,0007T (=& — 7
F8) HEERFAEEZESE
B-UESEEITARBERREZ
AR ESEZREBRELAI DG 2
BYaghX2RITRHEREET
ZRENRMEFTEEREEAE D
AR z2BH EERTS
HEREESR 2HABX KA
AESERR RAEREZQFE
RAOLHEIFLFER HRHRE
HIRIER R WERBELEE-

RZZB-—tF=ZA=+—-H &K
EREESNBFECBARZAE
#£501,210,000T (= F—RF &
#5576,413,0007T) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 #t 2 fif 5k

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

42. COMMITMENTS 42, XX

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
the following commitment:

RI|BEHR  AEEB AT HERE

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tHF —E-RF
=B=+—-8 | =ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Capital expenditure contracted  BUWBEER ZSFEWE
for but not provided in EHESNEICERINS
the consolidated financial mEBRERRZ
statements in relation to BEARLH
acquisition of a property
under development for sale 216,000 -

As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group had also
committed with other joint venturers to contribute
to the joint ventures by means of shareholder’s
loans proportioned to its equity interest in the joint
ventures to finance working capital of the joint
ventures.

E-tF=ZA=t—-HBKR=F—R
A=t—B AEETFBEEEEM
EhEERERBRANGELEZ
P t{ﬁﬂbxﬂxi%i AL AHE BEEE
HoEEES-

|1 II

S0 i

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4F
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments
in respect of rented premises under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

43. EEHERIE

ABEA

R|EHR  AEERENTREEEA
ERRERYE 2 A RREMEEFEK
EZEBBERMT

31.3.2017 31.3.2016

—F—tF —E-RE

=Z=A=+—-H | ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Within one year —F R 4,543 4,340
In the second to F_EERF

fifth year inclusive (BiEERMEF) 3,713 1,899

After five years hE#% 6,640 7,120

14,896 13,359

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office properties,
warehouses and shops. Leases are negotiated for
term of one to three years (2016: one to three years)
and rentals are fixed over the respective leases.

There are certain lease agreements, according to
which the Group is committed to pay the higher
of a minimum guaranteed amount or a monthly
payment equivalent to a prescribed percentage of
a monthly sales as rental. The minimum guaranteed
rental payments are included above. The respective
contingent rental payment for the year ended
31 March 2017 amounted to HK$137,000 (2016:
HK$122,000).

REHEREEAEEAEETHAE
MFE EEREHESzHS KEHZ
HEABNTF—Z=F (ZB—X<F: —
Z=F )REBEBHEZHEABE-

REETHESYN  *EEARFEXIRE
RESEIANRE (ZRANIRAEE
HelEETE s HERAER ) MEFRSN
RE BEREHASTEBERLERR-

BE_ZT—+tHF=A=+—HLEEFE-

HERAESHIERB137,000T (=
T —RF #B%122,0007T) °
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OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Continued)

As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum lease payments in respect of the
investment properties:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

43 . EEWHEXKIE &)

RIBEMK  AEECEBFFTN B
REMEZ BRREESWOT

31.3.2017 31.3.2016

—E—tF —E-REF

=A=+-8B | ZA=+-6

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Within one year —FR 34,138 30,863
In the second to RE-_ZERF

fifth year inclusive (BREEEMSF) 11,302 12,190

45,440 43,053

Leases are negotiable for lease term ranging from
one to three years.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

With the implementation of Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong on
1 December 2000, the Group has maintained the
defined contribution scheme registered under
the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
and has obtained an exemption satisfying the
requirements of the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (“MPFQO").

44. B (kB ¥ 5t 2

BAKER FHENTF-—E2=F-

BER_ZEZZEF+-_A—BBBENT
et AT ([BESE] K
SEC A RBRER NG EMRGIZM
Rz EREMREE WE BB TR
FIMEABE ST EURA ([RESRA]) =
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

44. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 44. B HKigFIEHE) (=

(Continued)

To comply with the MPFO, a MPF Scheme with
voluntary contributions has been established. New
employees must join the MPF Scheme since its
commencement on 1 December 2000. The Group
contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant payroll costs
for each employee to the MPF Scheme, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 for
the MPF Scheme, which contribution is matched by
employees.

The amounts charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss represent contributions paid and
payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures
arising from employees leaving the Group prior to
completion of qualifying service period. The amount
for the year is as follows:

ABREBEEHRI AEBELERILA
BREMEMHRcBESTE - R-ZZT
F+-A-HHARBTRESTIER:
HEELAMARESHE -AEEAE
RSN EEETEHAEETERAR
MI5%ZE10%  F A BEETEEERA
MR PR 478 %630,0007T - H ARG BEE
BRFE-

ERERBRANKRZEREARER
ZEEBRAEE zEROZETEE
R 2R BMERER IR F
EENEEENRABEBASEE 2 BEFR
R B AFEZFRENT

2017 2016

—E-tF | ZEB-A%E

HK$°000 HK$'000

BETT BT T

Contributions paid and payable  B1F & E{FHR 19,677 15,603
Forfeiture R U R (264) (43)
19,413 15,560

At 31 March 2017 and 2016, there is no forfeited
contribution arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefit schemes and which were
available to reduce contributions payable.

R-ZBE—+FE=ZA=+—BARZ=ZZE—X
FZA=+—H EZFRESRHRBRIKEF
STEIMEERTREUBEEN 2HRZ

R UK
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45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances with related parties as
disclosed in the consolidated statement of financial
position and notes 23, 24, 25, 26 and 36, the Group
also entered into transactions with the following
related parties during the year:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

45. B AT REBRRRZ S

BRI EGRE IR RR K HiEE23 ~24 +25 »
26K 36FTIRE < Bt A T8RN RE
BERTETYEBALERRS:

2017 2016
—E—+tfF —E-RHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Subsidiaries of HKRI and REBBEEMB AR
its associates: HEB A
— Construction income (note 1) —EEWA (FizE1) 385 32,321
— Interior and renovation — B RAEBUWA (FiEE1)
income (note 1) 768 -
An indirect wholly owned R B CCM TrustfE %
subsidiary of CCM Trust: EEMBAR:
— Site supervision service — R EEE R WA
income - 1,889
Joint ventures of the Group: REAEEGELE:
— Construction income (note 2) —ZEEU A (KfEE2) 78,755 30,135
- Project management —IEHEEEWRA
income - 476
— Site supervision service — ith B2 EL B AR A LA
income - 805
Related parties in which REAXRARETESESZ
certain directors of BAEE AL
the Company have control:
— Construction income —BEERA - 19
- Underwriting commission fee ~ — &< - (4,348)
An associate of the Group: REXREEHE AT :
— Rental expenses (note 2) -HE£BH (a2) (192) (166)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND 45. AT HER RS (&)

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group
disposed of an investment property to a company
of which an executive director of the Company
is the beneficial owner at a consideration of
approximately HK$9,173,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group
sold certain investment properties to a company of
which an executive director of HKRI is one of the
beneficial owners at an aggregate consideration of
HK$10,958,000.

Notes:

1. These related party transactions for the year ended
31 March 2017 constitute connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but are
exempted from disclosure and other requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2. These related party transactions do not constitute

connected transactions or continuing connected

NBE=E—+tE=A=1+—BLEFE"
AREBL B EY9,173,000T HE —
BHREYEF-—BLR(KQE—FH
TESAZLTAZEZEEA) °

REBEZE-ZE—NE=ZA=+—HLEE"
7N £ B LA AR AR B 78 510,958,000t H &
ETREVETF-—BAT(EBEEZ
—BHTESEZATEF—BRESEE
BA)e

MIeE -

1. BE-Z—tF=ZA=+—HLHF
E-HERBALRXZEE LHARA
BUAREE - BERS HERE LD
RAIBAAT TR RINE R AMRE -

2. LERBALRE TER LETRAE
VAR EE CBERGRIFHEBER

transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Z°
Listing Rules.
Compensation of key management FTEEBABZHM

personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year are as follows:

AEEEERAMETEEEAS Z M
LI

2017 2016
—E—tf | —B-AE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees ws 989 944
Salaries and other benefits HekEMER 17,719 17,442
Performance related incentive ITHERREBSE
payments 34,588 26,700
Retirement benefits schemes EIRERFEIH
contribution 2,440 2,371
Ex-gratia payments HEMIE 9,466 19,025
Equity-settled share-based DHEEEER
payments LR 2 2 FRI8 2,771 -
67,973 66,482
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. ZAQAFIZHMBRAERER

OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVES

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—+tHF —E—RE
=B=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary BENR—BHEQR 326,740 326,740
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEULFI B A B FK1E 350,836 423,881
Other receivables H b pE R FR1E 17 1
Bank balances and cash BITEBREES 8,070 34,538
358,923 458,420
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and Hity B RIER
accrued charges BB A 1,590 10,961
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN NG B 2,576 2,322
4,166 13,283
Net current assets RBEEFE 354,757 445,137
681,497 771,877
Capital and reserves B R
Share capital [N 103,800 103,572
Reserves & 577,697 668,305
681,497 771,877

The statement of financial position of the Company
was approved and authorised for issue by the board
of directors on 13 June 2017 and are signed on its
behalf by:

Wong Sue Toa, Stewart
g
DIRECTOR
EE

KRR UBRRARECESENR -2
—tFARA T Z AR ERRER M I H

TIHESHREEF:

Tai Sai Ho
it =
DIRECTOR
EE
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. ZQFIZHMBRAERER

OF THE COMPANY AND RESERVES (#)
(Continued)
Movements in share capital and reserves of the KRB ZBR AR FE2EE:
Company:
Shares
Share- held for
based share
Share Share  compensation award  Accumulated
capital premium reserve scheme profits Total
DY3i Akt
X RBEMm
R RO EE WefmhE  BEZRH Zihaw st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETTL BETTL BETT BETT BETR BETTL

At 1 April 2015 RZE-HEMA—-H 53,632 273,108 5,749 - 64,469 396,958
Profit and total comprehensive & E&HIK
income for the year 2EBALE - - - - 49,934 49,934
Dividends paid BRZRE - - - - (35,375) (35,375)
Issue of shares upon exercise  {THEBREM
of share options BITZRHB 1,864 23,050 (3.212) - - 21,702
Issue of bonus shares BITAR 13,553 (13,553) - - - -
Issue of rights shares BATHRR S 34,523 304,135 - - - 338,658
Share options lapsed BREXN - - (107) - 107 -
At 31 March 2016 RoB-AF
=B=1+-H 103,572 586,740 2,430 - 79,135 771,877
Profit and total comprehensive & ERHIK
income for the year 2EBALE - - - - 50,157 50,157
Dividends paid BZRE - - - - (73,823) (73.823)
Issue of shares upon exercise 1T BREM
of share options BI2kH 228 2,283 (322) - - 2,189
Share options lapsed BREXN - - @ - 4 -
Shares purchased for share R EE@ 3
award scheme BEZRH - - - (71,995) - (71,995)
Recognition of equity-settled BN ERLEER M
share-based payments RO 2HE - - 3,092 - - 3,092
At 31 March 2017 RZB-t&
=B=1+-H 103,800 589,023 5,196 (71,995) 55,473 681,497
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47. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a
going concern while maximising the return to its
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes bank and other loans disclosed
in note 31, net of cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and
accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a regular basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends and new share
issues, as well as the issue of new debts and the
redemption of existing debts.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

47. SRR ER

FEFERHES URRAKEANZTE
BREALIFECE R AEE  BRTER
EYEBEESZBREFEMARR
FHHREADIER - AEEHREERBEATEF

ESHB TR

AEBNEXAEBHFER (BEKRSE
RHEE3TZRITRAMERNBRRER
RESE)URAQXAEEARGES
(B2 BRITRA RERRDEN)E
AR e

RARESEHMNHERRB FRILL
Bz —80 EEEEESTHARESE
BESHEBERR - REAQXTDEBNE
# AKEEERIRERERETHR
URBITHEBREDNREEHEUTE
HERBELRE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 48. BT R
Categories of financial instruments % T AER
31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—g—tf | —E-xE
=A=+-8 | =ZA=+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial assets MBERE
Investments held for trading BEEEZRE 383 325
Loans and receivables (including &K EWFIE
cash and cash equivalents) (BREReRBELEHE) 1,549,353 1,818,197
Financial liabilities =R
At amortised cost R A 1,170,692 1,035,503

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
progress payments receivable, retention money
receivable, debtors, refundable deposits, amount
due from a joint venture, bank balances and cash,
pledged bank deposits, trade and other payables
and bank and other loans.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

BHEEREEEREREE

REEFTERYH T AOERBBCERER
FEWRES BWHIR  JRERS &
WEEhERR RITEBRRRS CK
HIRTIER - BARBER L MENRIER
RITURHMERR

FEZENH T A ZFIERABREMER
B-ZEMBITAY R 2RERKBEEE
HERzHERENT X -EEEEERE
EZE Rk R KR EMERUEERIE
Bk
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the group entities is
mainly HK$, the currency in which most of the
transactions are denominated.

The carrying amounts of the foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities, included debtors, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash, of the group entities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

48. MBI R (#)

BRREAMREEEERBEK (&)

B E b

FEERERZHEERIERBYE
RERD R Z I LB HERTHE

AEBESEERR|EHPRUINETEZ
EREEREBAE (BERUNIE B
ERRTERRBITERRRS) WARE
ERBEOT :

Assets
BE

31.3.2017 31.3.2016
—E—tF —E-XRE
ZA=+—H | ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
MOP sk 913 926
AUD BT 17 55
RMB ARHE 757 54,218
usD xR 527 696

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

7N 68 B3R B 30 SN R IRR o AT B
EEEZMNERR  UBREFTERZR
$ P B R SMNE LB
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation
against foreign currencies of RMB. The financial
impact on the exchange differences among other
foreign currencies against HK$ is expected to be
insignificant to the Group. The Group’s sensitivity is
subject to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and decrease in
RMB against the functional currency of each group
entity. 5% (2016: 5%) represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in
RMB. The sensitivity analysis includes only the
outstanding monetary items denominated in RMB
and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2016: 5%) changes
in RMB. If RMB weakening against HK$ by 5%,
the post-tax profit for the year will decrease by
approximately HK$32,000 (2016: HK$2,264,000).
For a 5% (2016: 5%) strengthening of functional
currency of each group entity against RMB, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-
tax profit for the year.

Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to the Group’s variable-rate bank loans which are
linked to the HIBOR and bank balances at the
prevailing market deposit rate. The Group is also
exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to the Group'’s fixed-rate other loan. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

48.

MEIR (&)

BEEREEEREREER (&

EWmEk (&)

TEBETEARAZIARBZINEERKE
f B o FEERE M HMNEE S B M E R E K
ERHAEENTBEELFTEKR K
EEHRARBHESEERIEEY
5% (ZB—NREF:5%)2BEHR-
5% (ZZ2E—RE 5%)EEEBHAR
MEZAEEREESBMNTM - &
BESTESREERIBUARESIE
MWEKIER TRBEHRMARES%
(ZE2—REFE 5%)EBELBRBE 4
AR HBMEESY%  NEERBER
MERA#78832,0007T (ZE—RF:
B #52,264,000T)  EXEBEEREMNY
REMAARBHESY (ZF—RF:
5%) BEHAFERRBENEEDS
RERHEE-

R R

ReRAEaTEEAEEFER
TER (ZEERREBRITRXFE
B RBRBITHEFRMNRTEZR
THEHEEBE - AKETERAKEUEE
MERFAE 2 HMERMEYH A FENR
VB o A = 81 3 7 ) 22 9 0 BROSR » AR
i EREESERNERRERE XENEE
ERERENERNREM
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The directors of the Company consider the Group's
exposure of bank balances to interest rate risk is
not significant as interest bearing bank balances
are within short maturity period. The Group’s
sensitivity to interest rate risk has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable-
rate bank loans at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. The Group's
sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period while all other variables were held
constant is as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

48. MBI R (#)

BRREAMREEEERBEK (&)

MEmb (&)

AAREERR  AERERITHERATEY
MAZEBRIFEKR  BRFERITER
RAEERER - ANEEHF RE Rz =
E T3 RIBFR | E R F B RITEFK
R A REABTMEE - 2 HRRNRE
HARNKREESHEREEFEDHARME
B-BRABHMBERETE A&H
RIBEPRE R RER 2 HREMNT

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E-RE
Reasonably possible change MRS IE M B4 1L 50 basis 50 basis
in interest rate points points
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Decrease in post-tax profit for KEERBZERBAR
the year as a result of M= EFH MRS
an increase in the interest rate (3,403) (3,193)
Increase in post-tax profit for REERBIZERBAR
the year as a result of R =TS B 0 48 o0
a decrease in the interest rate 3,403 3,193
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 March 2017 in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the maximum
outstanding amount of contingent liabilities in
relation to financial guarantees provided by the
Group as disclosed in note 41.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the majority of counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk with
85% (2016: 77%) of the total progress payments
receivable was due from the Group’s three (2016:
three) largest customers, engaged in property
construction business in Hong Kong, within the
construction segment.

48.

MEIR (&)
BHEREEEEREE (&)

FEER

MR ZHFREBTR-F—CtHF=A
=T -ERZECEIMBEEZEE

AXEEzESEERBRBES KR
MEMPZEFEEZRAE  BABAN
SERHZMBRERRZESEHRERER
REBWBENHEL -

ATESEREFERR FAEEEEES
ZE-HAEEEEIFERE SEH
TR EMEEEEE RS REURE
TBWEBEBRRR I AEBRRE
HA R g w M B FE WL SRR 2 AT W B & 5 -
LARE fR B 2 0K IR B SRR 1 R S0 BV R
EER -BULMNS AOAAEBSIARFE
B2 EERRE KiEkEE-

HREZNXZHFHEEREETR
HEBERAESEENR BT WRBE
ENEERBER-

NS B R WO B OB A ZERI85% (=&
—RE77T%)HIREFEBEEDE
FoREBRBYEREER 2= (=
B-AF I ZMBAES RUEKE
FiEERRE-
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
pO|iCieS (Continued)

Equity price risk

The Group’s held for trading investments include
listed equity securities in Hong Kong. These listed
equity securities are subject to market price risk. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the investments held for trading
are set out in note 27. The management considers
that the market price risks of these investments are
not significant to the Group.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank and
other loans and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other loans as a
significant source of liquidity. As at 31 March 2017,
the Group has available unutilised borrowing
facilities of approximately HK$1,781,920,000 (2016:
HK$1,177,294,000). Details of bank and other loans
are set out in note 31.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based
on the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. Specifically, bank
loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the
probability of the banks choosing to exercise their
rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative
financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest

and principal cash flows.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

48. ¥ T R (&)

BREREEEERBEK (&)

R A (B 45 ELBR

AEEZEFEEZREBENRER L
MZRARS - WE L HRAEFESEZ S
SERRR EEERESTRRARREE
ZREMSEBUSEZRER -FEEE
ZREZHBRRMT27 -EEERR
BHERENTSERRBEAEENS
TREKR

RBESER

EEERDESREMSE  NEBEZERE
FEEBARAEERHESEERE
ZREFBREEE2KFRBERSR
KBRS E - IR EEERT R A
ERBARBERESEREE-

AEBRBROIREMEREAEEN
RBEERF-R=_E—tF=A=1+—
B AEETESZABABRITEEREY
£78151,781,920,0007T (=F—RF 8
#51,177,294,0007T) ~SR{ITREMERZ
FEIEEMMEE3 -

T 3R B AN 5 [ B A M E B SRR AR RO B
BEE2EORBRIEA - BRIFOTER
BEE URDIRBAEETRER(
WEFE AN BREERMBERERE
B KRR EREREERRZRTE
FETARREBR  THIRTEE IR
BITEEERN AT e B aE 22
HAREHEERPERE - 2R BENE
RAEHER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

48. MBI R (#)

BEEREEEREREER (&

Liquidity risk (Continued) FREESRAM (&)
Liquidity tables MEEE &
As at 31 March 2017 RZB—tF Weighted  On demand
ZA=t-H average or Total
effective less than 1-2 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year years cash flow amounts
g RERS RER
ERA= TR-F 125 ReReE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BOl BETT BT T BETT BT T
Non-derivative financial FTERBEE
liabilities
Trade and other payables EAREREMESRE - 269,493 79,044 348,537 348,537
Bank loans - variable rate* RITER-FHER 2.03 815,127 - 815,127 815,127
Other loan - fixed rate HittER—EEE = 4.90 7372 - 7372 7,028
Financial guarantee contract BHREREN - 53,181 - 53,181 -
1,145,173 79,044 1,224,217 1,170,692
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 48. MBI R (&)
Financial risk management objectives and BERBREEBERBEE (&)

policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued) FREESRK (&
Liquidity tables (Continued) HEEE K (&)
As at 31 March 2016 RZB-XE=ZA=+-H
Weighted On demand
average or Total
effective less than 1-2  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years cash flow amounts
MAEF g RERS RER
BRAE TR—% 126 ReRBH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BAL BT BETR BETT BT

Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ JEfTEHKEE

Trade and other payables ENFER At TE - 210,511 60,212 270,723 270,723

Bank loans - variable rate* ROTER-FHER 2.16 764,780 - 764,780 764,780

Financial guarantee contract BEREREN - 34,312 - 34,312 -

1,009,603 60,212 1,069,815 1,035,503

*  The interest rates applied to projected undiscounted * FEERRITER B RBERREESR
cash flows of variable rate bank loans are the AR ZAREHRZFRo

interest rates at the end of the reporting period.

The amounts above for variable interest rate FiHAETAENBEBEIETAE S
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities 5 BHASERIR S S e AR RS
is subject to change if changes in variable interest EHFREGEEERRIEREE -

rate differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than 1
year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 March 2017, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
HK$815,127,000 (2016: HK$764,780,000). Taking into
account the Group's financial position, the directors
of the Company do not believe that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights
to demand immediate repayment. The directors
of the Company believe that such bank loans as
at 31 March 2017 will be repaid within four (2016:
five) years after the reporting date in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements. As a result, the aggregate
principal and interest cash outflows will amount to
HK$831,710,000 (2016: HK$781,291,000).

The amount included above for financial guarantee
contract is the maximum amount the Group could
be required to settle under the arrangement for the
full guaranteed amount if that amount is claimed
by the counterparty to the guarantee. Based on
expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement.
However, this estimate is subject to change
depending on the probability of the counterparty
claiming under the guarantee which is a function of
the likelihood that the financial receivables held by
the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

48. UE I R (#)

BEEREEEREREE (&

RBESRR (&)

EU LR B EREREERR
RZBRTERDIIWARERS TR —
F | FEAN RZFE—+tF=A=+—
H ZERTERZAFTELASHLER
B #5815,127,0007T (=T — RF B
764,780,0007T) ° 5t & A~ & B 2 B # AR
o AR BEBUARAEBRRTETE
HEEEERNEFER - ANQATESE
5 REEHRERM RS ZERERA
B ZER=E—+tE=A=1+—HMW
TERBERBEAHENF (ZF—K
F RF)AEE Rt AERFIERE
FH A EEH A B %831,710,0000T (=&
— 755 785781,291,0007T) °

PR BIEREQAFANSREING
FHEREREERARERBELZ AR
NEEEREENESTHE - RENKRE
HARNTES  AEERARUTEBARE
ZHXEMEER - A BLIRMEFTETF
BORBEREREHARNTREMERE
Mt AT REtE AU R FRIERE H AN

RUERREERZFEEFE-
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48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market
bid prices;

e the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values.

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used), as well as the level of the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

48. ¥ T R (&)

ATE

B EERDKEBEZATFEIIETY
HAEE:

s BAEREGRIRRGHREIRERD
CEENYBEERMBEEZR
FESRTSMRENEAEE

iE

o HthMBEERMBEGEZAFE
REBERBERRERI TN LORE
BRAEE-

KAREZRR RESUBRRIZHBE
AR M EEERMBEEEZIRE
EEEQAFERSE-

BEEMEENATVEHAEZAER
MBEEENAFE

AEEFL M BEERERERRED
FEFE- T%ELEE%%E‘EEZ%EM%E
EAFEZFE(RERAZMAER
MEWMARE) URELFEFEBAZ
BB ERES QA VFEFESEZA
FESRERN (F—Z2=ZR)2EH-

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

48. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value (Continued)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
and

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

48. UE I R (#)

DNYE (#)

BREFHERNAFEFEZEAEH
MBEEENAFE (4)

BE-RAFEFEDRBEEREE
FRENERT ISP TRER R

KRR S

BERAFEETIRE —RETA
ZHREMN REEEIEEIVEE
(BER)NEE (BERITE)E
BE2BWAREEH &

BEZROTEFEREHES MK
BU8BEchmEENNEEREE
ZHASHY (RNUEEGAZE)H
HERMSHNAFEE-

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets 31 March 2017 hierarchy and key input(s)
R=-B—tHF
=A=t+—H DFE RERER
BBEE Z Ve =5 TEBASY
Investments held for trading HK$383,000 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
- Listed equity securities in (2016: HK$325,000) active market.
Hong Kong
KEEECRE 75 #383,0007T B ERTSEARE-
-NEELHZ (ZZ—RF:
IR A8 55 78 #325,0007T)

There was no transfer among Level 1, 2 and 3
during the current and prior years.

REAFERBEFE F-—R F-HKK
BRI BER-
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

49. T EME L FIEFHE

SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

REZB-—+tF=ZA=1t—-HK=%
—R"EZRA=t-HB ARAEE

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as

follows: MEBARFENT
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
“E-tFZA=1-A “2-7"EZf=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRMR ERTRAR
R/ LERE/ AEEER LERy/ AEEEL
WEARER EXihY ARER BRRTER AfER BURAER IEXB
(note 1) (note 1)
(ME1) (Hrst1)
Befit Limited? Hong Kong HKS2 100% - - Property investment
2 A ESE
Care & Health Limited Hong Kong HKS2 100% HKS2 100%  Trading of health products
EMEERAR R ¥ BB REERES
Emwell Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% HK$2 100%  Property investment
BRARLF £ ¥ B EIE
Esteemed Virtue Limited"  British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 100% - - Investment holding
HEERAA" Hong Kong (E REZR
ARELHE/BR
Exceed Advance Limited ~ British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% US$1 100%  Investment holding
BEERAR Hong Kong (ES) 127 REER
ABRLEE/BR
Fortune Shiner Hong Kong HK$1 100% - - Property development
Development Limited" ~ &7# BRI NEER
EERRARAR
General Mark Holdings British Virgin Limited/ Uss$1 100% US$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited Hong Kong 17 157 RELER
BRERERAT ARELHE/BR

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal (@)
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as

follows: (Continued)

49. T EMB LTS &)

R-ZZB—tHF=ZR=+—BK=ZE
—R"EZRA=Zt-RB FRAEE

MEBRRFENT (&)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
“E-tFZA=1-A “E-R"EZA=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRARAE BRTRAR
R/ LERE/ AEEER LERy/ AEEEL
HEARZE EXBH ifEx BRRFER AfER BHRAER TEXH
(note 1) (note 1)
(ME1) (k1)
General Target Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% HK$10,000 100%  Property investment
#INERAR g #%10,0007 ##10,0007T E3E
Golden Years Limited? Hong Kong HK$1 100% - - Licence holding
R LA b BREE
Great Practice Limited" British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% - - Investment holding
REBRAR Hong Kong ES REER
ABRLAHE/ER
Hanison Construction Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% Ordinary shares 100%  Property construction
Company Limited £ HK$1,000 HK$1,000 nEEE
RBEEERAT Deferred shares Deferred shares
HK$60,000,000 HK$60,000,000
(note 2) (note 2)
LER EBR
A ¥1,00070 71,0007
BER BER
#%%60,000,0007 760,000,007
(Mit2) (Hzz2)
Hanison Construction British Virgin Islands/ uss$2 100% Us$2 100%  Investment holding
Holdings (BVI) Hong Kong JES JEY RELER
Limited (note 3) ABRLEE/EHR
(r3t3)
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %5 & B %5 $t 2 fif 5k

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as
follows: (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

49. T EMB LTS &)

(@) R=ZE—tH=A=+—-HAK=-%
—ANF=ZA=t—H ARFER
MEBARFRNT : (&

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
“E-tFZA=t-A “E-R"EZA=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRARAR BRITRER
R/ LERE/ AEEER LERy/ AEEEL
HEARZE EXBH ifEx BRRTER AfER BHRkAEE TEXH
(note 1) (note 1)
(M) (k1)
Hanison Contractors Hong Kong HKS2 100% HKS2 100%  Property construction
Limited g AR L E3: 2
RBEERRLT
Hanison Estate Services Hong Kong HKS2 100% HK$2 100%  Provision of property
Limited E# B B management services
EBNERBERLR RENFERRY
Hanison Foundation Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property construction
Limited i BT BB NERE
AEBETRERAT
Hanison Interior & Hong Kong HK$14,800,000 100%  HK$14,:800,000 100%  Provision of interior and
Renovation Limited B #1%14,800,0007 ##14,800,0007 renovation services
EBEAREBERLA RUSHRECRS
Hanison Project Hong Kong HKS2 100% HK$2 100%  Provision of property
Management Limited &% ¥ b leasing and marketing
ABEEERERLA services and project
management
RENEHRERTERERY
HRERER
Hantex Engineering Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Plant maintenance and
BEIRERAT R B8R BB servicing
BESEREE

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

49. T EMB LTS &)

(@) Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as
follows: (Continued)

(@ W=ZZ—tF=ZA=+—-HK=Z%
—ANF=ZA=t—H ARFER
MEBARFRNT : (&)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
“E-tFZA=1-A ZE-REZR=1-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRARAE BRTRAR
R/ LERE/ AEEER LERy/ AEEEL
HEARZE EXBH ifEx BRRFER AfER BHRAER TERH
(note 1) (note 1)
(M1 (k1)
Healthcorp Trading Limited  Hong Kong HKS2 100% HKS2 100%  Investment holding
REAFERAA g B BT REER
Heatex Ceramic Limited Hong Kong HK$400,000 100%  HK$400,000 100%  Property holding
#ERRAT BB 1%400,0007C 7 %400,0007C VESSE]
Honour Gain Global British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% - - Investment holding
Limited" Hong Kong (EY REER
ERRHARAR ARELEE/ AR
Honour Tower Holdings British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1,000 100% - - Investment holding
Limited® Hong Kong 1,000% % REER
ARRLAHE/FR
Masswell International Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$ 1 100%  Property investment
Limited BB LAV BRI NERE
KPERARLT
Million Hope Industries Hong Kong HK$11,000,000 100%  HK$11,000,000 100%  Supply and installation of
Limited Bk #1%11,000,0007 ##11,000,0007 building materials
XFEXERAT HERZRRENH
Nimble Run Limited British Virgin Islands/ uss1 100% US$1 100%  Investment holding
BABRAA Hong Kong (EY (EV REZR
ARRLHE/ER
Protic Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property holding
BRERAT g LA b BET E3)
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

49. T EMB LTS &)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as
follows: (Continued)

(a)

Hn=

E—tHF=ZRA=1t—HR=ZF

—ANF=ZA=t—H ARFER
MEBARFRNT: (&

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Z2-tfzf=+-H “E-R"EZA=T-H
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRIRAR BRITRER
R/ LERE/ AREER LBk AREEG
WEARER EXBE iftEx BRRKER AfER BARAER IEXE
(note 1) (note 1)
(Brzt1) (Bz1)
Reliable Worldwide British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% - - Investment holding
Limited® Hong Kong %7 REER
ZBELHS/BR
Retailcorp Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% HKS2 100%  Sales of health products
ZELRERAA £ A Ly HERBER
Sanney Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property development
REERAA & LAV LV NEBR
Senior Rich Development  Hong Kong - - HK$10,380 100%  Property investment
Limited* BB 11038070 ES T
TRBEARAT
Shangzhi Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$1 100% Us$1 100%  Investment holding
HEERAH Hong Kong 17 %7 REER
ABELBE /AR
Silver Sail Global Limited"  British Virgin Islands/ Uss1 100% - - Investment holding
RMRHRERLE Hong Kong 1% REER
ARRLHE/BR
Silver Wave International  British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 100% - - Investment holding
Limited" Hong Kong (E3 REER
REERERLT ABELHE/BR
Superior Future Limited"  Hong Kong HKS1 100% - - Property holding
BEERLT 5 LAV NERE

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 49. T EMB 2 FER (&)

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a) Particulars of the Company's principal @) N-ZB—+tHE=HA=+—RHAEK=Z
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as —REZA=+—H AQAEE
follows: (Continued) MEBARGEBUNT:: (&)

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
ZE-tE=A=1-H “E-R¥zR=1-A
Issued and fully Effective Issued and fully Effective
Place of paid ordinary equity  paid ordinary equity
incorporation/ share capital/ interest  share capital/ interest
registration/ registered  attributable registered  attributable
Name of subsidiary operation capital  to the Group capital  tothe Group  Principal activities
BRTRHR BRITRERE
R /EM/ BERE/ EEEEE LERy/ RREEE
WEAREH EXBH ifEr ERREER AfEr AuRTEE IERE
(note 1) (note 1)
(M1 (rst1)
Tai Kee Pipes Limited Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100%  HK$2,000,000 100%  Property investment
RRERAT g8 7%%2,000,0007 %1%2,000,0007 NERE
Trigon Building Materials ~ Hong Kong HKS2 100% HKS2 100%  Supply and installation of
Limited £ B BT building materials
ERERNARAT HERZERENH
Trillion Mart Development ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% HK$10,000 100%  Property investment
Limited g ##10,0007 10,0007 NERE
Triple Sky Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Property development
& AR BEIT VESE
Vast Media International ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% HK$1 100%  Investment holding
Limited 3 L Ab LV REZR
2EARERLA
Westpac Limited? Hong Kong HK$1 100% - - Property investment
BERRAA g LA b E3E
SEFHBENH (BN The PRC HKS64,997,630 100%  HK$39,990,771 100%  Manufacture and supply of
BRAF (note 4) hE #1864,997,6307 #139.990,7717% building materials
(Hiita) HERHERENH
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as
follows: (Continued)

Subsidiary which was newly acquired during
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Subsidiary which was disposed of during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Subsidiary which was incorporated during the
year ended 31 March 2017.

Notes:

Q)]

(2)

(3)

4

All being ordinary share capital except
the registered capital for the subsidiaries
registered in the PRC.

The deferred shares are shares whose
shareholders are neither entitled to receive
notices, attend, vote at any general meetings
nor to receive any dividend out of operating
profit and have very limited rights on return of
capital of the subsidiary.

Other than Hanison Construction Holdings
(BVI) Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all other companies are indirectly
held by the Company.

A wholly foreign-owned enterprise.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

49. T EMB LTS &)

(a)

H=

N

— 7N\

E—tF=ZA=+—HRZE
F=ZRA=+—H ARAFEE
n

MEBRRFEUT (&

BT

(1

(2

3

@

RBE-Z-—tH=ZA=+—H
LEFEHFREZMBLF -

RBE-Z—tF=A=+—A
LEEHEZHBAT

RBE=ZE—tF=A=+—H
LFEFMAL BT -

BRIEEIE M E L B S
BEXRMN 2REBRRA-

EERRESE ABEEREWER
BRRASES EEHFEEMR
RAREREELRE TEER
WMEREBFIRE 2EMRER
ML R BERANE RERE
EAREFNRE-

BRA QB HEEREFHE ZHanison
Construction Holdings (BVI)
Limited7h FTE A BT H A
NEIBEFE-

—EIEBELE R

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2017 and 2016 are as
follows: (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt
securities during the year or outstanding at the
end of the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors
of the Company, principally affected the results
or assets and liabilities of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result
in particulars of excessive length.

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries
of the Company that have non-controlling
interest:

49. T EMB LTS &)

(a)

(b)

Proportion of ownership

R-ZE—tF=A=t-HR=%
—ANF=ZA=t—H ARFER
MEBARFRNT : (&)

I AT B D B RANFEBITE
AEBRSINAFEREREN
BRES-

RRRESRA ERAFIOHARRQ
BB A RHARENRENEE
HEEREAFE -FALQAESA
B BHIEMHBLRANFEES
RFEBRITK

BEFEREECANAFZER
BB REFE:

interest and voting
Place of right held by Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary incorporation non-controlling interest non-controlling interest non-controlling interest
FERER
BEERR
HWEBARER Rt RERREELD PEFFERER 2R Rt FRRER
2017 2016 2017 2016 31.3.2017 31.3.2016
ZB-tE  ZE-5E
ZE-tF “E-RE E-tE -5 ZAR=t-H =ZA=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BETT
Superior Choice Group British Virgin Islands/ - - - 11,995 - -

Hong Kong

Superior Choice( 8] RERLEE/BE

Superior Choice Group was disposed of during
the year ended 31 March 2016. Details of the
disposal were set out in note 36.
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49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %7 & B %5 Ht 2 fif 5k

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(b)

Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b)
of the Company that have non-controlling
interest: (Continued)

Summarised financial information of Superior
Choice Group is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents
amounts before intergroup elimination.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

49. T EMB LTS &)

BEFERERZARNRFZER
BEMBEARFE: (&)

Superior Choice52 & 2 B 5 & K15
ZHINT - UTHHEERBER
REBR QG BMBER 2S5

For the period
from 1 April 2015
to 7 July 2015

R-ZZE—A%F
WMA—HZ
—E-0F
+tAEAILEE
HK$'000
Superior Choice Group Superior Choice% @ BT T
Revenue A 2,162
Other gains and losses Hibhlhm K EE 30,010
Expenses i (2,186)
Profit and total comprehensive Superior Choice £E#EHB A
income for the period FE AL A R e A &
attributable to owners of ZHWR AL
Superior Choice Group 29,986

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 7 July
2015, Superior Choice Group contributed to
the Group’s net operating cash inflows of
HK$0.4 million and received HK$0.4 million in
respect of financing activities.

R-—ZE-—HEFNMA-—HE=-Z
—HE+t At HIHE  Superior
Choice R B AR EBTRFLER
£ R A B HA00,000t R AR E E
7 Wt =1 75 %5 400,0007T ©

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4FH;
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

0]

On 18 January 2017, an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, Fortune Shiner
Development Limited, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent
third party to acquire land with the messuage
erections and buildings situated at No. 57A
Nga Tsin Wai Road in Kowloon, Hong Kong,
at a cash consideration of HK$240 million. As
at 31 March 2017, deposits for the acquisition
together with prepayment for stamp duty
amounting to HK$96 million has been paid.
In April 2017, the remaining consideration
of HK$216 million has been settled and the
acquisition has been completed accordingly.

50. HEHERTR
) R=2—tF—-A+NA &2
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50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(ii)

On 17 May 2017, an indirect wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Heroic
Elite Investments Limited, entered into
a memorandum of understanding with
an independent third party relating to a
proposed acquisition of the entire issued share
capital of Waller Holdings Limited (“WHL")
together with its shareholder’s loan, at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$145.4
million, which is subject to adjustment based
on the net current asset value of WHL and
its subsidiary on the completion date. On the
same date, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, Oriental Elite Global Limited,
entered into a memorandum of understanding
with an independent third party relating to
a proposed acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Faithful Sun Limited (“FSL")
together with its shareholder’s loan, at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$149.7
million, which is subject to adjustment based
on the net current asset value of FSL on the
completion date. The major assets of WHL and
FSL are office units and car parking spaces of a
commercial property (namely “Kings Plaza 1)
situated in Shatin, Hong Kong. Details of the
proposed transactions were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 May
2017.

For the year ended 31 March 2017
BHE-_T—tF=A=+-HLEE

50. HEMEER (&)

(ii)

R=ZZB—tFHA+LH AQF
ZEEZEMNBARERRERR
ARE—-BBILE=FHE] LR R
Btk AR BEEEZWEWaller
Holdings Limited ([WHL]) 2%
HEeBITRAEDERRER R
S REXN A 7E¥145,400,0007T ° 7]
RIBWHLE HHTE AR EKA
HeRBEEFHEETHE -RE
B ARBAIzEEEZEHBARR
HRRERAFE-—EFIE=

AR BESE AR EEEZER
BERAARAR ([RB]) 222
BITRAEFERRER RER
B #) A 78%149,700,0007T © AR
BEHRERBHZABEEFEE
TR - WHLREBZEEEES
UREBLPHzEENE (B[R
BSE—Hl 2B THAZENR
FEN - BEZEREBRRZZFHE
BEERAARAPA-Z—t&H
AttBRz%e
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For the year ended 31 March 2017
HE-_ZT—tF=A=+—HLEE

50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (continued)

(iii) On 1 June 2017, an indirect wholly owned

subsidiary of the Company, Keen Elite
Developments Limited, entered into a
memorandum of understanding with
independent parties relating to proposed
acquisition of the entire issued share capital
of Ultimate Elite Investments Limited (“UEIL"),
together with its shareholder’s loan, at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$148.7
million, which is subject to adjustment based
on the net current asset value of UEIL and
its subsidiary on the completion date. The
major assets of UEIL are certain office units
and car parking spaces of a commercial
property (namely “Kings Plaza 1") situated
in Shatin, Hong Kong. Details of the
proposed transaction were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 June
2017.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

S0 5 W B
Year ended 31 March
BE=-A=1T—-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—+E| ZE-RF ZCZE-RF CZE-MFE =—T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BET T BETT
RESULTS S
Turnover HER 3,216,077 2,623,043 2,095,154 1,626,525 1,554,479
Profit before taxation BB AER 554,491 674,513 511,470 179,322 201,897
Taxation BEXH (37,552) (26,817) (24,008) (15,306) (16,711)
Profit for the year FERA 516,939 647,696 487,462 164,016 185,186
Profit (loss) attributable to: THATEIEER (BE)
Owners of the Company RAREEA 516,939 635,701 419,202 155,698 188,265
Non-controlling interest FER S - 11,995 68,260 8,318 (3,079)
516,939 647,696 487,462 164,016 185,186
As at 31 March
R=A=+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—EB—4tE| ZE-RE ZE-1F ZE-ME C—E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T BETT BET T BETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Total assets EEAE 4,997,263 4,486,066 3,455,472 2,761,916 2,579,855
Total liabilities aEEE 1,930,648 | (1,788,824)  (1,638,413)  (1,408,665)  (1,363,470)
3,066,615 2,697,242 1,817,059 1,353,251 1,216,385
Equity attributable to the owners of R 72 A1 H A A FEE L
the Company 3,066,615 2,697,242 1,743,560 1,348,012 1,219,464
Non-controlling interest FERER - - 73,499 5,239 (3,079)
3,066,615 2,697,242 1,817,059 1,353,251 1,216,385

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4F
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FERYEME

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. SAREDRESZHEBA

RENTAL PURPOSES A&
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (IR property AEE of lease
B (FFER) MEME gz HAER
1.  Workshop 7, 1/F, Block A, 53,490 Industrial 100% Medium-term

Workshops 1-5, 4/F, Block B, (excluding lease

Workshops 1-11 & area of flat

majority portion of roofs and

Workshop 23 (including car parking

flat roofs of Workshops 5 & 6), spaces)

4/F, Block A, (Saleable

Whole Floor, 5/F, Block A, area)

Workshops 1-2, Workshop 3

with flat roof, Workshop 4

with flat roof, Workshops 5-6,

5/F, Block B,

Car Parking Spaces

V26, V31, V36, V49, V50,

V55, L45 & L53

Shatin Industrial Centre

5-7 Yuen Shun Circuit

Shatin, New Territories

L H 53,490 T 100% o HA

RIEESZE75 (FEEEE

W H I E AR kB zEE)

AE—EIEB7 (BEAER)

BEEPY#E TAER1ZES -

AENETERIZEIR

TE@E23 2 EE &4

(BEIEBSR6ZFER)

AETLBEE BEAZETFEIZE
2 THEREBEF & - TIEM4EF
& TiFRESZE6REBAIMRIEV26
V31 V36 V49 +V50 V55 - L45%
L53
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A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FE ¥ %

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

A. SAREDRESZHESBA

RENTAL PURPOSES (Continued) & (@)
Attributable
Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (IR property AEE of lease
B (FAFR) L/ EJE3=1 PEih R HAER
2. Various lots 142,066  Agricultural 100% Medium-term

in Demarcation District No. 76 (Site area) lease

Ping Che

Fanling

New Territories

£ 142,066 Eith 100% 1 HA

wEE (#hBRTETE)

NEXENNT65

HTHE
3. Leasehold interest in the 2,731 Commercial 100% Medium-term

Head-Lease for the residual (Saleable lease

term of 30 years commencing area)

from 1 December 1989 with

an option to renew for a further

term of 30 years of whole of

No. 31 Wing Wo Street,

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

R—HEREER 2,731 [HE S 100% 1 HA

BB ERKMATI5EIE (EFmE®E)

ZBRHERY 2 HEER
HEFHHRA-NAN\NF+ZA
— BB BHE=1T%F (&
BEISI=+FHEB2EFN)
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A.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR
RENTAL PURPOSES (continued)

A. FERESDEESHEHSIWA
H& =)

Attributable

71958 K 72155 2 R g #B40

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions (IR property AEE of lease
(FAFR) MEME Bl HAER
Workshop Unit 4,192 Industrial 100% Medium-term
Nos. 4 to 6 (inclusive) on (excluding lease
2nd Floor and Lorry Carpark area of car
Nos. L7 & L8 parking
on Ground Floor, spaces)
Kin Wing Industrial Building, (Saleable
No. 33 Kin Wing Street, area)
Tuen Mun, New Territories
bR 4,192 I 100% H HA
2 ERA1335% (TBIEEN
BERIERNE-B4E65: TEH ZHEE)
(MEBFEEAR) (ERE®E)
Rt TEARI;FEL7RL
Lot No. 716 and The Remaining 11,492 Agricultural 50% Medium-term
Portions of Lot Nos. 719 and 721 (Site area) lease
in Demarcation District No. 132,
Tuen Mun, New Territories
FRHBM 11,492 BEith 50% h HA
X EHNM1325RHER7165% A K (HARERE)



A.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FE ¥ %

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued)

A. FERESDEESHEHSWA
H& =)

Attributable

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions (IR property AEE of lease

B (EFR) YMEME PEih R HAER

6. One Eleven 22,010 Residential 100% Long lease
No.111 High Street, (Marketing
Hong Kong gross floor

area)

BERASEHINKEZ 22,010 = 100% REA
One Eleven (AIE
HEEEE)

7. PeakCastle 145,394 Commercial 100% Medium-term
No. 476 Castle Peak Road (Gross floor lease
Kowloon area)

Hong Kong
HEHBNEE 145,394 [GES 100% i HA
B 1L\ B§476%F 2 PeakCastle (BEMmEB)

8. West Castle 21,188 Industrial 100% Medium-term
No. 22 Yip Shing Street (Gross floor lease
Kwai Chung, New Territories area)

R BB E AL #2255 2 West Castle 21,188 T 100% HHR
(BEER)

B AR P R A B 2016/2017 4
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FEWEHE

A. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR

RENTAL PURPOSES (continued)

B& #)

Attributable

A. SAREDRESHESBA

Area interest of
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group Category

Descriptions [ property AEE of lease

B (FAFR) L/ EE=1 Bl HAER

9.  West Park 37,847 Residential 100% Medium-term
Nos. 256-258 Tung Chau Street (Marketing lease
Kowloon gross floor
Hong Kong area)

BB NEBIMAE256 225855 2 37,847 = 100% 1 HA
West Park (AIE
EEMEE)

10. Queen Central 51,940 Residential 40% Medium-term
No. 338 Queen’s Road Central (Marketing lease
Hong Kong gross floor

area)

BEBERREHD338HEZ 51,940 = 40% 1 HA
Queen Central (A&
HEEE)

11. Wall Street Tower 240,485 Industrial 50% Medium-term
Nos. 26-38 Ta Chuen Ping Street  (Gross floor lease
Kwai Chung, New Territories area)

HMREBITEITHE26E385 2 240,485 T 50% 1 HA
Wall Street Tower (BREEBE)

290
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR PROPERTIES FEW %

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE IN HONG KONG

Descriptions

BR

Site  Gross floor
area area
(sq. ft.) (sq. ft.) Stage of
WERR BEER  completion
(FER) (FFR) TR B

B. RERZRREPZHEMR

Expected Attributable

completion interest of
date Nature of ~ the Group Category of
BRI property KEE lease

M WMEME  EERE  BANER

Sha Tin Town Lot No. 603,
Lok Lam Road, Fo Tan, Shatin,
New Territories

S H

KR SR ER D T

b B} 5560335

12,809 26,895 Work in
progress
12,809 26,895 IS

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
FOR SALE/PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE IN MAINLAND CHINA

Descriptions

Bn

Site  Gross floor

area area
(sq. m.) (sg. m.) Stage of
WEEE BEAE  completion
(£HX) (F7H%) TR

3rd quarter  Residential 25% Medium-

2017 term lease

“E—LF iz 25% b
$=Z

C. RPBAMZERPZFED

B BeESEDX
Expected Attributable
completion interest of
date Nature of  the Group Category of
BiET property 58 lease

A WEME  EEEE  ANER

A development project located
at the west of Wenyuan Road
and south of Houfutinggang,
Haining City, Zhejiang Province,
The PRC (including sold but not
yet handover units and unsold
units of Phase 1 and land for
Phase 2 and Phase 3 development)
URHEHIE
BETRIEEE
rESEBEAN-ERRER
(BRE-BOHEBLRRKZ
BURRHEEMLUR
FTZHBRzIH)

35,680 147,453 Phase 1 -
Completed

Phase

2and3-

Planning in

progress

35,680 147,453 F—H-
BRI
£-R

E-H-
aE ]
EfTH

Phase  Commercial 49% Medium-

2and3- term lease
No definite
plan

R [GE 49% b
F=H-
mAHEETE

B Al A PR AR 2016/2017 4E 201
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D. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

D. KIEFEMR

HANISON CONSTRUCTION HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016/2017

Site Attributable
area Area interest of
(sqg. ft.) (sq. ft.) Nature of the Group Category
Descriptions wEREE [ property N | of lease
(FAR) (FFR) MEHE FEfL R BAER
Unsold units at The Bedford, 4,820 1,275 Industrial 100% Long lease
Nos. 91-93 Bedford Road (Gross floor
Tai Kok Tsui area)
Kowloon
i 4,820 1,275 I% 100% R
RAENEE-935 (BEEB)
The Bedford: HEE {1
Unsold units at 5,790 Retail Residential/ 100% Long lease
The Austine Place, portion: 9,953 Retail
No. 38 Kwun Chung Street (Marketing
Kowloon Gross floor
area)
Residential
portion: 1,740
(Saleable area)
e 5,790 R R tE /i 100% R
BB H385 9,953
The Austine Placesk HEE i (A&
EEER)
FEHn:
1,740
(BERER)
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